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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 4 22

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEATT  BREBEEBEEN

2020
—ETF
(Re-presented)
(#2&E7)
Revenue WA 675.5 595.0
Loss for the year FEEIE (CYA)) 731
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KRBER AEILEE (46.4) (173.1)
Loss per share (HK cents) SR EE B (7.794) (46.119)
Average inventory turnover day (days) FHEFERAERE(R) 72.8 71.5
Average trade receivable turnover day (days) FHEKE ZEREE R (X) 88.5 90.9
Average trade payable turnover day (days) FHEMESERFEAERE(R) 50.2 58.8
Total assets BERE 678.0 657.4
Total liabilities =Ltk 312.0 361.5
Financial position Revenue
B SRR 'ON
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBTT BEET
1,000 1,200
800
900
678.0
657.4
600 675.5
595.0
600
400 3615
312.0
300
200
Year Year
F15 F15
0 0
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 2020 2021
BE BE BE afE
2020 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (“the Year”).

Since the year 2020, global economic environment has been hit hard
by the haze of COVID-19 pandemic. The economies of various
countries are also affected by epidemic prevention policies in varying
degrees, resulting in different effect of manufacturing and production
industries, tourism, hotel and catering industry and retail, thus facing
the fact that the economic growth rate has fallen. In 2021, following
the increase in vaccination rates among countries, the unbalanced
global economy began to recover slowly, and the decline rate of
global GDP was shrunken.

Due to China’s effective control of the spread of the epidemic, the
economy has also taken the lead in global recovery. It not only became
the only major economy in the world to achieve positive growth rate
last year, but also maintained the overall trend of sustained recovery
this year. Therefore, the revenue of the Group’s two core segments —
EMS and the Distribution of Communication Products businesses
increased in 2021. The revenue of our EMS increased to approximately
HK$630.0 million during the year ended 31 December 2021. At the
same time, the revenue of Distribution of Communication Products
businesses also slightly increased to approximately HK$40.3 million
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Unfortunately, because of the epidemic prevention policies of various
countries such as blockade measures and borders, control measures
and isolation arrangements, the customers cannot go to visit the
projects which in Southeast Asian, as a result, the revenue of real
estate supply chain services failed to meet the company’s expectations
during the year 2021.
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To—F RBESEHEEEEXRRS  XEH
I ERREISERE - 2IRGDPPEIEHE /D ©

REIEBES T RIBERE  KETEEREE
BERERE  TEAFNAZE—ERIEER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHES

Faced with challenges, the Board and management echelon of the
Company strive to explore and find new business growth points.
Recently, the China’s fertility policy opens for the third child per family.
It should be a huge market demand in China, the management has
conducted research on this market. We believe that the middle-class
people have a high demand for high-end medical and healthcare
services such as assisted reproduction and stem cell medicine. The
board of directors believes that assisted reproduction, stem cell
medicine and other medical health products. It has great market
potential and good development prospects.

In 2021, the Group has signed cooperation agreements with assisted
reproductive medical experts and institutions to reserve assisted
reproductive medical technology, and at the same time linked
domestic and foreign laboratories, outpatient clinics, hospitals and
other medical institutions to provide systematic solutions to customers
who need to improve fertility quality.

Looking forward to 2022, although the variant COVID-19 has recently
spread widely in mainland China and Hong Kong, causing a new round
of economic trauma, the Group believes that the government has
relevant epidemic prevention experience, and the new wave of
epidemic will be controlled in a short time.

In view of the uncertain business prospects, the Group will continue to
adhere to a prudent strategy, giving priority to the stability of
operation, financial reality and management soundness.

Despite the various challenges and difficulties, the Group remains
confident of its ability to ride out the crisis with skill and resilience,
while being ready to seize any possibilities for growth and
enhancement of shareholder value.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our staff for their diligence and dedication during the
year. | wish to also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers
and business partners for their unfailing support and trust for the
Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman

29 April 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W S AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The COVID-19 has been ravaging the world over two years, even with
the emergence of mutant strains such as Delta and Omicron to
exacerbate travel restrictions and instability in social life in the second
half of the year in 2021. However, with major economies around the
world reopening, launching growth stimulus packages and vaccination
rates have increased among difference countries, a slow economic
recovery, an accelerated inflation, and a decline in the growth rate of
unemployment globally. Regarding to the recovery economy’s
environment, the EMS and Distribution of Communication Products
segments recording a better performance with an increase in revenue
of approximately 15.5%. The Group has embraced a dual approach to
drive faster and steadier revenue growth in the future. In view of the
China’s liberalization of fertility policies and the large market of
assisted reproductive health services, the Group explores the assisted
reproductive market through mergers and acquisitions, investment
and joint venture cooperation during the year ended 31 December
2021. At the same time, the Group will focus on the implementation of
projects that highly integrate electronic business and medical business
and strive to coordinate the resources of various sectors of the
Company. As part of this strategy, the Group changed its name
officially from “Link-Asia International Co. Ltd” to “Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited” in early 2021. Currently, the
Group has stepped into the lucrative real-estate market in South-east
Asia with its enormous housing needs. To this end, the Group has
leveraged on its business network to source high-quality real estate
projects in the region since the second half of 2019. These efforts will
intensify when the current pandemic, which restricts air travel and
upends supply chains, shows signs of easing in 2022. As a result, the
Group generated total revenue of approximately HK$675.5 million,
increased approximately HK$80.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$595.0 million). As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had bank and cash balances totalling approximately HK$145.6
million (2020: HK$167.7 million) with efforts made to maintain a
healthy financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB & Wm0 AT

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products Businesses

The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of approximately HK$630.0 million (2020:
HK$544.3 million) and HK$40.3 million (2020: HK$35.9 million),
respectively, to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
performance of these segments had been recovered in 2021 after the
economic hit following the outbreak of the pandemic in the early part
of 2020. Overall, these segments generated an increase in turnover of
approximately 15.5% in 2021.

Real Estate Supply Chain Services

Real Estate Supply Chain Services business started its contribution to
the Group’s revenue in 2020. Revenue from the Real Estate Supply
Chain Services operation provides two types of services, comprising
the real estate advisory service and real estate purchase service
related to investment opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia
markets on behalf of customers. Revenue is recognised at a point in
time upon completion of each service. This segment has contributed
approximately HK$4.6 million (2020: HK$14.2 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Real Estate Supply Chain Services
business is heavily and adversely affected by the border control and
quarantine measures due to COVID-19. Normal business travelling is
suspended between the PRC and Southeast Asian and Pan Asian
countries. The Board expected that this business sector will improve
with the coming break-through in vaccine and medication of
COVID-19.

Securities and Other Assets Investment

The Securities and Other Assets Investment business contributed
revenue of approximately HK$0.7 million (2020: HK$0.7 million) to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W S AT

Geographical Analysis

Revenue from the major European countries (the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Poland, Belgium and France) totalled approximately
HK$348.8 million (2020: HK$330.1 million), and accounted for
approximately 51.6% (2020: 55.5%) of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The U.S.A. market contributed
approximately HK$81.8 million (2020: HK$40.6 million) in revenue and
accounted for approximately 12.1% (2020: 6.8%) of the Group’s
revenue. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and other countries
accounted for approximately HK$78.0 million (2020: HK$87.6 million)
and HK$166.9 million (2020: HK$136.7 million), respectively,
representing approximately 11.6% (2020: 14.7%) and 24.7% (2020:
23.0%) of the Group’s revenue.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$675.5 million (2020: HK$595.0 million).
The increases of the revenue was mainly contributed by ES and
Distribution of Communication Products segments.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by approximately 20.5% from approximately
HK$440.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$530.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
which was in line with the increase of the revenue.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by approximately 6.3% from approximately
HK$154.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$144.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
as a result of a gross profit contribution from EMS and Distribution of
Communication Products segments, with a lower gross profit margin.

o[ DA

REBEEZTZ—F+ZA=+—HILEFE &K
BEONEZBER(EE - mt - KE - LA
oA B By AU #) A 348,800,000 8 T (= F
ZZF 330,100,000 7T) © HMEAREERA
M51.6% (ZZE =T F : 555%) - EETHER
U A #) /81,800,000 jo( — T — T 4
40,600,000787T) + #IEAEBIRAR121%(=
ToTF :68%) c PRE(BEESE) REME
R BIE%15 478,000,000 T ( — T —T4F :
876OOOOO/%TE)&166900000/%75(_7_
T4 :136,700,000%7T) * o BIAME AR EE
ABING6% (ZEZFF 14.7%) k247% (ZF
ZTF 0 23.0%) °

B 7% [0 §a

WA
%ﬁé—%——¢+—H:+—H¢¢F'$
EEFEBE WA 46755000008 T (ZF =

T4E : 595000,000/87T) « WA EBEH
BT RIE RS HBANERDEBAER -

SHE R A
WERAHBE_Z_TF+_A=+—H1F
£F [Z B9 49 440,300,000 78 TT 18 AN 49 20.5% = &
E-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—BILEENY
530,600,000 & 7T » ELUL AL I —EL -

EF
AR E T BGE R & 2 B A E m D #BH E R
REUE - HFREMNBEREE - AENHEE

ZIEZEF+ A=+ B LEEENYD
154,700,000 B TR L 46 3% 2 HE T~ —
F+ZA=+—HIEFEME144,900,000/8

ﬁo

Annual Report F 3k 2021 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB & Wm0 AT

Impairment losses

The Group made overall impairment losses of approximately HK$12.6
million on certain assets for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease by approximately HK$55.5 million (2020:
HK$68.1 million). It was mainly comprised of impairment losses for
loans to other parties (net of reversal) of approximately HK$15.4
million, and offsetting by reversal of impairment losses for other
receivables of approximately HK$1.8 million and reversal of impairment
losses for trade receivables of approximately HK$1.0 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately HK$29.2 million
(2020: HK$56.3 million) accounted for approximately 4.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 9.5% for the year ended 31
December 2020 of the Group’s revenue, respectively. The decrease
was mainly due to decrease in marketing consultancy fee and royalty
fee.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of approximately HK$154.2 million (2020:
HK$178.2 million) accounted for approximately 22.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and approximately 29.9% for the year ended
31 December 2020 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The decrease
was mainly due to decrease in staff cost and depreciation expenses on
property, plant and equipment.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure slightly increased by
approximately HK$1.1 million from approximately HK$13.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$15.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs were approximately HK$4.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and HK$4.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, represented approximately 0.6% and 0.8% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The finance costs was remained stable during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W S AT

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year ended 31 December 2021 included
approximately HK$3.4 million of current tax charge (2020: HK$3.3
million). The tax charges mainly represented the income tax provision
at the applicable tax rate in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.A..

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributed to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$46.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$173.1
million). The Group’s net loss margin attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
6.9% (2020: 29.1%). Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling
interests amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$18,000).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$145.6 million (2020: HK$167.7 million), representing
a decrease of approximately HK$22.1 million from 2020. Respective
sum of approximately 32.3%, 41.2% and 26.5% of the bank and cash
balances was denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy
position at 2.0 times (2020: 1.5 times).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the bonds payable
and loan from an independent third party were approximately HK$2.0
million and HK$0.6 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
borrowings represented the bank loan and loan from an independent
third party of approximately HK$18.0 million and HK$0.6 million,
respectively.
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Cash flow

In 2021, approximately HK$101.0 million was used in the operating
activities. Net cash generated from investing activities was
approximately HK$3.5 million and net cash generated from financing
activities was approximately HK$74.6 million for the Year.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2021, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.
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Capital expenditure and commitments

Capital expenditure for 2021 amounted to approximately HK$22.1
million and capital commitments as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$0.4 million. Both the capital expenditure and capital
commitments were mainly related to the acquisition of plant and
machinery to replace retired ones.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, an investment property of approximately
HK$30.0 million was pledged to an independent third party to secure
a loan facility available to the Group. The pledged investment property
was disposed through a disposal of a subsidiary in 2021. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had no pledged assets.

Financial guarantee contract

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an overseas
subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7
October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and the
supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade balance to a third

party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as at 31 December 2020
and 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the sum limited
to US$650,000, subject to the full payment of the final settlement
effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the
Guarantee.
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Contingent liabilities

The Group and the Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Significant investments, acquisition and disposal

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held listed equity investments of
approximately HK$1.2 million (2020: Nil). No dividend income was
received during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 in
respect of these investments.

Apart from the aforesaid transactions, there were no significant
investment held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Group during the Year.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2021.

Placing of new shares

(@) On 29 January 2020, the Company and the placing agent
entered into a placing agreement whereby the Company agreed
to place, through the placing agent, a maximum of 1,189,060,000
new ordinary shares of the Company of nominal value of
HK$0.001 per share to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.035 per placing share. The maximum aggregate
nominal value of the placing shares under the placing is
HK$1,189,060.00. On 29 January 2020, being the date of placing
agreement entered into between the Company and the placing
agent, the closing price of the shares of the Company was
HK$0.036 per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ( “Stock Exchange”). Placees are independent
third parties and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent and not connected with any directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholder (if any) of the Company or
its subsidiaries and their respective associates. The completion
of the placing took place on 19 February 2020. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 29 January 2020, 3
February 2020 and 19 February 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Directors consider that the Placing can strengthen the
financial position of the Group and provide additional funding to
the Group in order to facilitate the business operation and future
development. The Placing also represents a good opportunity to
broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital base of the
Company.

The net proceeds from the Placing (after deduction of
commission and other expenses of the Placing) are
approximately HK$41.4 million. The net placing price is
approximately HK$0.0348 per share. The Company intended to
use the net proceeds arising from the Placing as to (i)
approximately HK$18 million for developing the Group’s existing
electronic products and the related supply chain service
business; (ii) approximately HK$17 million for establishing a
leading real estate sale supply chain service business system in
Southeast Asia and Pan Asia markets, and (iii) remaining balance
of approximately HK$6.4 million for general working capital of
the Group.

On 30 December 2020, in order to better deploy the resources
of the Group, the Board has resolved to assign the unutilised net
proceeds of approximately HK$10.5 million as at 30 December
2020 from the development of real estate sale supply chain
service business in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia to the general
working capital of the Group. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2020.

On 15 June 2021, in order to better utilise the resources on hand
and taking into account of the continuous outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has resolved to further change
the unutilised original net proceeds of HK$13.2 million, which was
original allocated for the Group’s electronic manufacturing
services business, to the general working capital of the Group.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company date 15 June 2021.
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As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$41.4 million was
utilised, of which:

(i) approximately HK$4.8 million for developing the Group’s
existing electronic products and the related supply chain
service business;

(i) approximately HK$6.5 million for establishing a leading real
estate sale supply chain service business system in
Southeast Asia and Pan Asia markets; and

(iii) approximately HK$30.1 million for general working capital
of the Group.

On 30 December 2020, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with China Tonghai Securities Limited (the “Sole
Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the Sole Placing Agent, on
a best effort basis, up to 85,580,000 placing shares of the
Company of nominal value of HK$0.02 per share at the placing
price of HK$0.35 per placing share, to not less than six placees,
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be independent
third parties.

The condition precedents set out in the placing agreement had
been fulfilled, and completion of the placing took place on 11
January 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
placing agreement. In accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement, the placing shares are to be placed by
the Sole Placing Agent on a best endeavour basis. The placing
shares under the placing have been fully placed. An aggregate of
85,580,000 placing shares, which represents approximately
16.7% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
after completion of the placing, has been successfully placed to
not less than six placees, at the placing price of HK$0.35 per
placing share.

The net proceeds from the placing shares (after deduction of
commission and other expenses of said placing of new shares)
are approximately HK$29.2 million. The Company intends to use
such net proceeds as general working capital for the Company’s
ongoing business operation, which include staff cost, rental and
management fee, and other administrative expenses.
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As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$29.2 million was
utilized for general working capital of the Group.

For the details, please refer to the announcements on 30
December 2020 and 11 January 2021.

On 15 June 2021, the Company and the placing agent entered
into a placing agreement whereby the Company agreed to place
through the placing agent a maximum of 102,704,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of nominal value of HK$0.02 per
shares. On 30 June 2021, an aggregate of 102,704,000 shares of
the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been
successfully placed at HK$0.224 per share. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, each of the placees are independent third
parties and whose ultimate beneficial owner are independent
and not connected with any directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (if any) of the Company or its
subsidiaries and their respective associates.

The net proceeds from the placing shares (after deduction of
commission and other expenses of said placing of new shares)
amounted to approximately HK$22.2 million. The Company
intends to use such net proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$10
million for developing the Group’s assisted reproduction medical
technology business, and (ii) remaining balance of approximately
HK$12.2 million for general working capital of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021 and subsequently up to the date of 2021
annual report, approximately HK$18.1 million was utilized of
which:

(i) approximately HK$5.9 million for developing the Group’s
assisted reproduction medical technology business; and

(i) approximately HK$12.2 million for general working capital
of the Group.

The remaining unutilised net proceeds of approximately HK$4.1
million is estimated to be fully utilised before 31 December 2022.
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Right issue

On 23 November 2021, the Company issued 308,121,285 rights shares,
on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) then existing
shares, at a price of HK$0.2 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). Upon
completion of the Rights Issue, the Company received net cash
proceeds of approximately HK$58.7 million. The Company intended to
apply the net proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$34.2 million for the
expansion of the Group’s product range under the EMS and
Distribution Products Businesses; (ii) approximately HK$17.1 million for
the funding of potential merger and acquisition opportunities of ARS-
licensed providers; and (iii) approximately HK$7.4 million for general
corporate and working capital purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the intended use and actual use of the net
proceeds from the Rights Issue, as well as the unutilized net proceeds
therefrom are as follows:
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The unutilized net proceeds from the Rights Issue was used according
to the intended use as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 1 November 2021. The remaining unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$29.9 million is estimated to be fully utilised before
31 December 2022.

For further details, please refer to the announcement and prospectus
of the Company dated 15 October 2021 and 1 November 2021.

Environmental, social and corporate responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation
and contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social
activities which benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains
strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with
its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to its
customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

The details of such are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance report on pages 43 to 114 of this annual report. During the
Year, the Group has complied with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects. The Group will review its
environmental practices from time to time and will implement further
eco-friendly measures and practices closely enhancing environmental
sustainability.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
applicable laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong.
The Group has seeked professional legal advice from its legal advisers
to ensure its transactions and business are in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any noncompliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.
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Key risks and uncertainties

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices,
like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The
management of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HKD, USD, RMB
and Euro (“EUR”), exposing to the potential RMB and EUR exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. However, the Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses
its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing
this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety
of means.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our
Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s
operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our
Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of
authority and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Manpower and Retention Risk

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will provide attractive remuneration package to
suitable candidates and personnel.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 1,103 employees
in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and the PRC. In
order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth
operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers
competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 2 December 2020, it is approved
that the english name of the Company be changed from “Link-Asia
International Co. Ltd.” to “Link-Asia International MedTech Group
Limited” and its dual foreign name in chinese be changed from “¥& 38
HEEXEBERAR to RO RAKREREMNREERBR QG For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2
November 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 10 November
2020.

The Company name, stock short name and company logo have been
changed. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 January 2021.
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Placing of new shares

On 11 January 2021, an aggregate of 85,580,000 shares of the
Company with a nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been successfully
placed at HK$0.35 per share. The net proceeds from the placing shares
(after deduction of commission and other expenses of said placing of
new shares) amounted to approximately HK$29.2 million.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
30 December 2020 and 11 January 2021.

On 15 June 2021, an aggregate of 102,704,000 shares of the Company
with a nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been successfully placed at
HK$0.224 per share. The net proceeds from the placing shares (after
deduction of commission and other expenses of said placing of new
shares) amounted to approximately HK$22.2 million.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
15 June 2021 and 30 June 2021.

Potential acquisition of controlling interest in the Target Company

On 4 March 2021, Link-Asia International Assisted Reproductive
Technology Group Limited, being a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group (the “Link-Asia International”), |.Baby Technology Investments
Limited (the “Potential Vendor”) and [.Baby Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Target Company”) have entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding, pursuant to which the Potential Vendor intends to
dispose a certain number of issued shares of the Target Company that
constitute a controlling interest of the Target Company, to the
Company including its designated party(ies)

On 20 May 2021, Link-Asia International, the Potential Vendor and the
Target Company has been continuing to discuss the Potential
Acquisition and entered into a term sheet (the “Term Sheet”) on key
issues in relation the Potential Acquisition. For details of the potential
acquisition of controlling interest in the Target Company, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 4 March 2021 and 20 May
2021.
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Right Issue

On 23 November 2021, the Company issued 308,121,285 rights shares,
on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) then existing
shares, at a price of HK$0.2 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). Upon
completion of the Rights Issue, the Company received net cash
proceeds of approximately HK$58.7 million.

For details, please refer to the announcement and prospectus of the
Company dated 15 October 2021 and 1 November 2021.

Saved as disclosed in this announcement, the Directors are not aware
of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROSPECTS

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic is a major global public health crisis
of a kind unseen in a century. It will likely affect people’s lives for a
long time to come. The global impact of COVID-19 will trigger
profound changes in the international landscape, world order, global
supply chains and China’s economic, trade and industrial layout. When
the pandemic is over, countries around the world will make
adjustments to their global supply chains with long-term, strategic
implications.

With the China’s liberalization of fertility policies, encourage people to
have three children. The Group remains a positive attitude towards the
high-end medical and health service business in the coming years.
However, in view of the uncertainty economic environment affected
by mutant strains such as Delta and Omicron in these few months, the
Group will develop the assisted reproductive industry prudently and
will continue to pay attention to new medical business development
opportunities in 2022.

Following the implementation of the vaccination programmes, most
countries are expected to experience a relatively strong recovery in
2022. In this best-case scenario, the Group will resume its plans of
setting foot in the Real Estate Supply Chain Services business, in order
to capture the strong housing demand of young homebuyers in
Southeast Asia.

In the future, the Group will continuously focus on the business of EMS
and Distribution of Communication Products segment to get steady
cash flow. The Group will adopt a sound business strategy that
combines a diversified approach to business to drive the growth in
profits.

A

RIBZ—F+—AZ+=0  xQFLREE
BRQRERIRE RGO EZ— O KRERRMD
MELE  UERERRDO2BTHER - &
17308121285 IR (kA Akt (T A% 1) o SRR FEAK
B ARAREBSRESAEREFEY
58,700,000/ 7T °

BEES  FREARAREHAE-ZT - —F+
ATRBEZZE-_—F+—A—HHRER#HE
=2 -

BRAREHAEEEIN  EFATANBTEHE_ZF
T AT RALEFERLEATREN
EAEARERE -

lB=

NEFHBERCOVID-I9RIBERBFRBNERX
RRRAREERY - AAREREMTE AN
4% © COVID-19 3Rk M) 2 BRI RV E 6 5| BBl
"R EREKF - RIREERAR R EE
B BHREXMRELRAZ L - THE

& RSB HASIRUBEEL RPN
BB B RAR -

BEETRBIMAEBRER  SBAMEE=%Z -
AEBNEAREFHRmERERBRERSEZE
THIIFEBREE - P - 2R Delta K Omicron
EEESHAEBEANERLEREES TR
BT AEEBEZERREEEEEXLS
R-E - —FEEBITNBEERERE

&= o
=

EmREEEAEIR - SHERBYRE=
T _FREAHBRINER - EHRESS
T AEEBIRES R FEHEHREEREER
MEtEl - WA REDFERERFENBILERS

K o

AR AEERBEBLINEFRERBRD
HBEAERDBEY UESRENEESR
B AKERERIRENEFER  B£aZ T
LT - HBFIPER -

Annual Report F 3k 2021 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_LLL/\—/'r \
(e SN=w 315& =
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE THEER
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of AT NGEFSKENDEEE  UREXR

corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) as set out
in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into effect on 1
January 2022, their requirements are applicable to the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the Company has adopted
the code provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Previous CG Code”) as set out in the
previous Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code
came into effect.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2021, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.
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The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the
different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

On 19 April 2021, Dr. Sun Xiaohu (the “Dr. Sun”) was resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) with
effective 19 April 2021 because he will involve in the medical business
of the joint venture to be set up by the Company and take the role of
its general manager.

Upon the resignation of Dr. Sun, the number of independent non-
executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee fell below
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
required to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules within three months after failing to meet the
requirements.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chak Chi Shing on 7 June 2021 as an
independent non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10 of the Listing
Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing (resigned on 4 March 2022)
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (appointed on 4 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong

Dr. Sun Xiaohu (appointed on 6 January 2021 and
resigned on 19 April 2021)

Mr. Chak Chi Shing (appointed on 7 June 2021)

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 39 to 42 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

59

EEeRRANSNTEER =B LIFNIT
EEMEK - Z=BBUFRTEFHEFTE=
DZ—AE - BEEHRBMNT

HITESE -

MAERSE A (Z/E)

TEELEE

BR)ILT S

BNEEE(RZFE-ZF= AAEIEF)
MEMZ Lt (R=F=-—F = AMAEZ(E)

BUIHHITESE -

BERLE

BRigRET (R -FE——F— A NAEZIR
RZEZ—FM A+ HEFHE)

BEBEE(R_E-—ENA+HEZ(F)

EENEREFRRBENAFREIVOELR42A
MIEEEEFE] 8  EF2 2 EMER
EXTERTENRER AR AEEZEB
R EBUBV A R FEER c REFHA
MHREXNEENCERRABIKER - 57
AREAEEEBELER -EFEXERBZH
WEMH - X5 BB HMER MEERR
F-2RBBYIIFNTEENTAELMHRAE
3BTRS BB MR R A TR S o

26 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3Rz B BB BRI B EEE R A )



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL A S £
PEERRS

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adeguate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date
of this annual report.
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Number of
meetings attended/held
HESBXE BHREBXRE

Shareholder Board
meeting meeting
Name of member REHE BRRXE EEEER
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) MREE A () 1/1 27127
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE 1/1 27/27
Mr. Duan Chuanhong SIS 0/1 25127
Mr. Xia Xiaobing B/NELE 0/1 27127
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan 2 PRI 27 12 N/A A~ A N/A i A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -
Mr. Chak Chi Shing * BBk 0/1 16/27
Mr. Li Huiwu FERLE 171 27127
Mr. Yang Weidong BERIIE 1/1 27127
Dr. Sun Xiaohu* BRIRRELS 0/1 9/27

! Resigned on 4 March 2022

2 Appointed on 4 March 2022
3 Appointed on 6 January 2021 and resigned on 19 April 2021
4 Appointed on 7 June 2021
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programs to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills. All the
existing Directors confirmed that they have had suitable directors’
training through attendance of training courses or reading materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.
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Audit Committee EZELEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010
As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chak Chi Shing (Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Yang Weidong.

On 19 April 2021, Dr. Sun Xiaohu (the “Dr. Sun”) was resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) with
effective 19 April 2021 because he will involve in the medical business
of the joint venture to be set up by the Company and take the role of
its general manager.

Upon the resignation of Dr. Sun, the number of independent non-
executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee fell below
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
required to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules within three months after failing to meet the
requirements.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chak Chi Shing on 7 June 2021 as an
independent non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10 of the Listing
Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2021 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports of the Company;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year

ended 31 December 2021 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHE HESS A ETEBRH
Mr. Li Huiwu (Chairman) BEREE(ZE) 8/8
Mr. Yang Weidong BERLE 8/8
Dr. Sun Xiaohu' i3 6/8
Mr. Chak Chi Shing? BER 2/8

! Appointed on 6 January 2021 and resigned on 19 April 2021

2 Appointed on 7 June 2021

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Weidong
(Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin
Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2021 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.

RARIRZE—ZF+ A=+ — BRI H N
ZEe - FNEEem=RKEAK  BIEM
BN TESHERLE(EF) TER
TER—BRITESMHABLLE

FHEE e SRR RES
CF= A=t RREEE
HE - WEEERDTIER
35 o

g g

51T RS AT E B
PN/ DS

YHEZEE e EAREFTEAEMLETENE
%&m&EEFz BB A R H A
B ITHASEMAEERERERBHMO
HREREENEESREER HEEE2M
S RERAFTHO R - ESFHWEEH
EEEER  REASEBRE REEMSRRE

;'_Eo

BE_ZT_—FT-_A=+T—HULFEFHZ

BEEAMTZREE UBRHEFRLSRER
EBRHMEE - SKENERIHFERMNT -

Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHE HESS A BTEBRH
Mr. Yang Weidong (Chairman)’ BERLE(FE) 3/3
Mr. Lin Dailian MARESE SE 3/3
Mr. Li Huiwu TEREA 3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2021

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2021 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the re-appointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr.
Yang Weidong.

Four meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REMHA HESERE RITEERE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) MBS ST () 3/3
Mr. Yang Weidong BIERLE 3/3
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE 3/3
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
its external auditor for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by the external auditor is included
in note 14 to the financial statements in the Annual Report. For the
Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non-audit services is
approximately HK$180,000. The non-audit services was paid for
review capital forecast and statement.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. Gao Keying resigned as the Company's company
secretary and Ms. Tam Mei Chu (“Ms. Tam”) is appointed as the
Company’s company secretary on 31 August 2021, with effective from
31 August 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Tam had
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. Ms. Tam is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal control review. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. Internal control review of
business and operation cycles is conducted under rotation basis every
year. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings from the external
independent professionals periodically and discussed the
recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the
external auditors during their audit and external independent
professionals during their internal control review.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders
and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the
communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

(M Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

(2) The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

(3) The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (enquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

Constitutional Documents

During 2021, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin”), aged 41, joined the Group in July 2019. Mr.
Lin graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics and
later studied at Fudan University. He is a well-known venture capitalist
in China. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of experience in entrepreneurship
and investment, successfully led or participated in the equity
investment and listing of nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin has been adhering
to the concept of value investment, real estate finance, corporate
strategic planning and business model shaping. He has extensive
practical experience and professional knowledge in business
management, mergers and acquisitions, and restructuring of
companies. With rich entrepreneurial experience and value investment
philosophy, Mr. Lin has been recognized in the financial industry. He
has won the Top 100 Best Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the
Top 30 Outstanding Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in
China.

Mr. Wang Guozhen (“Mr. Wang”), aged 63, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in November 2019 and was re-
designated as executive Director and vice president of the Company
in April 2020. Mr. Wang holds an executive master’'s degree in
business administration with Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He joined the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China in 1982 and has served as heads of various departments. He was
also officer of General Office and Bureaucratic Service Center of
National Council for Social Security Fund, the standing member of
council of Beijing Charity Association and the member of 11th and 12th
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wang acted as the executive director and vice chairman of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (¥7 & %&£ B 1= & & R 22 7)) (“Hsin
Chong”) from September 2018 to November 2019. Hsin Chong is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
securities of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until 31 December 2019. Hsin Chong
was principally engaged in engineering and property businesses. Hsin
Chong was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda
dated 20 January 2020, following a winding-up petition being filed by
a creditor and shareholder of Hsin Chong in January 2019. Mr. Wang
confirmed that (i) the winding up had not resulted in any liability or
obligation imposed against him; (ii) there was no wrongful act on his
part leading to the winding up process of Hsin Chong; and (i) he was
not aware of any actual or potential claim that had been or would be
made against him as a result of the winding up.
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Mr. Duan Chuanhong (“Mr. Duan”), aged 35, was appointed as
executive Director since 1 June 2017. Mr. Duan worked in different
industries for over 10 years and has ample experience in corporate
planning, management and execution.

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 32, holds a Bachelor of
Communication and Information System Management* (31 B1{Z &
HEEIR) from Chinese People’s Liberation Army National University
of Defense Technology, School of Information Communication* (/1
ARBMEE R AZEEMEZE0). She has over 10 years of
experience in operation management and medical business
management. Before joining the Group, she was a general manager of
oversea projects of Shenzhen Jinjiayuan Import and Export Limited*
CRIlLeZF#ELE O AR AT, the managing director of Chaoshang
Investment (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* ( & B #& & ¥ iR (R 1)
AMRA7]), and executive director of Qianhai Aesthetics and Plastics
Surgery Medical Group (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (B /G222
SBRORYDERERARD.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Huiwu (“Mr. Li”), aged 45, was appointed in October 2019. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from Wuhan Polytechnic
University, the People’s Republic of China in June 2002. He is currently
an affiliated member of The Association of International Accountants
and a certified tax planner and a certified intermediate accountant in
the PRC. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting, internal audit and risk management. Mr. Li held various
senior positions in the internal audit department in certain companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange where he was mainly
responsible for internal control and risk management matters.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EHERFE

Mr. Yang Weidong (“Mr. Yang”), aged 48, was appointed in April
2020. Mr. Yang graduated from Hefei Institute of Economics and
Technology with a bachelor’'s degree in economics and management
in 1995. He has more than 15 years of experience in business
management and sales management. Mr. Yang served as the regional
sales director of Hangzhou Sunyard System Engineering Co., Ltd from
2001 to 2005. Since August 2005, he has been serving as the deputy
general manager of Hangzhou Teamax Technology Group Co., Ltd (the
“Teamax Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamax Smart
City Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: SZ00662, “Teamax Smart”)
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and he is responsible for sales
management and pre-sale supporting. Mr. Yang has held the
supervisor position served as the chairman of the board of supervisors
of Teamax Smart since June 2016 and since June 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang was previously a director of Teamax Technology, a limited
liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, and
its principal activities include technology development, technical
services and consulting. Neither Teamax Technology nor any of its
subsidiaries is related to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr.
Yang ceased to act as a director of Teamax Technology with effect
from 25 October 2019. According to the notice dated 14 January 2020
published by Hangzhou Binjiang District People’s Court (fi )N &L
& A RJERL), a bankruptcy and liquidation application filed by Bank of
Jiangsu Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Branch CT#/ERTTIXB B R QBN 21T)
against Teamax Technology (the “Proceedings”) was accepted on 27
November 2019 pursuant to a default in repayment of principal of
RMB48 million and related interests by Teamax Technology. As at the
date of this annual report, the liquidation is in progress.

Mr. Yang confirmed that he is not a party of such Proceedings and is
not aware of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be
made against him as a result of the above.
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BIOGRAPH\IC/AL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Chak Chi Shing (“Mr. Chak”), aged 41, holds a bachelor’'s degree
of commerce in Accounting and Finance from Curtin University of
Technology. He is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountant
Australia. Mr. Chak has more than 15 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, corporate finance and financial management and five
years of experience in company secretarial matter and corporate
governance in listed companies. Mr. Chak has been the independent
non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings Limited (“SDM”) (stock
code: 8363), a company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since May 2019. Mr. Chak
has been appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (stock code: 1939),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
September 2019. Mr. Chak was the executive director of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1676), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2018 to September 2019, the company secretary of Bolina
Holding Co., Limited (stock code: 1190), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange until its delisting on 10 March 2021, from
March 2017 to August 2018, and the chief financial officer and company
secretary of SDM from March 2016 to July 2016.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2021 (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance issues. This Report is
prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate environmental and social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the Group —
(i) electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) for consumer electronic
products with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou
(“Guangzhou Factory”) through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners (the "EMS” business); (ii)
securities and other assets investments in Hong Kong; (iii) provision of
real estate sale supply chain service in Southeast Asia; and (iv)
provision of pre-pregnancy care and assisted reproductive service in
Shanghai (the “Investments, real estate supply chain and medical
services” business). The Group’s headquarter office is located in Hong
Kong and its operation location in PRC with its diversified customer
base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America and Europe.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with the Group via the Group’s social media platforms or email
at enquiry@1143.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development. As
a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will
invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels
for communication. The following table provides an overview of the
Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SERE
Government »  Compliance with the applicable * Annual reports, interim reports and
B laws and regulations announcements
B RERNOER FEBE  PHRERAE
*  Proper tax payment *  Company website
HOEINTR NGIEED
Shareholders and investors *  Low risk * Annual general meetings and other
BRERKREE KRB shareholder meetings
+ Return on the investment RRBAFRE RAMBKRRERE
&% & 613 + Annual reports, interim reports and
* Information disclosure and announcements
transparency FERE  PHBRERAE
EEEBERBEHE «  Company website

Employees

==

Customers

5F

* Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders
REERRERZ R AT FB

» Safeguard the rights and interests
of employees
HEEERSTENE =

*  Working environment
TYERR

» Career development opportunities
EEEREE

* Health and safety
REEZ S

+ Safe and high-quality products
zr RBEEmM

» Stable relationship

* Information transparency

ERERE

* Integrity
BAE

* Business ethics
[EEICL

NGTE G

*  Meetings with investors and
analysts
B EERSMENE R

* Trainings, seminars, briefing
sessions
Bl g kGn g
*  Newsletters
e
* Intranet and emails
A B A AN & T

* Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
FREHE  PHRERAE

«  Company website

NSIEER

* Email and customer service hotline
BEBREP RBRE

* Regular meetings
EHEE
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SERE
Suppliers and partners * Long-term partnership * Business meetings and phone calls
HER R B+ REARHRAE ESVE-E YN
* Honest cooperation * Regular meetmgs
HHEE EHEH
* Fairness and openness * Reviews and assessments
NSNS Bt AT h
* Information resources sharing
ERERAZ
* Risk reduction
2oy
Financial institutions »  Compliance with the applicable »  Consulting
SEE laws and regulations G
BTEAAERER + Information disclosure
+ Disclosure of information EEHE
SEHE + Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
FEHE  PHBRERAE
Media * Information transparency +  Company website
e BERERE ERERE
* Interviews
il
Public and communities *  Community involvement * Annual reports, interim reports and
AERHEE FHE 22 announcements
. Social responsibilities FERE PHRENRAE
TEEA

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to
the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance
indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according to
recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules) and the Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines. The
Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:
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Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

. Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

. The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

. The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

. Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the
Board and the ESG Sustainability Working Group spent significant
time in evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our operation
and formulating relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight
of the Board is to ensure the management to have all the right tools
and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and
long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability,
our Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear
terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. We highly value opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as
the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the
meetings. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group is to understand the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development
work in the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified
during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.
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Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation.
Effective communication about the goals and target process with key
stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this enables them to be
engaged in the implementation process, and to feel they are part of
the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables the
company to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in
achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
company’s ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group specifies
whether the target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is
essential for target setting.

A, ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavor
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and
economy of the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated
to contributing to the environmental, the third pillar of the
sustainability and following these principles to minimize our
adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipment and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implication
by aligning them with business priorities and decision
making

EMISSIONS

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to the
environment and has ethical duties to reduce emissions.
Given the nature of our business, the impacts on the
environment and nature resources are not significant. In
spite of this, we are committed to minimizing our
environmental impacts by responsibly managing our
business operations, reducing our carbon footprint and
using resources effectively.

In the meantime, we have full complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations where we
operated such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in
the PRC, the Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611), and the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap.
374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case (2020: nil).
regarding emissions was brought against us or our
employees during the year.
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A1.1 Air Pollutant Emissions ALl KRTEWHER

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the
possible adverse impact of its EMS business on the
environmental and considers environmental
protection mindset an important obligation during its
production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental aspects mainly include energy
consumption and wastes generation. Nevertheless,
the impact on natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

During our operation, the PRC factory’s canteen used
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel
and the factory generated electricity itself by nine
power generators for one hour bimonthly with the
use of diesel. The electricity generated would be
consumed during staggered power consumption.
Moreover, the petrol consumption came from vehicle
use for business transportation purpose. The burning
of LPG, the consumptions of diesel and petrol
generated nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur dioxides
(S0,) and particulate matter (PM) to the environment
nearby. For the stationary sources, the air pollutant
emissions from LPG remained stable for cooking use
in PRC factory canteen during the year. The increase
in the air pollutant emissions from diesel was mainly
attributable to the increased use of diesel-consuming
power generators for staggered power consumption
to tackle with the electricity usage temporary
constraint measure adopted by the Guangdong
Government during the year. Owing to the persistent
COVID-19 outbreak in 2021, the reduced vehicle use
frequency by the management and staff led to a drop
in air pollutant emissions by mobile combustion
during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to
reduce the emission of air pollutants by 2% by 2025.

AEBBRAEREERLET
HERBGEGHRENER
THEE  IHRFEBIR
REEEREETHHN—IA
ERZRE - ARENEANR
EHEIEREERBERR
ELBEEY - BEWOI R
P EBEERTE 7 HAY
BARERNZEEN -

REFEEL B FEIK
MREERBICAHRIES
FELREL BEIBBEBNA
LHERBTHRE BMEA
ERSMEE — /N - B
B E A B A ERER -
BEAN - JURIERER B R %
B AEHNER - RERIL
E/EE% fiﬁﬁ /EE%I]/‘L/EEA
mMEERREERSLD -
ZEIERRBENT o Bt E
EVFRRME - FARET
BREZZERERNRLEA
I RPTBE DR 2 RS R AR
B TE o S H) AR5 2
WMBEROE N - FERHNF
P 7% & 31 SR A U BREXEY
WA PR B bE - G AN fE A
SOMBEERNEERE - A
RZFEZ—FEECOVID-19
RE  EBEREIRIA
BEE BEFABBMRE
BRHEZERSGRMEBERET
Fo N REEMNBERR
BE_T_AFRI 2%z
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The details of air pollutant emissions during the
reporting period were as follows:

Investment, real

estate supply

chain & medical

services

RE BHE

Air Pollutions Unit EMS HEER

ERIEEN Bfy EFHERE BRR®E

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 747.17 -
A&ty T

— Stationary combustion kg 746.43 -
— kB EERER T

— Mobile combustion kg 0.74 -
- REBBRER T

Sulfur oxides (SOx) kg 6,086.36 -
&k T

— Stationary combustion kg 6,086.18 -
— kB EERER T

— Mobile combustion kg 0.18 -
- REBBRER T

Particulate matter (PM) kg 93.19 -
By T

— Stationary combustion kg 93.08 -
— kB EERER T

— Mobile combustion kg 0.11 -
- REBBRER Tr

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are the major
organic waste produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance
of industrial waste gases containing VOCs is the focus
and control area for our product fabrication
processes.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z 35 IR S8R EE AR A 7

RBERA - ERSRYYE
MEIBEWT :

2021 2020

Total Total
—E--F —Z-%F
st et

747.17 74.66

746.43 7277

0.74 1.89

6,086.36 5,518.18

6,086.18 5,517.98

0.18 0.20

93.19 7.55

93.08 7.39

0.11 0.16
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Besides VOCs discharges, benzene, toluene, xylene,
total non-methane hydrocarbons, lead and tin are
also the air pollutant being produced during our
production process. During the year, a licensed party
was outsourced by the Group to carry out an
inspection assessment regarding to the average
density and speed of waste gases emissions from our
factory on a specific date.

The assessment results provided by the licensed
party showed that our waste gases emission has met
the standard discharge limit of the relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, the assessment
results of the density and speed of waste gases
emissions are shown in the following tables:

BREZERRLLSMER
S BPIMAEEBRRTGE

ERSRYE - BE - =
FR - FF RS DR
B-#kih RFR KK
B\ — R fE T NI
BRI TR E B IR
MENFHEE R EREST
WA -

R R A RBER
TR EERBEAT & P Bl A3
MIRBERIZERRE -
BER BT E MR R AT
HAERBIIN T -

Average density FHEE
Year 2021 —E-—F

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER Bk By WEEAEY BRELCEY
Old factory production unit mg/m?3 0.01 6.56X10-3
EREIMEESM 25,/ HXK
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)
MM EEEN W AVE R R
Standard Discharge limit mg/m?3 <0.7 <85
SRR B 2R/ MK
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a
FHERE R - SGT-HJ21051302a

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
gAY : —E-—FRA+MA
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Volatile organic

compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEat
BREN Bfy S R —RR BRILEY
Organic waste gas emission from mag/m? Not-Detected 0.07 0.04 152
old factory production unit ER/ Ak (ND)
REEBIMEEENN g
BREREN
Waste gas emission from new mg/m? Not-Detected 0.02 0.07 2.45
factory production unit AL (ND)
REMIHEEEMNERIER R
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m’ Not-Detected 0.0081 Not-Detected Not-Applicable
from plastic injection after waste 3,/ Ak (ND) (ND) (N/A)
gas treatment Kt R NEE
BREERIBHEENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m’ Not-Detected 141 0.42 7.59
from assembly pad printing after 2%,/ K (ND)
waste gas treatment R
BREEAAEBONEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected 3.88 0.12 14
from spray painting after waste  Zx /XK (ND)
gas treatment Kt
BREEABEREENEREND
Standard Discharge limit mg/m’ <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BREEHRE ES VAN (N/A)
TEA
Results - Pass Pass Pass -
#E Bk i BR

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a, SGT-HJ21051303
THERERS + SGT-HI2051302a » SGT-HJ21051303

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
MiEAM: —E-—ERA+MA
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Average density FHERE
Year 2020 —E—EE

Lead and Tin and
Waste gases of emissions Unit its compounds its compounds
BEREK By HRELEN BRELCEYN
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
EETHREEEN =27/ K R A
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
MImEEEN =27/ K R A
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <0.7 <85
SEHEIR =R/ hK
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: 20040351

FHEIRE R - 20040351

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
BERY: —E-TFMNA+=H
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Volatile organic

compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEat
BRER Bfy S R ZRE B#R{EN
Organic waste gas emission mg/m’ Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 0.45 326
from old factory productionunit 25,/ 53 Fig R
REEEIRMEEENR
BRESHR
Waste gas emission from new mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 0.62 425
factory production unit BRIk Fig At
REF IR EESUNERHR
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) Not-Applicable
from plastic injection after waste ~ Z8,/3 73 Fig R R (N/A)
0as treatment NEf
BREERIBHEENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m?’ Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 0.36 299
from assembly pad printing after ~ Z% /3 Fk R R
waste gas treatment
BREEAAEBONEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND) 0.55 382
from spray painting after waste 28 /K Kb R
gas treatment
BREEREREENERNRD
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <1 <40 <70 <60
BREEHRE 25/ HK
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: 20040352

FHERERT 1 20040352

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020

RERS: —E-FENA+T=A
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Average speed FIEE
Year 2021 —E-—F

Lead and Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit its compounds compounds
BRER By hRELEYN BRELEY
Old factory production unit ka/h 1.4X10* 9.1X10°
EBEIRAEEEN NIV
New factory production unit ka/h 5.5X10° 1.7X10°
HImAEESN Afr/ N
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <7.0X10° <0.48
R R AR IVENS:
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a
RS RS + SGT-HJ21051302a

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
BEAE: —2-—-FRA+WH

Volatile organic

compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene B
BRI Bl 3 BE “RE BRIEN
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 1.8X10° 1.9x10* 1.8X10° N/A
from plastic injection factory NN TER
RE S TR ERNERAND
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 8.6X10° 2.4X107 7.2X10° 0.13
from pad printing NN
REBHOERENA
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.35 <22 <070 Not-Applicable (NA)
BEHHRE NN TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
£F ke wih ik TER

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051303
FHEREES « SGT-HI21051303

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
RERS: —E--£nA+MA
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Volatile organic

compounds
(VoC)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene B
BRER Bl 3 FS “RE¥ BRIEN
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 8.3X10° 6.4X10? 2.0X10° 023
from spray painting D/ NE
BREENERAND
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.50 <18 <0.60 Not-Applicable (NA)
BEUHRE NN TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass
Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051303
SRR « SGT-HJ21051303
Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
RERS: —E--£nA+MA
Year 2020 —E=—=F
Lead and Tin and
Waste gases of emissions Unit its compounds its compounds
BERER By HRELEN BRELEY
Old factory production unit ka/h Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
ERETHEEEN NN Aigt R
New factory production unit ka/h Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
FIBEESN NN Aigt R
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <0.014 <0.97
R R AR NN
Results - Pass Pass
#HR i A

Assessment Report Number: 20040351
SEHRE RS © 20040351

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
RS : —Z-TFMNA+=H
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Volatile organic

compounds
(vVoC)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEai
BRER Bfy b3 R —RR BRIELAY
Waste gas emission exhaust port kg/h Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)
from injection factory production A //)E R R R Kigit
REISTREERNER RO
Waste gas emission exhaust port ka/h Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 47%10° 39X10?2
from pad printing production NIV Kt R
REBOEENERGND
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <0.86 <54 <1.7 Not-Applicable (NA)
BREHRE NN TEf
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass
Assessment Report Number: 20040352
FHERERT 1 20040352
Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
BEAS: —E-FFMA+=H
Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEai
BRER Bfy x R —RR B#{EY
Waste gas emission exhaust port kg/h NA NA 5.8X10° 4,0X10?
from spray painting NN TEA TER
BAEERNERHND
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <0.86 <54 <17 Not-Applicable (NA)
BREHRE Dt /1N TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass
Assessment Report Number: 20040352
SHRERERT - 20040352
Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
BEAS: —2-FFMA+=H
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Al.2

During the year, a licensed party was outsourced by
the Group to carry out an assessment in May 2021
regarding to the number of discharges of VOCs,
benzene, toluene, xylene, and non-methane
hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also outsourced
the licensed party to carry out another assessment in
14 May 2021 regarding to the amount of lead and tin
emissions.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”’) Emissions

As the Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the
shift to a low-carbon economy is inevitable, and
everyone must play their part as a corporate citizen.
In order to facilitate such transition, the Group has
continued participation to the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) supply chain program which aims to
help CDP highlight and spur meaningful action on
tackling climate change by capturing vital data on
climate change.

This can improve collaboration and encourage
transparency. Our greenhouse gas emission is
reported on the platform in July on an annual basis.
We will strive to meet our air pollutants reduction
target of 2% by 2025.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 2R a5 BIER B2 BRI R EEE B R A

Al.2

RER > NEE R —ZFRE
TNHEE  R-F-—F
hRABETEZREERLES
weERBR CRERRIE
ik S A MH PR E &
1TaFfE - BEoh - NEE IR
—REBBRIMHERS R
E_-FRATHAHKR

HIFRERETTS TR

BERE(NRERE D HR

ERpHE L AERY &
EHEHRAE B I RS -
BAALFREBER/RELELAR
MPER - RlEERER - K
SECEE2 MR RIE
HEHERE %8s
EFEBREREZE(ENER
B HPRHXHETEY
RIRBEBITE °

ZEEAREEELIRS
ﬁEﬂFOﬁfﬁiitHEE%
FEREBEREHM - &
MBS HERI _T_HF
ZERSRBD 2% H B IR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

The greenhouse gas emission produced by the Group
is mainly arising from indirect emissions (Scope 2)
from purchased electricity for the production factory.
In addition, we also had direct emission (Scope 1)
principally resulted from the consumptions of
liguefied petroleum gas for running the factory
canteens, burning of diesel fuel and vehicles uses. The
GHG scope 1 emission from LPG remained stable for
cooking use in PRC factory canteen during the year.
The increase in the GHG scope 1 emission from diesel
was mainly attributable to the increased use of diesel-
consuming power generators for staggered power
consumption to tackle with the electricity usage
temporary constraint measure adopted by the
Guangdong Government during the year. Owing to
the persistent COVID-19 outbreak in 2021, the
reduced vehicle use frequency by the management
and staff led to the reduction of GHG scope 1
emissions of mobile sources in China. The increase in
GHG scope 2 emission was mainly due to the increase
in production volume of the EMS segment during the
year.

AEEAEREBHEENES
KEEELIREEE IHE
BEHEp (B8 2) o tEoh - BN
MEEERWR(EED) 2
KB LHEEFRR&R(EAM®
E B LMSU%FH$
W NFARN PERIHE
TEFMARAREABAD
BERBEE B MERE
FeoRELBHEERESR
ETHERE I - EEHAIEM
FRSBEEMEEER
B UNEHEREABTRE
EREX Y AR B FR B PR I R 7 o
EEE"_Y_*ECO\/ID 9%
SRS EEERELIFEA
BRI SRR R - WS
THEREBHRAEZER
BEEIE BN - AEREEEHE
2HERUE M EZHNFRNE
TRUERE D BOESIGN -
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The details of GHG emissions during the reporting RIREEAR - B ERETEN
period were as follows: FEBAT
Investment,
real estate
supply chain & 2020
medical services Total
Type of GHG emissions® Unit EMS RE RHE S 33
BEREHNES B ETHERE  HEERBERE @it
Scope 17 - Stationary combustion tonnes of CO-e 94.43 - 28.42
gE-ETMER B-gxes
Scope 17 - Mobile combustion tonnes of CO-e 527 - 586
HE-BEMER B-gltigs
Scope 2 tonnes of CO,-¢ 12,405.55 99.83 12,505.38 7,898.42
g5 B-gltigs
Total GHG emissions tonnes of CO-e 12,505.25 99.83 12,605.08 793270
BEREHHAS M-glthEs
GHG emissions intensity tonnes of CO,-¢/ 0.0003 - EMS: 0.01
REREHNTE unit of production Securities: -
volume tonnes of EMS: 7.83
C0,-e/employee 1259 2.2 Securities: 1.59
B ETEERE 001
E8/ESEN F5-
B8 STRERS 783
42/E8 HH 159
! The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and ! BEREHEREENE R BRI Rt R EKE
Reporting Standard” from GHG Protocol published by World Resources Institute and EHeRHZEEREREETETH fu:%:ﬁ?@iﬁ
World Business Council for Sustainable Development. EREEEHHE -
? Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group. ? BE: NEBMEGSIEHINER 2 ERHEN -
3 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by 3 HE2 : AEBERNCREE NES 2 BB -

the Group.
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste Al3 BEEEEY

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a
responsible way and strives to optimize the use of
resources. The Guangzhou factory has established a
comprehensive hazardous waste management
system and carries out disposal of hazardous waste
in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

Our hazardous waste mainly include waste active
charcoal with organic matters, waste lubricant and
engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and paint
residual. There is a separate storage area in the
factory for storing hazardous solid waste. Our factory
also works with institutions which are qualified for
handling disposal of hazardous waste. The increase in
the amount of solid hazardous waste generated was
mainly attributable to the increase in production
volume of the EMS segment during the year.
Furthermore, the increase in the amount of aqueous
hazardous waste generated in 2021 was mainly due
to more waste organic solvent generated from
repairs and maintenance work for factory machinery
during the year. The Group has set comprehensive
reduction target by 5% for reducing hazardous waste
generation by 2025.

REBBORUBEENTA
AEEEEY AFNEL
BIRAA - BINBEEZZL
EENBEEEENWERER
R WREBHBHEERR
ERRIEEEREREY -

BMMEEEENEERRE
BREDEER  BEEZBB
R - BEEILLE - B
REBRERY - %ZBE R
ERRTEHREERREEY
MEREE - BMEEREE
BEEEIELNEEREER
e MEENEREESRESE
%%{EPBDTJEKEEEAEW

*”LHW%’MIKE@FEi
ﬁJD o kAN RZBZ—FE
ERREEEREMHEIL
me HEZHRFR I
WEOBERE TIEELNE
EERABEEZ - XEEE
BREIN T _RAFEEEE
YIEE L E R D 5% K 2 R BE
BiZ -
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The details of hazardous waste generated by the AEBRBREHANEENE
Group during the reporting period were as follows: EEZEYHBOT
Investment,
real estate
supply chain & 2021 2020
medical services Total Total
Hazardous wastes generated Unit EMS RE EiE “E--F% —TCEZF
FELNEEREN Bfy STRERE HEERBRRE @t @it
Circuit board tonnes - - - 0.006
SR i
Steel bin tonnes 0.050 - 0.030
il i
Active charcoal tonnes 2.355 - 0.726
B R i
Storage battery tonnes 0.024 - -
EE ) i
Rag tonnes 0.060 - -
i 1
Light tube tonnes 0.018 - -
EE i
Waste resin tonnes 0.230 - -
FEEIPE 1§
Hazardous waste produced — Solid waste ~ tonnes 2.737 - 0.762
MEENEEREY - BBEEY i
Waste organic solvent tonnes 0.600 - -
BEGHAE i3
Paint tonnes 0.050 - 0.146
iy i
Waste ink tonnes 0.010 - -
BE i
Hazardous waste produced tonnes 0.660 - 0.146
— Aqueous waste i
FEENEEREY - REEEY
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 3.397 - 0.908
MEANNEZEENSRE i
Hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/unit of 0.001 - EMS: 0.001
MEANBZEENTE production Securities: -
volume ETRERY
W/ EEBM 0.001
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Al.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 BEEEY

Our non-hazardous waste generated from the
Guangzhou factory operation mainly consists of
scrap, wasted packaging materials, waste residual
from sewer and filter tank, as well as other domestic
waste. Wasted packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up.

We consider the principle of environmentally friendly
in our packaging design and select more eco-friendly
packaging materials for our packaging process.

In addition, the Group continues to implement paper
saving initiatives, such as double-sided printing,
reminding staff to have environmentally-friendly
photocopying practice, and separate collection of
waste paper for effective recycling. Recycling bins
are placed in office to regularly collect used paper.
Employees are encouraged to read and send files
electronically to reduce printing. With the increase in
the production volume of the EMS segment during
the reporting period, the amount of non-hazardous
waste generated increased. The Group targets to
reduce the generation of total non-hazardous waste
of 6% by 2025. The details of non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group during the reporting period
were as follows:

BFEMNBE S EMEERN
BEEBEEMIZEEEM
BEEBEME - TKERRE
T REE DA R L M AR BIR e
BEREMHIZEREEM
BRARME -

BAEBRRRG; LRFRRE
RATHEBEBETERE
IERRH)BEA Y

BhoN s REBEFERITEHLD
FAER  PlumiEREmiT
B REEIRFRROY
ENB1E Ko F U & ] A 2 [E
WHARNEL - BAEES
] U 48 - LATE HA B U A 4B Y
Mok - W EE THE R
EKBFE - WPITEH - R
HREHRRN BESFRER
BHBMESEN  IELR
BEEZYHE AR
me "EEHEERH=-F
CEFHREEREVEBER
L6% o NEBERREHANE
EREBEFEZEYFBNOT
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Investment,
real estate
supply chain & 2020
medical services Total
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ Unit EMS RE E#E “E-ZF
FEENESREY Efy ETHERE HREERBERE @
Scrap and wasted packaging kg 73,367 - 68,841
materials* NIy
BRREEREMH
Waste residual from sewer kg 38,000 - 27,000
and filter tank NS
TKERENES
Domestic waste kg 128,587 235 128,822 134,001
RN NI
Total non-hazardous waste generated kg 239,954 235 240,189 229,842
EANNEZSEENEE NIS
Non-hazardous waste kg/unit of 0.006 - EMS: 0.008
generated intensity production Securities: -
FEENNESEENZE volume EMS: 0465
kg/employee 0373 1194 Securities: 5.307
Afr/EREN BT EER
2T/ BB 0.008
BT EER
0.465
#% 5307
Scrap and wasted packaging materials include the packaging wastes and plastic wastes. 4 BER M EEREM AR REEY PR EEY)
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation
and emission reduction for green production. The major
resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
electricity, water and packaging materials consumed at the
factory in Guangzhou. We aim to improve our energy
utilization efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices and
emission reduction throughout our production and
operation and strive to save the resources.

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for
energy saving management which include in-house rules
for both office and factory employees to follow. Besides,
we have devised follow-up plan after the third-party
certifications for the ISO-14001 standard. Our environmental
management team helps set up the energy saving targets,
emissions reduction level and environmental management
programmes. Moreover, our General Affairs Department is
responsible for carrying out the monitoring work for
effective uses of energy and natural resources.

A2.1 Energy Consumption

We have implemented a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and minimize its consumption of
energy and natural resources. We also promote a
paperless office and encourage staff to reduce
electricity and water usage in their daily work to
maintain a green office.

In order to reduce the electrical energy consumption,
the Group gradually replaces the traditional lighting
tubes with energy-saving tubes which have higher
energy efficiency and longer life cycle by 6-8 times.

We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for equipment which aims at enhancing the
optimal use of machineries.

A2.

BIRH A
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FIFEITEE -

A2.1 BEIRGHFE
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In addition, a number of energy conservation
promotional banners and posters are post up in
various places to remind workers in production areas.
Through catchy slogan and posters, every worker can
pay high attention to environmental protection and
resource conservation. Moreover, we are engaging in
the periodical reporting on energy consumption
surveys conducted by interested parties like clients
and regional governmental bureau.

The Group has set inclusive total energy reduction
target by 2% by 2025. The increase in production
volume of the EMS segment led to the increase in
electricity consumption during the year. Energy
consumption of LPG remained stable for cooking use
in PRC factory canteen during the year. The
significant increase in the diesel consumption of was
mainly attributable to the increased use of diesel-
consuming power generators for staggered power
consumption to tackle with the electricity usage
temporary constraint measure adopted by the
Guangdong Government during the year. Owing to
the persistent COVID-19 outbreak in 2021, the
reduced vehicle use frequency by the management
and staff led to a slight drop in petrol consumption
during the year.
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During the reporting period, the details of energy REBEHA -
consumption were as follows: N
Investment,
real estate
supply chain & 2021
medical services Total
Type of energy Unit EMS RE RHE “B--F
HRER Efi ETHERY HEERBERE @t
Purchased electricity MWh 1485139 135.77 14,987.16
BEE FRE
Diesel MWh 255.28 -
% ThE
LPG MWh 12336 -
BILBER ThE
Petrol MWh 4288 -
ol ThE
Total energy consumption MWh 1527291 135.77 15,408.68
KRGS ThE
Energy consumption intensity MWh/unit of 0.01 -
BRERAE production volume
MWh/employee
ThE/EEEf 1538 302
TRE/A

RETRBFERTB

2020

Total
-“E-TE

- =%

st

9,530.00

1319

47,68

970297

EMS: 0.01
Securities: -

EMS: 9.49
Securities: 3.38
EFRERT - 001
25

BTRERE : 949

F5:338
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A2.2 Water Consumption

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the
municipal water supply. The Group has a strong focus
on the water conservation, and therefore tries to
prevent water pollution which is mainly generated
from workers’ living activities. The Guangzhou factory
uses the sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and
adopts water reuse so as to reduce the water
consumption and ensure water is used sustainably.

We build our own sewage treatment facilities in the
factory to undertake sewage treatment before
discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is
used for irrigation in staff living quarters. Moreover,
the factory has applied push-button taps instead of
screwdriver faucet in order to reduce water wastage.
In 2025, the Group targets to achieve the reduction
of the total water consumption by 2%. The increase in
water consumption was mainly due to the increase in
production of volume of the EMS segment during the
year.

The details of water consumption were as follows:

A2.2 FK

Investment,
real estate
supply chain &
medical services
Water consumption Unit EMS RE RHE
i3 Efy ETHERY HEERBERE
Water consumption m? 92,156 507
Ak Ik
Water consumption intensity m*/unit of 0.01 -
FkEE production
volume
m/employee 96.21 127
URK/EEEN
TR/ A
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A2.3 Packaging Material

Our packaging materials for finished goods mainly
include label, paper packing materials such as
cardboard box, plastic bag and Styrofoam. The Group
is dedicated to consuming the least packaging
materials as possible. It is the Group’s practice to
implement production planning in a timely basis so as
to assess the least amount of packaging materials
needed.

The Group is also committed to sourcing recyclable
packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly
practice and engagement. The Group targets to
achieve the reduction of the total packaging material
consumption by 5% by 2025. The increase in
packaging material amount consumed in 2021 was
mainly attributable to the increase in production of
volume of the EMS segment during the year.

During the reporting period, the packaging materials
consumption was shown in the following table:

A2.3 BEHE
%‘éﬁﬁzuﬂum ®EHMEBEEZE
ZEW EM R AR AE
Ei] ﬂ BRI R K8

Investment,

real estate

supply chain &

medical services

Type of packaging material Unit EMS RE BiE

BENNER Efy ETHERE HEERBERY

Label kg 2139 -
2% 7

Paper packing material kg 944534 -
REEMH Tr

Plastic bag kg 23,676 -
EHE R

Styrofoam kg 876 -
BRZIERRER 7

Total kg 971225 -
Bt Tr

The data of 2020 has been restated with the adoption of kg as the unit of packaging
material.
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FROBEME - AEE®
BEZA-TE_RAFERAN
EMRBEEZER 5% - B3
MEDERZEENFEEZ2HR
FRNEFRERB D HNE
S -

RBEHRA - BEMEER
BRIMT KRR

2020°

Total
oS
a5t

1801
944,534 753,702

25314

1,082

971,225

781899
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A3.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 2R a5 BIER B2 BRI R EEE B R A

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established a policy of “Environmental and
Safety Objectives, Indices and Plans Control Procedures” to
identify the Group’s environmental targets, implement
environmental plans and validate the achievement results.

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by
complying with all the applicable regional environmental
laws and regulations for our business activities in the PRC.
Besides, the Guangzhou factory has obtained the ISO-
14001 Environmental certification.

It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance obligation,
safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free, as well as
packaging materials recycling.

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental
targets into business decision making, we believe that
protecting the environment is always the crucial concerns
for our manufacturing nature business.

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
and Natural Resources

Under the rapid pace of industrialization, most of the
provinces and direct-controlled municipalities are
facing with smog in the PRC. This weather would
affect people’s lives and it is not beneficial to the
enhancement of sustainability rationale.

Hence, sustainable development could be boosted if
the corporations allocate the work based on the life
cycles and periods of the renewable resources during
the growth process.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection for
our business activities. Still, the Group has different
measures to save the energy consumption and
emissions, to reduce the impacts of the business
activities to the environment and natural resources.
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A4,

CLIMATE CHANGE
Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities, may be discussed by the Group’s ESG
Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our
strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external experts
when necessary to better support the decision-making
process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for
the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as
well as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to best practice standards.

Moreover, the ESG Working Group works closely with the
Group’s different operation departments, with an aim to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall level
of risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse risk
factors across the many categories in our product or
services range. This diversity of risk is combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
distribute risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and heat-
related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and reduce
their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios,
including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following
steps:

Step I: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes,
such as stricter policies including the introduction of and
increases in carbon pricing, as well as advances in
technology and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others,
we developed multiple future images of 2030 as the
external environment that will surround our Group. With
regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where
climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further (Beyond 2°C scenario).
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such
a society, it will be possible to expand carbon dioxide
reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of, and increase in carbon pricing
is anticipated in accordance with the global advance of
climate change measures, leading to the possibility of
higher raw material procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy during the production. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world through
these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in the life cycle of the product.

We are also working toward zero carbon emission from the
plants in the production stage and reducing carbon
emissions through comprehensive energy-saving and
introduction of renewable energy and hydrogen. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a
new target to achieve a 10 percent reduction rate for
purchased electricity by 2025. With regard to the ongoing
confirmation of the suitability and progress of the Group’s
strategies, we believe that we will have opportunities for
stable funding and sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure, dialogue with
institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to
test the existing risk management strategies under climate
change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas
where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step I: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

. Scale

. Time frame

. Climate change scenario for most climate variables
and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

. I[dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the past in the area

. Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3. Identify future risk and opportunities

. Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

. Identify potential hazards

. Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

. Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

. Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk
in future
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As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of directors in
order to identify, assess and manage climate-related risks.
The Group is to engage with government and other
appropriate organisations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our
daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor and
reduce their environmental footprint.

A4.1 Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-
related physical risks and transition risks, which have
impacted and/or may impact may impact our Group’s
business and strategy in (i) operations, products and
services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii)
adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment
in research and development, and (v) financial
planning, as well as the steps taken to manage these
risks, are as follows:
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

KARAERA RS (Y HE ik Mg AEEZERRMERNEE
Physical Risk
ERER

Acute physical risks
SHERERR

—  Increased severity and —
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones and
floods, strong wind. Staffs are
easily being injured. Also,

increases

under the extreme weather
events, the costs of
transportation,
communications and living
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

- BmAREH (NEEBR -
K - S8R K BR B RN SE R 4
me BEIRSGXE o b R
BmARREMT - B BIE
RAEEKAEE LR - lged
B EK -

BB RN I -

— Increased likelihood and —
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

severity of wildfire, which may
hinder the operations of
factories. Financial loss occurs
due to the interruption of
supply chain, logistics and
transportation.

- BHEILAE AR KRB E IS -
hn - ATBEPAE TR EIE - HE
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Operating cost —

Expenditures —

Adopted scenario analysis
to disclose an organization’s
planning under future
scenarios, most notably one
with in a 2°C scenario to
collect, manage and
measure the climate change
impacts such as emissions
and use of resources etc.

EERBIER DT A ERA L
EEARRIERHGE - BB
BT 20CERFHIEEETE -
LAYCER ~ BIRANAI 2 R R #
{EEIFE - INEERRAN &R
EE
Planned to establish a
natural disasters emergency
plan.
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks

RIR AR RS MY HE ik B AEEZSRBRMERNEE

—  More than a decade, —  Expenditures —  Contingency plans were
Guangzhou factory is in the increase in periodically tested for their
supply chain of Automotive monitoring and effectiveness. Records were
Industry. It is mandatory execution of the kept for their compliances.
requirements for the contingency plan.

manufacturing site to have its
contingency plan to satisfy
customer requirements in the
event of an emergency such as
utility interruptions, labour
shortages, key equipment
failure and field returns.
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Climate-related risk description

RAx

E B8 L B Y 4

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERRMERNEE

Chronic physical risks

/glm_:

HEEERR
Prolonged hot weather may
increase the energy

consumption.

BESERA TS LRLR
s#90 -

Climate change brings
uncertainties to the
environments of production
and sales. Although direct
losses will not incur by the
enterprises, they may still
affect and limit the sales and
production of the enterprises
significantly.

AR REERIEERIES
RAMEEN - BRELEIGE
EEEEE BRENEER
FENAEXINERTERR
il o

—  Revenue reduces
from decreased
production capacity
and the negative

impacts of
workforce.

- EfETERRERIAZE
WEEFEER =
W o

—  Administrative costs
for daily operations
increase.

-  BREEENTBAMAA
KB e
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Active energy management
and implementation of
various improvement
measures in accordance
with regulations and
customer requirements.
BEEREEP ERETE
B RE BN EESIBLE

Rk

Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks

15 A A [ B Y A Mg E REEZEE R mERE i

—  Prolonged climate change may —  Revenue reduces —  Planned improvements,
detriment the human’s health. from decreased retrofits, relocations, or
Continuation of temperature production capacity other changes to facilities
rise can increase the fatality and the negative that may reduce their
rates and incidence rates of impacts of vulnerability to climate
some diseases, especially the workforce. impacts and increase the
one related to cardiac and climate resilience in long
respiratory system; the spread term.

of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.
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— Involving in the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP) to
have declaration to:

—  Z2HEIREFEIER (CDP) LA
R

1. Reporting Scope 1 & 2
emissions,

1. WmEHELR28VBEHR
BR

2. Report an emissions
intensity &/or
allocated emissions,

2. WEHREER S
FeEVBERE -

3. Set an emissions
reduction target,

3. RMBHRER

4. Report emissions
reduction activities.
WEBBEEE) ©
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Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERRMERNEE

Climate-related risk description Financial Impact

15 1 A [ B Y A Mg E

Transitional Risk

BE R

Policy risk

R L B

— Asaresult of energy efficiency —  Operating cost
requirements, carbon-pricing increases due to
mechanisms increase the price increased insurance
of fossil fuels, or policies to premiums for the
encourage sustainable land factories.

use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increase the
operation cost.

—  HREREER - EBHESIE - TEERREENER
SIEAREEER - et BB N

b T 435 48 ) PR A R SR LR <R30
PEoR - EINEERA -

— Mandates on and regulationof ~ —  Administrative costs
existing products and services. for regulation
Contractors have to spend compliance on
much cost (compliance cost) mandatory
to update or maintain the equipment standard.
equipment to fulfil the new
regulations.

— HRAEmMMREEORENRR -  EroEblEREEE
o NBEATLEREXNA(E TEFRBITTIRBCAR o

FUBKA ) BT i AR - AT
BEEHE ©

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3Rz B BB BRI B EEE R A )

Planned to be involved in
carbon trading.

AEIZERR S -

Planned to purchase extra
amount of renewable energy
sources and adopt clean
energy in the operations to
reduce the carbon
emissions.

AHEIBERINEN I BL
RERERMESETRAS
RBEIR AR D BRIEIA -
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

RIR AR RS MY HE ik B AEEZSRBRMERNEE
Legal risk
AR

Exposure to litigation.
Manufacturers have to adapt
the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk
of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.
FARR o ARREEE - &
EEVBEEBRNEMNE R
RENER AR - —BREEE
SRR AN - RIEEREFRARBR

Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. Manufacturers
may have to spend much time
on fulfilling the report
standards to comply the new
obligations.
INERBEMRE BT - £EEA
BEREEBE LREEBERE
AR ABTTHEIERTS -

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance premiums
for the Group.

BRRARS RS
R FIR DN ER(E &
ERAIEIN

Inspection costs
increase for
environmental
emissions.

RIGHERET B hnie
BB o

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and
implemented GHG emissions
calculations in advance.

ERIRIRARELERNER
ED kﬁu EITEERAEHE
Eyﬂl‘]a = °

Environmental emission data
were verified by third-party
laboratories or consultants.

REHNEEBERAFE=1ER
EREMAETRE -
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Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERRMERNEE

Climate-related risk description Financial Impact
KARAERA RS (Y HE ik Mg
Technology risk
BTk
—  Developing the low carbon —  Capital investment in
energy-saving products and technology
energy saving technologies, development
the capital investment and increases.

R&D expense increase
consequently.

— FRERETREE m R ETRE R - BitHAEMERKE
fi ~ EAEERAEERBE N e
KB e

—  More green building strategies —  Administrative costs
with low-carbon, energy- for daily operations.

saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

- EZEH - fgERigessk - BAEZETHKASE
REGWEARTITERR - REST Pl

RAIREGHISS RPN FES
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—  Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving

products.
—  FrEIRERREEREIF -

—  Examined the feasibility and
efficiency of applying the
latest environmental
technologies.

—  EEEASIRREMNT
TR o
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Climate-related risk description
RIR AR RS MY HE ik

Financial Impact

B3

E/
-4

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRBRMERNEE

Market risk
SRR

—  More customers are
considering climate-related
risks and opportunities, which
may lead to changes in
customers’ demand for
products.

- BEENEFPERREEEER
R - rle SN EFPHERD
oK o

— Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

- MWHERNTHEEREZ -[ER
MIRREEWM | KASFEE
mEBNREERZ— -

— Increased cost of raw
materials. More
environmentally — friendly raw
materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.

= RPN - BERRAR
MEIRTREE IS E - &g m
BN o

Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

WA s 18 Je SRR Ey
L EBPAZD -

Administrative costs
increase for
compliance and sales
drop for non-
environmentally
friendly product
design.
BRRAITHRCAIE N -
FEIRIRE mak st B
SHE T -

Production cost
increases due to
changing input
prices and output
requirements.

WABEREDBRT
e EREERA
0 e

—  Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products
and studied the application
of recycled materials.

- InEHRMERTERES
EME TG R BE
MR o

—  Bought and selected
different green materials for
the raw materials of the
products.

- BERERTRESHEHE
BEQEEHH o

—  Reduce and simplify the
packaging of the products,
to lower the unnecessary
costs.

- BAPREBEERMNEE - A
FRAR TS EHI KA o
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Climate-related risk description
KARAERA RS (Y HE ik

Financial Impact

B3

E/
=4

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERRMERNEE

Reputational risk

=8

— Unable to fulfil the
expectations of the customers,
damage the Group’s reputation
and image.

- AERMREFPHZE- - BEAK
BEHBELTR

—  Stigmatization of our business
sector, such as more
stakeholder concern or
negative stakeholder feedback
on the product designed in a
less environmentally-friendly
way.

- HRANEHBHAISAL

INEAB NIRRT A REH R E
mE SR/ ERILAERS
&R EE -

Revenue decreases
from decreased
demand for goods
and the decrease in
production capacity.
EmH R RERE
TREBEW AR

Operating costs
increases from
negative impacts on
workforce
management and
planning.

M@ﬁ%i@&%ﬁiﬂéﬁ
HR B EEZEK
ZlSiEDH °
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—  Supported the green
productions.

- XEREeEmM-

—  Corporate sustainability
responsibility policy was
adopted by fulfilling the
social responsibility by
organizing more activities or
executing actions to
demonstrate how we place
importance on climate
change.

- EMOEAFEERRATH

R BBEBE SRR
f&fﬁi}i’%ﬁﬂﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂt
BER - AEITHEEE -
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During the reporting period, the primary climate- RS BE - EFEHNRE
related opportunities and the corresponding financial KRB ENMETE
impacts were as follows: Ul

Description of climate-related opportunities Financial Impact
KIFERKBNFEMEM Bk E

Resource efficiency

—  Reduce more packaging material usage —  Operating cost reduces through efficiency
—  RAERRZeEME gains and cost reductions
—  Reduce water usage and consumption - BB 25 PR AR D B R AR

—  ERAIKEIREER KB

Energy source

BE IR PR

—  Use of lower-emission fuel sources —  Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
—  {EREBERUAR R cost abatement

—  Use of supportive policy incentives — BBRFERERAREER L EEKRKAE

— (EREBEBEEEE —  Returns on investment in low-emission

—  Use of new technologies technology

—  {ERFTR — EBEEMIRE B

Products and services

B m MRS

—  Development of climate adaptation and —  Revenue increases through new solutions to
insurance risk solutions adaptations needs, such as insurance risk

— HIEREEERRRER LT ZE transfer products and services

—  Ability to diversify business activities —  ERIRER R RS E G K ARG S e T Sk

-  EZbEBEEMNEE FTERRTT ERAE A

Markets

%

— Access to new markets = Revenue increases through access to new

—  EAFTE and emerging markets

—  EBEARE R RIS E A
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Description of climate-related opportunities Financial Impact
SRR AE B 438 1Y S AR B
Resilience

oE

—  Participation in renewable energy programs —
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures

—  2HEA ARG EI R ERERET A A b

—  Resource substitution or diversification -

- BRER%Zrt

Metrics and Target

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities. The
energy consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions indicators are the key metrics used to
assess and manage relevant climate-related risks
where we consider such information is material and
crucial for evaluating the impact of our operation on
global climate change during the year. Our Group
regularly tracks our energy consumption and GHG
emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness of
emission reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to
contribute our effort to have minimal impact on
global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target
applies and base year from which progress is
measured are described in the section Al: “Emissions”
and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and

buildings
BIMERREE - L REFEEMRENIE N
miﬁfﬁfﬁ

Reliability of supply chain and ability to
operate under various condition increase
HpEsE R S RS EIRY T EENRE 1GR
Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

i 30 e (R oF 1 A RE Y T 2 o TR AR S 3 A A

HEITERALE

REBERMNBARE ST EN
S & B IR AR B AR &
is o MBEMRRE@AER
HBMEBRFERNE DI
FE 2N EmEEE
NS Jﬁz/ OB FE MOR

EREBGHOHREZE A
RS & B 1 R B R R AR 7

ERANEBRESEE - K&
ETHEMEREREIAE
RESBEDURIZE AR R BEE
MR WREEZR &
REREH2KERENTE
ELERL

BFRBEERENKHEERRK
AEERNEEFOHBH
AR E 58 AVER [BERR ] I
FAE[BERMA] - AEH
EERMEYE B IRAEER R
MR B S B A R R IR
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B.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

BI.

EMPLOYMENT

Quality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for
maintaining business sustainability. The Group has
implemented practices in accordance to our “Staff
Handbook” with respect to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
welfare and other benefits which complied with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Konag.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
benefits and dismissal. The dignity and individuality of each
employee is respected, and the privacy and confidentiality
of employee records is safeguarded. The performance of
employee is assessed solely according to their individual
ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

The Group offers internal promotion to employees,
whenever possible, within the Group. Promotion to a higher
grade normally depends on the availability of vacancy,
individual performance and potential to take up the new
position.

The Group provides an open, challenging and participative
environment for all employees. We aim to provide
opportunities for the development of the skills of
employees to the fullest extent possible, consistent with
the needs of the Group. Job performance is reviewed
annually, and this serves as an opportunity for the
supervisor to evaluate employee’s performance in an
objective and open manner, to discuss concerns, strength
and suggestions for further improvement. Employees’
remuneration and pay scale adjustment are made reference
to individual's performance and appraisal results, industrial
standard and market trend.

B.

tEIm

BI.

(A

BEAT RAKERITERAHE
HENEEEE - AKEERIEINER
TFM] BEmAEE M LRS- BB
RAEEF  TIERE - BE - 5%
e 2t RIERREN&E
BT A ER - AR R
FHET(REARLAME S B
E)APEARKMBESHER
EYRERBEMABBERERNOR

}'_\E_‘O

FEHE

PBREER  5Hl - 8 BE
BHRBERENNAEREEES
mARESEERER2EES
wenst SHEENEEREN
KESEEREENEAZRKE
FLBEEIRE - BB WEARRR
BRERS N TIEZRMNENE
1T -

B RH
®ER B E R AR R REAE
SORBEF - BAEE BRI
BB R TR B 26  BAKRR
REEHMB OIS -

&
oF

H

AEESRERBERRE—ET2
HEAFRBRFHRE - RAIEERH
e FAERNRAREERES
HAREETRKAOREE - THERR
RETTFERE - Mt AEERM
HeUEB R T A EEEN
R WAWAFREHOMEE - 8
NREZ o BB EF B N S 4R
T2REARBR M EER 7%
BRERTIGBEEL R -
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Employee welfare

For the Hong Kong subsidiaries, the Group offers special
arrangement to employees to leave work early on
important traditional days which are not public holidays
such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter Solstice, Christmas
Eve and Chinese New Year’'s Eve. The Group regularly
organises internal events to strengthen the sense of
belonging within the Group and boost the communication
transparency among all levels of employees.

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive workplace
where all its employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The Group provides equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and prohibits discrimination or
harassment against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, marital status, disability, race, colour, religion
and any other characteristics protected by the relevant
laws.

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Race Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with those applicable laws and
regulations.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 2R a5 BIER B2 BRI R EEE B R A

BEEF

REAMNBRARME  AEEARE
BIELEFRIZHE - LERENIIIE

BARBREAMEZEAEA (W
ME 22 FEREBRS )RR
L - AEBETERBRPRIES
URAZEBREERASENEB
B IaREmEmAE -

AEEHIRNEE—ERF -

B TIERIR - BATA B T 51 EE'J
BHNEE - AREEREBOEE)]
EREFERS W IFERKE
BEMABEANMLR - Fi8 - BE
IR~ B 'R B e R
BN Z R ARIREN TR E M
e

REBBRETTELREANERM
ERRER - BIE(REAR KM
REEE) (hEARANMEL
BEDE) - (REED) (FEEDE
57%) - CGREIMAE T &ED])
(BBEDIE4858) ~ (M RIELAR
By (BBEBIE 480 &) R(FE Ik
R AEHI) (BB ERIFEE02F) -
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Total Workforce

As at 31 December 2021, the employee compositions
(in percentage of employees) by gender,
employment type, age group and geographical

region were as follows:

Employment EfE

By gender TR B D

—  Male -5

—  Female —

By age group BERARE D
— 30 or below —30BREIA N
—  31-40 —31ZE405%
—  41-50 —41E505%

— 51 orabove — 51 E
By employment category RIERERE S
—  Senior management —RREEE
—  Middle management —hREEE
—  General -

—  Contract/short term —ABH, a8
By geographical region % 1th 38 2 35 Bl o
— PRC —

—  Hong Kong — &5

BIl1

1ER A2

R—ZZBE-_—F+=-A=

Annual Report F 3k 2021

:+_
H BEENEXAEEED
LR RIER - EBFEER
FhB R M I [ 15 &) 5 1A

T

2020

—EoEE

—= =

34%
66%

22%
31%
31%
16%

2%
5%
92%
1%

97%
3%
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B1.2 Employment Turnover Rate

Our Group’s employee annual turnover rate
breakdown by gender, age group and geographical
region during the reporting period was as follows:

Employment EE

By gender &% &2

— Male -5

— Female —Zk

By age group BRERAER B2
— 30 or below — 30 BRBIAT
— 31-40 —31E405%

— 41-50 —41E505%
— 51 or above — 51k A £
By geographical region % 1th 38 [ 35 Bl 2
— PRC —

— Hong Kong — &5

Overall Baos

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z 35 IR S8R EE AR A 7

B2 EBRAKIEE

REBERHEHRZER
FH AR N3t I8 [ 35 8 5 19
BESFRALEAAMT

2020
—E-ETF

61%
44%

132%
42%
21%
12%

50%
27%
50%
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B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group rigorously complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ((FE AR
FMEZ 2 A EJE )) and other relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong in order to maintain health and safety
working environment. Employment safety rules is included
in the Group’s Staff Handbook for regulating occupational
health and safety and on-the-job training is provided for
the employees in order to minimize the potential risk of
accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory obtained Occupational Health and
Safety Certification (ISO-45001) formulated by the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”).
Thus, there is effective guarantee of a healthy, safe and
stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by various departments according to the occupational
health and safety requirements of the respective region.
Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on
a timely basis. For the Hong Kong office, we have
implemented the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and maintained the operations of the
system to fulfil the requirements of OHSAS45001:2018.

Besides, the Group has established the Environmental
Health and Safety Steering Committee within the
Occupational Safety and Hygiene Management Committee.
The committee provides management support for the
implementation of this policy and sufficient financial
resources.

Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has implemented
several workplace safety policies so as to avoid fire and
industrial accidents, these include:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to
time so as to ensure the exit passageway is clear and

unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.

B2.

REREZ 2

AEBEBEBET(PEARIME
REEEXR) REBEMARARE
FOER DR EFEET 2T
RE - AEBETFMEEHERERE
ZEHRA ARBBERERAR
% - HAPITRA B B AR A BRI
BERELBESH LI BRI
&*HE@M:J—L B o

&M R B B ER 1S B B AZ X (b 2 4
(HsoJ)%U@ﬁH&%%ﬁ_}iﬁhm
(ISO-45001) * AEE - - &2 &
EHTERBIREE NHRE - B
BRVEH & B0 PTHAE A [ Y B 3
BERZ2RTETRE  TRE
A BB TETIER o LES
FRME @ WO TRERENE
EIRER  WHFHEBEURTE
OHSAS45001:2018 FVR IE °

BN REBBTEBER S REE
ERZEENHIRIREFTERE
2HEELREE - ZEBERANICR
MERREEESERTENIE
,\/J% °©

A - EINEE BT ZRIES

2B ABRANKRTIES

WM B

- ERGERANEFEE RN
/ﬁﬁﬁg‘%ﬂ% 3

. g %TM}&EMTJ@{%?

© BFABMAKERR -
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B2.1 Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities B2.1 EITHHPAZREE
Below is our Group’s number of work-related injuries REBNBE=ZFZFLL
and fatalities, and the rate of work-related injuries MEATIZERILT ABUAR
occurred in each of the past three years: ATZGHEERNT
Health and Safety Unit 2020 2019
RBEHEZZ B —ECETF —E-NF
Work-related injuries cases 17 21
AT®5 il
Work-related fatalities cases - -
EIT# il
Rate of work-related fatalities % - -
AT R %

B2.2 Lost Days due to Work Injury B2.2 HIEEAIERAH
Below is our Group’s number of lost days due to work AEERBE=FNAEIE
injury of the past three years: BARTIERHNT -

Health and Safety Unit 2020 2019
RBEHEZZ B —ECETF —E-NF
Lost days due to work injury days 379 903

AIBEETIERHE PN
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B3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places strong emphasis on the career
development of individual employees. Employees are
encouraged to keep abreast of the changing world and
pursue continuing educations, so as to cope with the
rapidly changing society and meet the evolving corporate
development needs.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in
individual continuing education programs which are related
to their job duties, with a view to strengthening the
professional career training of its staff teams, promoting
professional expertise of management teams and
stimulating the potential abilities of employees. In addition,
in order to enable new staff to fit into the Group and
comprehend the Group’s policy and corporate culture as
soon as possible.

We provide basic orientation training for all new staff and
provide its management personnel and employees with
on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to
intensify its efforts to promote staff training programmes.
This helps provide the necessary protection for talent
reserves for corporate development.

B3.

R MIE

$%*E§?ﬁ1§éﬁ1/\ﬂ@$%%§
 WekEE B 2 EIY# - 58

Lf§ : AﬁﬁﬁAEl%ﬁﬂ EMEIE

HPRSRERNFR ©

AEESEES T2MERTEREME
RAEVE AEIERRTE - LADNSR B TFX
BRI - BABEBRBRNE
EMB N B TRERE - 1IN
REFESTERNFTRBARE
C TEASEOBERMEEX
1E -

AEBRMAHE TIRHEABER
Bl YARMNEREABRET
REERHE Bl EMKE
PABRTH R OB BE R A - AR E
FEMRETE THIIRE - R
ENBERBFAT HBRHCED
REZ o
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B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained

During the reporting period, the percentages of
employees received training by gender and
employment category were as follows:

Training

Percentage of employees trained

By gender

— Male

—  Female

By employment category
—  Senior management
—  Middle management
—  General

—  Contract/short term
Overall

ZillEEES L
EMURI B

— B

-k
ZERER B2
—RAREERE
—HREEE
-

— &K/ B8
L

During the reporting period, the composition of
employees received training by gender and
employment category was as follows:

Composition of Employees

Received Training FIEERK
By gender T RIE D

—  Male — 5%

—  Female —

By employment category RERBERE S
—  Senior management - EREEE
—  Middle management —FRRERE
—  General staff - —REE

—  Contract/short term — &K/ a8

The data of 2020 has been restated for comparative purpose.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z 35 IR S8R EE AR A 7

B3.1 ZIlEEE DL

REBERA - LT R ER
BRIEOHNEIEER DL
(I

2020¢
e Sl 2230

109%
101%

125%
92%
104%

103%

RIBERA - LR N EMRE
B|RIE DX I BB

2020
—E-EF

35.9%
64.1%

2.8%
5.0%
92.2%
0.0%

ZE_TENBBRC TEIIAELLER
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B4.

B3.2 Average Training Hours Completed per Employees

During the reporting period, the average training
hours by gender and employment category were as
follows:

Training bH |

Average training hours FZ IS

(hours/employee) (B8 ER)
By gender R R &2
—  Male -3
—  Female —
By employment category RERERE S
—  Senior management —BRERE
—  Middle management —HFREEE
—  General - —®
—  Contract/short term —&H,/ a8

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with International Labour
Standards and the PRC’s “Provision on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour” { Z£ |F 8 F§ & T #8 € ). Besides, no
juveniles under 16 years old are recruited.

In order to maintain harmonious labour relationship, the
Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment
discrimination and occupational discrimination. The Group
protects the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and
leave days according to relevant government laws and
regulations. During the year, the Group strictly complied
with laws and regulations relating to employment and
labour practices in the PRC and Hong Kong.

B4.

B3.2 B EREETHZIINF I
-y

R|BERA - LI R EMRE
18 5 &1 1 F 19 X 5 By 2

2020
—E-TF

23.7
111

43.0
44.4
13.0

Rl

REBBARETRER S TAR R H
BECEILERETRE) © o -
B BEE R TRIeERNET

RRBNHENBERE  AEER
RITBERESE  BRAEGER
BEREAR - ARESRRETHE
RARNOER - REBR TIRE MK
BEVERN - RER - AEBERE
ST B R BB ER LS TIERIE
RREAR
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BS.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The principal raw materials used in Guangzhou factory
production mainly include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and
battery. At present, the majorities of manufacturing
materials are purchased domestically. The factory typically
procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers.

In order to ensure that the raw materials and components
procured are of the requisite standards, our Purchasing
Department is responsible for procurement of raw
materials, and managing the sourcing arrangement for our
supply chain. An approved vendor list is maintained for our
principal raw materials and components and the vendor list
is reviewed periodically.

To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the
supplier selection process to systematically evaluate and
qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter its supply system and become its qualified suppliers,
thereby facilitating its stable procurement development.
According to the Group’s “Standard Operating Procedure”
and quality management system relating to the supplier
management process, the Group is to carefully manage
and selects qualified suppliers and carries out regular
evaluations to safeguard the quality of raw materials. Apart
from the quality, the Group selects the suppliers based on
the price, locations and flexibility. After the comparisons
between various aspects, the supervisor of the department
will choose the most suitable supplier and report to the
Operation Director. Once non-compliance of the supplier is
discovered, the supervisor of the department will inform
the supplier to make corrective actions within a time limit.
If no improvement is made, the supervisor of the
department and the Operation Director have the right to
terminate the cooperation.
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B6.

Besides, we ensure our product delivery schedules are
properly fulfilled, and establish a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers. Customers become
more concerned about environmental issues and stress the
importance of using environmental-friendly materials. We
will continue to communicate these demands with our
suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with suppliers
regarding their ability to deliver environmentally-friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and
work with them to maximize societal benefits.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even
exceed our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed
a strong emphasis on quality assurance and adopted
stringent quality assurance procedures at different stages
of its business operation including the pre-production
process, the procurement of raw materials and
components, the monitoring of production processes and
the inspections of finished products to ensure the qualities
meet our standards.

B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped
subject to Recalls

During the year, neither the products sold nor
shipped were subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
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B6.2 Customer Relationship Management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s competitiveness, and the Group is to
continuously strives to improve on this aspect. The
Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives to
provide high quality products and services by
continuously addressing the concerns of customers
are looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” ( E1EE & K8 1B & RS 1E
HIF2 7)) has been set to standardize the procedure
for customers communication in order to promote
operational consistency and faster responsiveness to
customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedbacks relating to its products which
are used as important references in its constant
efforts to improve product quality and promote
customer satisfaction. The Group is always trying to
improve and handle the complaints or feedback
quickly to resolve any issues. A Customer Services
Department has been set up to maintain ongoing
communication with customers and ensure the Group
can provide excellent service.

During the year, the Group did not have any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related
to product responsibility.

B6.3 Intellectual Property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting and
protecting intellectual property and ensuring we
respect the intellectual property of others; we protect
the fair competition environment and comply with
industry standards and criteria. During the year, the
Group had not experienced any infringement of its
intellectual property rights by third parties. In
addition, the Group was not involved in any material
violation, litigation or legal proceedings for violation
of intellectual property rights during the reporting
period.
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B6.4 Quality Assurance B6.4 EEME

The Group’s production facilities had been
successfully transited to the new version of Quality
management systems ISO-9001 and that of IATF-
16949 certified for manufacture of printed circuit
boards assemblies since 2011. Moreover, the updates
of the two certificates have been obtained in
December 2020. In addition, Guangzhou factory was
1SO-13485:2016 certified for Medical Devices during
the year.

The Guangzhou factory has a team who is
responsible for quality control and quality assurance.
[t also has an independent quality assurance
department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters.

Quality assurance functions are performed
throughout the production processes from the raw
materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages, with an aim to ensure that
the products can meet the required national
standards and certain industry standards applicable
to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory mainly include:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics
Assemblies for PCBA workmanship
requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances

Directives 2002/95/EC); and

(iii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemical substances).

AEBMNEEREE T
——FRKINBEEHRE
£ &1 B2 K 1S0-9001 & EN Rl
BB IR A L E RIATF-
16949 7 ° LN » MIERRE
ERZZTE_ZTEF+HE
o B ENMNBERER
i iB B E 28 MIS0-13485 ¢

EE
2016 RE °
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TERMH EAFREBRERE
EmfTEERNBELET
F#——ETEERE
BRERZEBRENERE
EREBRERERNTER
% o LB LE mIRMITT
ERERRE

(i) PCBAT # & sk HJIPC-
A-610F B F4HHF AT EE 5
r|+£ ;

(ih BEYWEZERES
(RoHS 2002/95/EC) :
54

(i) 2R 7 &
1 R HEAR(REACH) ©
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Our products are also in compliance with various
international safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are
applicable to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii)  CSA standards — standards for product safety
and performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory
certification system concerning product safety
in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health
or environmental requirements.

Most of our products and servicing that provided to
our customers are mainly environmental-friendly and
lesser-impacts-to-climate. In addition, Green
Purchasing Policies adopted for the selection of raw
materials for our manufacturing which are
conforming to legislative requirements of RoHS and
REACH.

B6.5 Consumer Data Protection

The Group is to put great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy and implement stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security. Only authorized staff
is allowed to handle the private consumer data, and
consents must be obtained from the Board to provide
the consumer data to the externals. If the consumer
data is leaked, the Group may pursue legal
responsibility for the relevant staffs.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the
main corporate business ethics principles for many of the
world’s premier enterprises. We advocate honest operation
and fair competition. Besides, we require our staff to
comply with the national laws and regulations, as well as
the Group’s regulations in relate to anti-corruption practice.
To promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anti-corruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

B7.1 Number of Concluded Legal Cases regarding
Corrupt Practices

During the year, the Group did not receive any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related
to anti-corruption.

B7.2 Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing
Procedures

As part of the Group efforts to make anti-corruption
an important corporate management culture, it sets
up whistle blowing channels to help prevent any mis-
conduct, malpractice and irregularities. All staff must
comply with the Group’s business code of conduct,
which aims to prevent corruption from a system
perspective. The Group also continues to improve its
internal control and monitoring system. If problems
are identified, the Group will take immediate
corrective action and have a zero-tolerance approach
to corruption in order to prevent irregularities.
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B7.3 Anti-corruption Training Provided to Directors and B7.3 BEEREIRMHNKRES
Staffs b
The Group provided training sessions of anti- AEBREERETIRER
corruption to the directors and staff. At the end of BEEIRE RREH
the reporting period, the number of employees K IZEEEREDHNES
received anti-corruption training and the training RESEINRE AR
hours by employment category were as follows: SR BTN T

2020
Anti-corruption training REFE —ETF
Number of employees ZIEE A
received training

—  Board of directors —EFg 6
—  Senior management —EREEE 4
—  Middle management —HRERE -
—  General staff ——fRBI 6
Total employees EEHAY 16
Number of training hours FHIRFE
—  Board of directors -Bxg 1
—  Senjor management —BREEE 1
—  Middle management —HFREEE -
—  General staff ——fRET 1
Total training hours BB 3
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B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

B8.1 Focus Areas of Contribution

BS. HREILE
B8.1 EXEEiEE

In terms of community involvement, the Group
continues to organize a corporate social responsibility
program in order to encourage employees to
participate in community services and contribute to
care needs of the community.

B8.2 Resources Contributed

As part of our efforts to promote education, the
Guangzhou factory has established the “migrant
workers’ child education subsidize program” to
support the education of the worker’s children. The
table below shows the number of migrant workers
benefited from the “migrant workers’ child education
subsidize program” and the total amount subsidized
to them:

B8.2

EHESESE  AREE
BB RN EEEHE
5 )R B 2 8 E RS -
BRHEE -

FrE &R

RIRERE - BN ITEKL
([RIFRHEMBFE ]
NZFHTATROHE -
[RIFLHEMUAE] X
SR T AN ARS
KR

Community Investment Unit 2020
HERE By —E-TF
Number of migrant workers benefited people 189
Z@mRTAH A 189
Total amount of subsidy to the workers RMB RMB98,000 RMB94,500
T AfHEL A% ARETT NG LN A 594,500 7T

The Group also supports community development by
cash donation. The table below summarises the cash
donated by the Group to different charities during
the previous reporting period:

AEEMEBRS BYKZ
BAEERE. Tt AE
L
EHIBISENIR S F0E

Donation Amount

BHESEE

HK$'000

Description H FET

Five Virtues Developmental Project 2019 —NFRITEREE 46

“Harmonious City in Tuen Yuen Tin [ ZHRKEEERTE] 518 250
EZNRKERKEE" 518

Total et 296
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In August 2020, the Hong Kong office collaborated
with ARCH Community Outreach (ACO) to organize
a career program to the high-achieving Hong Kong
local school students from under-resourced
backgrounds, to provide them with mentorship ad
careers opportunities platform to bridge the gap
between academic and future career success. 4
selected students enjoyed this program. The Program
provided selected students with (i) Mentorship, (ii)
Summer Career Exposure through Internship/Job
Shadowing and Industry Careers Training Workshops.
Through the program, we hope the platform would
help to maximize the potential of these high-
achieving and under-resourced students by inspiring
and empowering them to believe in themselves, and
to help them understand how they can make a
positive difference to their communities. Meanwhile,
the Hong Kong office also collaborated with Child
Development Initiative Alliance (CDIA) to organize
another program “Y-WE 2020”. 2 teenagers in the
program were invited to our Hong Kong office to
enhance their work exposure. According to the
independent research conducted by the Department
of Social Work and Social Administration of the
University of Hong Kong, this program could broaden
their horizons and raise their confidence in the
planning of the future career paths.

For the Shanghai office, the company places social
responsibility on the importance of business
development. In October 2020, the company had
provided the spare parking lots of the company to
the parked delivery vehicles to relieve the traffic
congestions in Pudong District, Shanghai due to the
parking of the delivery vehicles on the main routes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

RIE - HE@REAMER

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHE EEH —REERBRERER E=4:1] BH

A. Environmental

A. EE

Al: Emissions

Al = HERRYD

General Disclosure “Emissions” 48-49

—MRIREE [HER

KPI'AlL.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant 50-57
emissions data Emissions”

BB DHEIR ALY HERU I AR B BUE [BERY) — =R RBERY

KPI'Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 59
appropriate, intensity Emission”

FRETUEIZEA2 RERBEHNER(WER)EE [BERY) — RERBHEHRY

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where  “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 62
appropriate, intensity

BRBEPIERAS MELAEEEVRER(WER)TBE [HER) — B EREEY

KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Non-hazardous 04
where appropriate, intensity Wastes”

BRBETIERAL ELERIEEVEER(WER)TRE [HER) — EEREEY

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions — Air Pollutant 49,58
and results achieved Emissions”, “Emissions —

Greenhouse Gas Emission”
MRERIERAIS HEIUREBERENERRAERR [HER) — RS R ] -
[HERY) — REREHRY
KPI' Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non- “Emissions — Hazardous and 61,63

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved
BRI BUEIR AL
EMNERENFTEKER

il gRIE A E NEEEEYNIE

Non-hazardous Wastes”

[BEm) — BEREEEZEY
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TRHEE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIRFA

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 65-66

—MRIREE [&RA A

KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by “Use of Resources — Energy 67
type in total and intensity Consumption”

BB A R IR A2 RENESMERER AEEEREEERE [BRAA - EREE]
E

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water 68

Consumption”

BREWIEIZA22 BEREKERZE [ERF A —KiEE]

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives “Use of Resources — Energy 65-66
and results achieved Consumption”

BRGENIEIR A3 fdtBE R A a s 8 R AT R [ERFA — geREE

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in “Use of Resources — Water 68
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption”
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FARBHIEZA24 fACKEGERKR ERTAEAEE - UREFA [BRMA - kEE]
F7K a5 T 8l R PSR R

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished “Use of Resources — Packaging 69
products and, if applicable, with reference to  Material”
per unit produced

BREBUERA2S  ERGAAREMENEER (WER)SEE [BRMA — 8EME]

e
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TRHEE -EEH —REERBARENER E=4:0] BEH
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
I IRBERBARER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 70
Resources”
— MR EE [REREAER]
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of N/A
activities on the environment and natural activities on the environment and
resources and the actions taken to manage natural resources during the year
them
BB DAEIR A3 HEREDHRERBRERNEATER RERN TEEXFKIHEHRER N3
ERNEEEMETZEMNTE BREREFXEAEATE
A4: Climate Change
A4 SEAREME
General Disclosure “Climate Change” 71-75
— R EE [ SRS
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  “Climate Change” 76-86

issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them

BREMIEZRAL AR KARESHBETAEEZENERR
FHEBEEE  MEXKREEEBEENTH

[SRIRE L]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TRHEE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

B. Social

B. #®&

Employment and Labour Practices

EREREIER

B1: Employment

Bl : {Ef%

General Disclosure “Employment” 87-88

—MRIRE (1]

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, “Employment” 89
age group and geographical region

BB 4B R IR BI =R EEEL - FRARNRMESSHNE [1EfF]
B

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group “Employment” 90
and geographical region

RSB RIEIR B2 RUER - FRARNRMREDNEERALE [ERE]

B2: Health and safety

B2 @EEZR

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 91

—MRHEE Kizg53iryoaeall

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work — related fatalities  No fatality case occurred in each N/A
occurred in each of the past three years of the past three years including
including the reporting year the reporting year

FRAEBUEIZ B2 BE=F(REERFE)BFAITHHIAY RBEZ=F(REERFE)LE iE A
Kb HIRE T iEZR

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 92

BREMIEREB22 REIGEXIERH [MERREZ 2 |

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety “Health and Safety” 91
measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

FRRERIEIRB23 UMM ERRET 2R - ARIEHE [RRERZ S

HITRERTTA
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TRHEE -EEH —REERBARENER E=4:0] BEH

B3: Development and Training

B3 : #& MIEF

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 93

— MR EE K= 958=EN

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by “Development and Training” 94
gender and employee category

B AE BUIEIZ B3 BRI REEBENESHXIIEEB DL K= 958=EN

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per “Development and Training” 95
employee by gender and employee category

FRERIEIEB32  RURNRESENES BREBTKRIIN [BRESEI]
PR R

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : &5 T 48|

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 95

—RRHEE [ 45 T8 |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 95
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

BB A R 1R B4 T I BRI B AR R E T RaEHI25 [T
T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such “Labour Standards 95
practices when discovered

FRENIEIEB42 HAEBRRERBNFERE@ERAMERIRE [ST48)]

a7
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TRHEE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
Operating Practices
EEEH
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 - ftiEHE R
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 96
—RHEE [ rEseE IR |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region - N/A
BB AE IEIE B5 Tihle S DR R EE - ANiE R
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  “Supply Chain Management” 96-97
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored
BB RIEIEBS2 M ARMERAEEENED  MERTERE [HERERE]
PIRHEREE - U RBEERTRERTA
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 96-97
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
BRERIEIEBS3 MM AMBNHEREARTNRERME SR [HERERE]
BEVIER - LA RARBRIT R EE R
KPI B5.4 Descriptions of practices used to promote “Supply Chain Management” 96-97

RASAE 515 B5.4

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored

T TE IR R R B 2 2 % IR IR o LIRS
BB - ARAERIBN T R EER TR

[ftrEst e |
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TRHEE -EEH —REERBARENER E=4:0] BEH

B6: Product Responsibility

B6: EmMET

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 97

— MR EE [EmET]

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  No product sold or shipped was N/A
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recall for safety and

health reasons during the year

52 48 N FE1R B6.) Eﬁiaiiémﬁﬁ¢ﬁ§%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ RERNRABELEXDEXERA A3 A
AR A 5 %5 B FEIE f A B R

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related “Product Responsibility — 98
complaints received and how they are dealt ~ Customer Relationship
with management”

BB NIEIEB6.2 EEENERMBREHRFEEAREE T E [EmEE - EFRBERER]

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  “Product Responsibility — 98
and protecting intellectual property rights Intellectual Property”

BB NIEIRB6.3 Rt B MRS A E R e E D [EmEE — AHERE]

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  “Product Responsibility — 99-100
recall procedures Quality Assurance”

FRERIEEB64 B SRTEREREDEKIET [EMET - E2%TE]

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  “Product Responsibility — 100-101

BB 4E FEIZEB6.5

privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

HUE B E B RHRIE RALRECR - ARAEER
TRERRFE

Consumer Data Protection”

[EmEE - HEEEMRE]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TRHEE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
B7: Anti-corruption
B7: R&)S
General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 101
—MRHEE [RES]
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding “Anti-corruption” N/A
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the case
R AERUIEIE BT RERMAHBITASEEERETEELEN [REF] A E A
BEISFARMNEE RFAER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and “Anti-corruption” 101

whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
BREBUEIRB72 WP EEERERIET UAREERTRE [RES]

BIE

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “Anti-corruption” 102
provided to directors and staff

FRERIEER7Z HllmESZRE TIRENRESET [R&)5]

Community

#HE

B8: Community Investment
BS : tEIEE

General Disclosure “Community Investment” 103
—HEE [FLEEE ]
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education,  “Community Investment” 103

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

BB A FETR B8 HIEREE(MHE  BREFH $ITF R [HEERE]
R b - $858)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time)  “Community Investment” 103-104
to the focus area
FREDIEEBS2 HHEIHEMBALER(WESELRHE) [HtEREE ]
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 2 December 2020 and approved by
the Registrars of Companies of Hong Kong, the name of the Company
was changed from Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. to Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited. The Company changed its
Chinese name from IREEBIBRBEX AR AR to R ERBERKEE
AR F which is part of its legal name.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review; (ii) principal risks and uncertainties; (iii)
future development of the Group’s business; (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance; and (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

“Key risks and uncertainties”, “Prospects”,

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 278 to 279 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.

EECMAREEFERERLAEHFE T
T+ A+ B FENSEREAE
ﬁ%#&i‘%f’

FIRUNCIE=S i

BEARBRZZEZSF T+ A HEITHR
RERIAE LRBNEIRBERREETARR]
AMEE R ER - NQRHE BB Lnk-
Asia International Co. Ltd. B 2 ALink-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited » 1 A& A
AR X EEAIRIRTRBEEZEAR AR ER
RIEDEBRBEREEEER AR (EBEE
ELBH—E5) -

EFEXH
ARAZ EBEHRIERR - NRBMEA
AZ T EXBREMAMNFBERERGAME

HERME23 - AFERN > AEBZ T E2EKM
B B ERE

EBEER
M

BAEOEBLEE : (YEERRETHBEEZE
(NAEEREBRRER  (v) RRFIAIRIRK
BRER: ROARAREARARREELEEKR
FENHBEZERERNERBRZHBES
HRAFRIBEENREDNT] A EBKE
Bl [TE2EEETHEARE] - [f18] 3R
E M EROCEERR] R [EFTERRER] &
ffi o

NEBHBRBRESHAKERAFERE KRR
EHZ DM R ANFHRE2IBE2IIEAE
B2 AFMHHRE

AEECETHERERBEBNERZRE
B BEERERER  ITHERE BERR
%o ARASRERERRLRRANTRFEH
RARE B RERREN -
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 139 to 143.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 278 to 279. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$48,000 (2020: HK$411,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

AEBRAAREEGOKNEREERNE
M F - BiEEE 5P HER  R/T B
ERENRIR - AEEREERRES 2R
NERBEREENGER AR -

MEFMAE  AEERFARLEHRLHAR
SEXBEERLEREAFENEATETER
ERFOEBEEMR -

FERBE

AEFEHE T -_—F+_A=+—RHIFE
ZEREANEBRZAB 2B SRR SR E139
EEUIHZEBREAPBRE -

EsefEaZ k¥ 2T -_—F+=-A
=+ —AEFEZRB(ZE_2F : )

M E

AEEBETEAYBRFEZCNERERE
E - BENMEERBDE 2 MEBHNE28E
2198 - ik B KBRS AMBERE - &M
BVWIFARFRDERZGEPBRR D -

EERK

REBPNAFERNEHBEZHEFEL 48,000
BT (ZZT T : 4N,000/87T) °

LN

ARRBRARANEE 2 BB F TN A FRAR
BRI ES -

BTl EE

AR AAABERARISH AR B EMALFER
FREERERE AP EBEMNARELEER
2 IEX  MIEARRBZAZLLHIRIRE BRI
2BREFRD
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company
in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately HK$207.6 million.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. None of such related party transactions constitutes connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BE 0
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N

Blek HERRRZ ETES
REBE-TE-—F+-A=T—HLFE &
REASEEEFAMBARMERE  HELER
RN LTS o
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AR DR BRI 5 B & REHE
B/ REET - REFEHBSRRVERELQF
MRS M MARRIGRSC - AR BRI B A AR
R ERR - ARAR BIRREH 2 IR SR A
B EREZEEEZESIRSURNREE K - K
RAVERBENXNAEEBHE M E -

RNZZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8  xAFAHS
IR #975207,600,000 & 7T °

HETRS
AEERAKNFEREZBEN R TINAREFR A
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Continuing connected transaction

On 24 December 2018, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Telefield Holdings Limited (“Telefield”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Telefield Group”) and Noble Treasure Holdings
Limited (“Noble Treasure”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Noble Treasure Group”) entered into a master sale agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to
Noble Treasure Group and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase
from Telefield Group the EMS products for a period commencing from
the 5th business days from the date of the Agreement or such other
day as may be agreed between the parties to 31 December 2020 (both
days inclusive).

As at the date of the Agreement, Noble Treasure is owned as to
approximately 17.40% by Telefield Charitable Fund Limited and
approximately 82.60% by Dragon Fortune International Limited. Each
of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund
Limited is interested as to approximately 53.30% by Century Win
Industrial Limited which in turn is interested as to approximately
53.68% by Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve and approximately 46.32% by
Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte, a spouse of Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve. The
approximate 46.70% interests in each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited are held as to
approximately 6.50% by Ms. Fok Pui Yin, approximately 8.64% by Mr.
Lee Kai Bon, approximately 8.64% by Mr. Ng Kim Yuen and
approximately 22.92% by other independent third parties. As each of
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, Ms. Fok Pui Yin, Mr. Lee Kai Bon and Mr.
Ng Kim Yuen is a director of Telefield, Noble Treasure is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company. Mr. Cheng Han Ngok
Steve resigned on 31 December 2018.

FHERRER S

RZE-—NF+ZAZ+WMHE - ARAAMHE
2 &M B AT Telefield Holdings Limited
([Telefield ) & H fff & 2 7] ( 45 78 [ Telefield
EEDEBEZRBRAR(EE]) REH
BAr(#Z B EEEE DI YAHEERZ
(T ]) - Bk - Telefield EERIBAHE £
EHERSBEEERZM Telefield EEERESE
FRERBER  FHEWZA BB ERE
EER(SETHA B EMNEAEMBE) 8
BEEZTETF+ZA=+—HAL(BES
EmMA) -

RipZEBE  MEATEESESERAFR
BEEZEKEERA G DB %A #17.40% &4
8260% s - EEBIRBRARIRPEESE
E2BRAABDIBLEZEERBRARERLN
53.30% fEzs + M4 & B BTk 5t 4 IR BRI R %
ERBHE R T 5 B %A £53.68% & 4
46.32% Hets - LB AR AR RFERSE
SHEBRRAEAMDL670% B EME
T FEREE RGBT EAREMBILE
ZHADRIEB#6.50% - £78.64% - 478.64%
H12292% 1% - AR EE ML L EMBE L
T FEBEERRBIRTLE A Telefield I E
FALMEARRRNKEBRRE@DEE
AL BEHEBREEENR T —N\F+ A
=+—HEE-
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The following pricing principles were determined between Telefield
and Noble Treasure after arm’s length negotiations and on normal
commercial terms with reference to the prevailing market price of the
EMS Products:

1. The sale price of the EMS products supplied by Telefield Group
to Noble Treasure Group will be equivalent to or higher than
those of the same or similar products that Telefield Group supply
to other independent third parties, if any; and

2. The sale price as agreed between Telefield Group and Noble
Treasure Group after negotiation should not be altered, adjusted,
varied unless both parties agree to alter, adjust and vary the sale
price in writing.

The Directors expect that the maximum aggregate annual fee payable
by Noble Treasure Group to Telefield Group under the Master Sale
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020 shall not exceed HK$18.5 million, HK$20.5 million and
HK$22.5 million respectively.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24

December 2018 and 6 March 2019.

The Telefield Group and Noble Treasure Group have not entered into a
master sales agreement when the Agreement was expired.

LATNEBXED I Telefield R M B & A TER
BIRTEREGRT2RE FEERGERD
WITHEET :

1. Telefield fEM A ESEBEMHENE FRE
AR E A HE B R m M Telefield
EmEEMBLE = HENERSE
EEMIBEEE(WE) &

2. Telefield 5 %] 2 1) B 5% B A TE RH 1R 175 7E #9
HEETBENR - #FE 5] RIES
AT AEE S AREER - #HEBRE
AIHEE -

EXEE BREHERERBZE_Z—N
FZE-NAFRZFTFTA=1+—H
FE=EAFESFHEEEEN T Telefield £
W= FEAE RS BT 818,500,000 %
7T * 20,500,000 77T % 22,500,000 A 7T, ©

E—FHBEHIRARRBHA-_ZT—N\F
+- AZtTHBERE-Z—AF=ZAHHA
&,

Telefield £ B £ 15 B £ B I AR W fEimEs]
S ABHE R o

During the Year, the Telefield Group has entered into the sales of ZARFEER » Telefield EEEH B EB D] 7 A
goods transaction with the Noble Treasure Group as follows: THEERRS :
HK$
BT
MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited 545,845
Total st 545,845

The above transactions constitute connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but were fully exempted from
shareholders” approval, annual review, and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1)(c).

This exemption applies to a connected transaction conducted on
normal commercial terms and less than 5% and the total consideration
is less than HK$3,000,000.

FliR B LR BB UAZRTE R E
X5 BHREERR EMRAE4 AT6(0)(C)
MREEREKE  T2EHRRET EMRBIE
VAEETREE  FEEHRMBEER

e
TE °

ZEN R THIR IR — MRS TSR SR E 1T 1R 7R 5% B 23
BERG - ERREER 3,000000ETT °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 81.4% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 41.2%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 23.5% of the Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme to provide additional incentive to its employees. For details,
please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing (resigned on 4 March 2022)
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (appointed on 4 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong

Dr. Sun Xiachu
(appointed on 6 January 2021 and
resigned on 19 April 2021)

Mr. Chak Chi Shing
(appointed on 7 June 2021)

ETREFPRMER
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Lin Dailian, Ms. Lin Xiaoshan and Mr. Chak Chi
Shing will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Mr. Li
Huiwu, Mr. Yang Weidong and Mr. Chak Chi Shing, and as at the date
of this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
39 to 42 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in note 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 191 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2021, neither the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company which has an interest or a short position in the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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On 28 January 2021, total 15,406,140 options are granted to three
executive directors of the Company to subscribe for Shares upon
exercise of such Share Options at an exercise price of HK$0.359 per
Shares with an exercise period of 28 July 2021 to 27 January 2026.

Upon the completion of Right Issue on 23 November 2021 and the
adjustment in relation to the Right Issue, total 15,999,276 options are
granted to three executive directors of the Company and adjusted
exercise price of HK$0.346 per Shares.

RZZTZ—F—HZ+/\A - #15406401%)
BRERTAQAR=ZZBHNITES - URITHZ
LRERERFIRITEETR0.359B T RIEARD
TEHE_TE-_—F+AZ+NBEZZE_X
F—A=Z++RH-

RZBZ—F+—AZ+=AHKRTEK Rt
RIEH AR - HRARF =ZBRTESHED
15,999,276 (i lE ik - BAAHBITHEERER
0.346 7T °

Number of
underlying shares
held/interested

Percentage of
issued share

pursuant to Share  Long or short capital of
Name Capacity Options  position the Company
REBRERE
EEREZNERE HARQT BT
A 14 BRONEHEE HFERKXR BEABSE
Lin Dailian Beneficial Owner 5,333,092  Long position 0.58%
PR EmfEAA S=)
Wang Guozhen Beneficial Owner 5,333,092  Long position 0.58%
FHE BEREHEEA R
Xia Xiaobing Beneficial Owner 5,333,092  Long position 0.58%
ENE EmlEEA S

Other than as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company which
has an interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL RRAFE BRI RABRERR D 2 1
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND =R ORE
UNDERLYING SHARES

N
a

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders R-ZT-——F+—-F=+—H  RIBEZEEL
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the  HAE & B BEXV IR EI36 AR R BEFEE Y
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of  ZBREEZAMPATEEE © THIREE S KA T
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the — H #BRIRE 25 (B(5 A& 2 7] O 31T B% 2% 5% % 1A

Company. E)o
Percentage of Issued
Share Capital of
the Company
Y WUNCITRE i)
L NER
Number of Long or 31 December
Name Capacity shares held short position 2021
—EZ-F
nE/E8 54 igsdieng HERRE +=ZA=1+-H
Power Port Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 75,817,000 Long 8.20%
(“Power Port”) (Note 1) 6 2D e

Power Port Holdings Limited
(TPower Port ) (A1)

Ms. Yang Changrong Held by controlled 75,817,000 Long 8.20%
(“Ms. Yang C.”) (Note 1) corporation HE

BRAZT(BREZL)(M:1) BXEGEERE

Keywan Global Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 49,500,000 Long 5.35%

Keywan Global Limited (#75£2) ERBEAA 5=}

Mr. He Xiaoming (Note 2) Held by controlled 49,500,000 Long 5.35%

KBRS 4 Bz 2) corporation e

BEEGZERE

Notes: Hiat -

1. 75,817,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the 1. 75,817,000 A% I 38 I /5 Power Port#5 5 » 5% A Al B E
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. BREZHSEIMRIZERAR  HE2IEHITRAH
Yang”). A share purchase agreement was entered into on 8 January 2020 between Mr. MMEEEE(TMEEDIFE - MEEWEAER) HGR
Yang, as the seller and Ms. Yang Changrong (“Ms. Yang C."). as the purchaser, pursuant Azt (EABER) (Bt R=Z=_=F—ANAF]
to which Ms. Yang C. agreed to acquire, and Mr. Yang agreed to dispose, the entire VRGOEERE Bt BrrRABERENONLERE
issued share capital of Power Port (the “Transfer”). Following the completion of the i Power Port 2 5 B B TR AN ([ ) - BEEE R T
Transfer, Ms. Yang C. became the sole shareholder of Power Port and a substantial 1% » 15 £ B B A& Power Port HME — A% B K AN A RIHY £
shareholder of the Company. ERRER o

2. 49,500,000 ordinary shares are held by Keywan Global Limited, a company 2. 49,500,000 A% & i % Fi Keywan Global Limited 3 5 + 7%
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. AR ABEZESEMAY - 2B BTRAHRM
He Xiaoming. KAKERHA ©
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 31 December 2010, valid and
effective for a period of 10 years until 31 December 2020, subject to
the early termination provisions contained in the Old Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 March
2020, the Old Share Option Scheme was terminated, a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted and approved. Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further options of the Old Share Option Scheme can be
offered thereunder but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
options granted prior to its termination and options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable. As at the
date of this report, the Company has no option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme remained unexercised or outstanding.

EEBRERMNKES R

ARRRAE R AT ERERTAESES
BES B ZBEA TR BT ERBARRRRN
SKfEFRME RS 2 R - MK S IMEITE T %
FHEMN  HARE] - EERA R SR E A KB
NCIEADES =N R EIRA RSO 77 I
SFEANMEREMAANEEBESLEER -

B

RAFEER > BIEEERARAERBERHRK
FRAZHEALRA AN EARERTEE
SEEBRAATEBRBEF X (EFEE
EHBERZERESURRAR AR 2 %%
BROI) P A fE A o

AR &

ARFR-ZZE—ZEF+-_A=1+—BRNER
BEEI((ERRESS]) BEE2-FT_FF
T-A=T—HLEAMHA+F - HAIREE
BRI E 2 BRI LE - REBEARR
AR-ZE-_FF=-ATRBTHRRERIARE
BEBNEBREE  ERRESEIRLE X
PR S AR AR R B RO FTRE AR i AT 81 ([ 37 Al AR 1
8 REBBESIRILR - TEREE
BRUERT BIE — PRI IRRE - LT BV 1K
BSHRER N - AEEREK LA KO EARE
PRI R B TTIE - TR BEAR LEATIR KRB AR
BREEAMLA TITE - RARERH - K
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New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The New Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 10 March
2030, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the New
Share Option Scheme. The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture partners,
advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from
the date on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the New Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (i) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company (including the New Share Option Scheme) if
this will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of
such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

g AR &l

BRI ERRETAEMALIRME
RBREHAKEFTERRARE L DR - #8E
PRt S —EAM  EE-T=FF =R+
AR EXRNEERE B AR R
ISR - B ERT Bl 2 RE R B AR E
IAREEREREN AT LZ R ROME QA
MES EE EBH BXAL P H#E
B RIE - XA ERMN  BEEIAER -

WMARRREER2HEERZEREE AL
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REEWN o SRR EIIE T ARG 8RE
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BAEBTERUATEEN&ESE - OBRKD
PRIERERE AR I th B AT X AT A R IBRFT
SUEY ML T8 ¢ (i) FE 5 50 B ) 1 B2 22 AR B A A
BEED AR A EE X B AT A®mER
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HHEREE -
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&%%ﬁmk@@%TtL%ﬁ@&ﬁ*EE
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Up to the date of this report, 35,671,850 share options has been
granted by the Company pursuant to New Share Option Scheme. The
options are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of HK$0.02 each of the Company.

% 0.02 78 TTEY — BB A7 -

HEAHEBH - ARAIREFERESZE
¥ 35,671,850 10 BERRAE - BEIRIEBIE LT 4B
Ble BHERERTIHFEABERELARAE

Number of share options
BREHA
Lapsed/
Grant Exercised cancelled
Exercise  Outstanding duringthe  Adjustment during the during the  OQutstanding
price as at year ended in relation year ended year ended as at
Holder of per Share 1January 31 December totheright 31December 31 December 31 December
Share Options  Date of grant Exercise period (note 2) 2021 2021 issue 2021 2021 2021
8z
Bz Bz -E--f%
R=B=-§ =B=-% ZBZ-f +ZA=t-A RIB=-%
BRITEE -A-B t=A=t-H mitR t=A=t-H L¥E tZA=t-H
BRESEA RUBH T (W&E2) MATE  LEERL  fFHZEE LFEEAE AN/ ER i
HKD
BT
Executive
Directors
HITES
Lin Dailian 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 o 5,135,380 197,712 - S 5,333,092
RE ——&-f-+)\B —E--#tA-t/\BE
ZEZRF-AZtHA
Xia Xiaobing 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 = 5,135,380 197,712 S S 5,333,092
L= ——&-F-+)\B —E--#tA-t/\BE
ZZZRE-AZTtA
Wang Guozhen ~ 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 = 5,135,380 197,712 = = 5,333,092
TEE ——#-fA-+\B ZE--5+A-tN\BZE
ZEINF-AZHER
Employees 28-Jan-21 2022.1.28-2026.1.27 0.346 = 20,265,710 764,704 = (713,807) 20,316,607
B8 ——#-Azt\B ZE-Z§-A=1/\RE
ZEIRE-AZTtE
Total = 35,671,850 1,357,840 = (713,807) 36,315,883
Eh)
Note : BifaE

m The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (28 January m
2021) on which the share options were granted was HK$0.35.

2 The exercise price per share of share options has reflected the adjustment in relation to @

the Right Issues which completed on 23 November 2021.

AARBHRERRIBREAR(ZE-_—F—A
Z+N\H) AR TEROISET

BRENERTEEERRE-_Z_—F+—A=-+=

A SERk A B AR A 52 -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company has participated in an approved Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company in an independently-administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The Company’s contributions
to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no forfeited contribution to the
retirement benefits scheme was credited to the statement of profit or
loss (2020: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date,
the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save
for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

RREN TS
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable transaction in relation to the assignment of agency
agreement involving the issue of consideration shares under specific
mandate (the “Discloseable Transaction”)

On 18 January 2022, the Link-Asia International Assisted Reproductive
Technology Group Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Assignee”), the Company and the Mr. Sy Ming Yiu (the
“Assignor”) entered into a deed of assignment dated 18 January 2022
(the “Deed of Assignment”), pursuant to which the Assignee agreed
to accept and the Assignor agreed to assign all its rights, obligations,
title, interest, and benefit in and to the agency distribution agreement
entered into between Shanghai Metash Instruments Co., Ltd. (_E)&7T
W& 25 B R 2 7)), a corporation established under the laws of the
PRC (the “Metash”) and the Assignor (the “Agency Agreement”) to
the Assignee at the consideration of HK$37,800,000, which will be
settled by the allotment and issue of 230,000,000 consideration
shares by the Company to the Assignor (or its nominee) upon
completion.

The consideration shares shall be allotted and issued pursuant to the
specific mandate to be obtained from the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting. An application will be made by the
Company to the listing committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
consideration shares.

Details of the Discloseable Transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2022, 9 February
2022, 4 March 2022, 25 March 2022 and 19 April 2022.

WEPRSEN

BRI RRBF B EETRERDMEEN
Bz BTHREXS ((ATREXRS )
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AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong has resigned as the auditors of the Company with
effect from 23 December 2021. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company with
effect from 23 December 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of RSM Hong Kong and to hold office until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 23 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited who retires and, being eligible,
offers themselves for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 April 2022

23l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Y& N7 Az B A
M McMillanWoods
Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL MEDTECH GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 139 to 277, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code™),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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I RVR A Gl

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

PR EER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, B#EFHEEABRBERMOZENLE - 250
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B ABREZ GEMEBRERBHTHAEE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe 2 I8 o KL EES MG R B2 TR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a WHRIEMERBEBIHESE  MASHUL
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ZEEHEXRBBEER - RFIET 2 HEREES
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified  EIHA :

is as follows:

Key Audit Matter
ARETSEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAMETETRNAEEBRRENSE

Impairment of loans to other parties and other
receivables

@ H A £ 1 H W E R R 2 A KRR RE

Refer to note 29 and note 28 of the consolidated financial

statements.
LR E W SRR M 29 M P 5E 28 ©

Loans to other parties and other receivables represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. A loss allowance
for 12-month or lifetime ECL is made on all loans to other
parties and other receivables.
MEMATEENERREMBYKRIEL EXEEE
WEZHH - A MEAM A T 7E L& B R E ) HE YR
HEHEFHEREAN R HEREEEENEEREE -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has loans to
independent third parties and individual with outstanding
principal and accrued interest totaling of approximately
HK$48,501,000 (before impairment). During the year,
expected credit loss (“ECL”) of HK$39,113,000 was
recognised due to increase in assessed credit risk.
RZEBEZ—F+=-A=+—H  BE5EMEIYE=FAK
BEAEFHOERNREELRS LEANBABEAR
48,501,000 & 7T (FIBRBERT) - A - HRFHEEE AR
Em ERREHREEEE(HAYEEEBERD R
3913,0007 7T °

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-
impaired since initial recognition of material
loans.
AEEEBHUSHAEAERAREERR
ERBEENSeREENEFERRBIEME
WR R EERENIRE T -

Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

AHEIBISNEMAEER R B - e MBI -

Checking the supporting documents including
loan agreement, repayment agreement and
repayment record on sampling basis;
mERERRBER R - BRI E R KR
TERH A
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S RVRE iR

Key Audit Matter
AREITEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has other receivables of
approximately HK$64,688,000 (before impairment). During
the year, ECL of HK$1,765,000 was recognised due to
increase in assessed credit risk.
RZZFEZ—F+ZHA=+—H  ESEHEMEKKEL
£64,688,0008 7 (FIBRFAERT) - FA - BARFEEE
FERRE N - BHERIEEEEE /1765000 TT °

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the
credit risk of the financial asset has increased to a point that
it is considered credit-impaired since initial recognition, and
in estimating 12-month and lifetime ECL on the loans to
other parties and other receivables. Accordingly, this area is
considered as a key audit matter.

. BRAZENBEINMEEMSNRE T - BEERED
BAHE - NETBEVSERUREERRKEE LR EEL
mkemEENEERREENEWER/EERENIZE
DA R A5t A B At A 1 H B B SRR B B At FE IR TR 9 1218 A K2
HTEAEEEE - At - b REER RRERETEE -

Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
of the allowance for impairment of loans to other
parties and other receivables and the related
credit risk; and

At BERERAEMATERNERREMD
RWFRRERELEAREERR ZEEN
RN K

With the assistance of our valuation specialists:
assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
models used by management to estimate ECL;
comparing the inputs to the models to external
data; and assessing the appropriateness of any
forward looking adjustments in light of available
information about current and forecast future
economic conditions.
FEMOGHEEEROBY T  FTHEEERAR
HETEHMEEEENREERNES M - H1E
R A BRSNS BB BT R - RIRIEA
B E Bl N TRRIAR SR AR R LB P R B R R 4
AT A EAEE 1T -
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I RVR A Gl

Key Audit Matter
AREITEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRETSE

Impairment of intangible assets
BREERE

Refer to note 22 of the consolidated financial statements.
2R B TS TREMITE22 -

Intangible assets, which mainly consist of EAR-1 and EAR-2
(as defined in note 22), represent a significant portion of the
Group’s assets.

BREEETZEEERRERZ T RBRRERZ 2(E8R
fizr22) - 1 EXEEBEENERND o

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of EAR-T and
EAR-2 are approximately HK$7,935,000 and
HK$27,000,000 respectively. The management of the
Group carried out impairment assessment of the
recoverable amount of EAR-T and EAR-2 which is based on
estimated future cash flow to be generated from the
respective real estate projects. For the year ended 31
December 2021, no impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss.

RZEZ—F+_A=+—08 BRAE#E 1 RBRRE
R —28) BR H B 9 5l 4 /7,935,000 % 7T & 27,000,000 %
e BEREERERBAEBREMEIRRBNMARKEER
B HBERMIEE 1 RBRRIERE 28 D& FETR
EBffE -HEZTEZ—F+ZA=1+—ALLFE  BENE
EERNEREAER

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets. Accordingly,
this area is considered as a key audit matter.

E BERAZANBEINMEEMNBE T  REEEEE
ERRIRE SR - BRERELERHE - Btk - tLEE
R BB EETFIA

Assessing the discount cash flow models;
AR e RER

Obtaining the supporting documents to confirm
the validity of the exclusive agency rights of the
real estate project;

RGHEAFMERB BRRERERENERX
G3E

Obtaining the external valuation reports and
discussing with the external valuer to challenge
the valuation process, methodologies used and
market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

ESHNER(EE RS - W H MR (A ERM AT 3R - IAE
HAFRB 2 EERT - FAREXFEERE S
PP 2 R R ARER < 58 5E

With the assistance of our valuation specialists:
reviewing the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model prepared by the external valuer;
EEMOHEZSKOBET - FEARAZHE
B AR FINBEEMAR HERE
PR 2 ER A RRER 2 TI5RE

Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;
HRXFRE  REMEREF 2 FERZLE
A

Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model; and
EGERP C EMERE &

Assessing the disclosure of the fair value
measurement in the intangible assets.
S EMEY A EATEN B2 REAR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Hp &R

ERAHHEMENEE - REHNBREFRA
HFTAER - T BRI BHRE RN
BRI o

BV BRRIELNER L EREEAM
B BT HZREEMERERTALA
HITXRE S
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BIEEMER - HilRES  EREMERE
B HELR A B HRER AR MERTBIETETW
BRFEEANT  UFFEERERR
o ERBMDHITHITE  HERMRSE
ERFEEAHERRL  RAIBABREFHESE
B Bt AR E EIA -

EEMGaMBEmRAAEZEE

ERARERBEEASHMASRM BB
B ELER RIRBEE R RHED 2 KRB IRE R
HEARRFZEAUBTHRE - NEBERR
RERE M MAR AT BRI ERERTE - DAEAR
BYBBR I FEHRNKFERMEBRNE
KRRt -

EREGaMBRRE  EFABEFME &
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

GRS
(=

BMANBEEREGEEELSFAMHRRER
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

- HEFRARELESERMRER
e R - WARBAT R EEE
BERAFEESHEIBABENEXN
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chun Sing

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO5537
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

. = N/

=IAN
YA A . Ej/ﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE =T =-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Notes
k2

Revenue A 9
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit EX
Other income E A 10
Other gains and losses H st K &8 11
Selling and distribution expenses HE R
Administrative expenses TEREBHR
Impairment losses for loans to mEMATEFREEE -

other parties, net of reversal R 5 [O]
Impairment losses for trade JEWE SRR EREE

receivables, net of reversal MR 5 (O]
Impairment losses for other H bR IBREEE

receivables, net of reversal MR 5 (O]
Impairment losses for investments REE QR E REEE

in associates 24
Impairment losses for intangible \mEERERE

assets
Research and development expenditure #7522 H
Loss from operations TEEE
Share of profits (losses) of associates JE(EBR &R Rm A (EE) 24
Finance costs EE A 12
Loss before tax BRELATE B
Income tax expense I8 x 13
Loss for the year FEEIER
Attributable to: DT &HEMN :

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ PN

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R
Loss per share SRER 18

Basic (HK cents per share) A (FREEM)

Diluted (HK cents per share) g (&8 )

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
675,523 595,023

(530,635) (440,311)
144,888 154,712
10,827 12,332

14,685 (2,690)

(29,232) (56,317)

(154,230) (178,158)

(15,378) (23,471)

965 (2,083)

(18,165)

(10,281)

(14,130)

(13,946)

(152,197)

(12,622)

(4,928)

(169,747)

(3.323)

(173,070)

(173,052)

(18)

(173,070)

(46.119)
N/A 7 B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e BnMEMEE NS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

E-E-—F+-A=+—HItEE

2021

—E_—F

Note HK$°000
KiaE FET

Loss for the year

FEBR

(47,147)

Other comprehensive (expense):

[tems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Fair value changes of equity
investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI")

Hit2m (%) :

BT EEH DB EE Y
BA :

BRAHEF AR M2 E R E
(BAFEFAHEMBRZE
ak |) BRI E A FE

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

AEH S RERRMIER

BEBINEE BN ER

Other comprehensive expense
for the year, net of tax

FEHM2EMY - HIKRBHIE

Total comprehensive expense FEXHEMBZARE
for the year

Attributable to: AR & 75 EAG
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF =N
Non-controlling interests AR
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2020
—E-RF
HK$'000
FET

(173,070)

(12,212)

1,200

(11,012)

(184,082)

(184,064)

(18)

(184,082)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra MR R

As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=—F+=-fF=+—H

Note
k3

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &G 19
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 20
Investment properties EME 21
Investments in associates REE N R E 24
Intangible assets B EE 22
Rental deposits Heke 28
Total non-current assets FRBEEHRE
Current assets REBEE
Inventories w5 26
Trade receivables FEUE Z R 27
Prepayments, deposits and AR -~ e R EAEWFIE

other receivables 28
Loans to other parties mEMATREHE 29
Amount due from a director B — R EERIA
Investments at fair value through BAFEAERE

profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ([RAFEFABRZDERE 25
Current tax assets BVERFRIE & B
Bank and cash balances RITRIREHEE 30
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEBBIEHENEE 24
Total current assets RBEEHAE
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners AKARHEE NEGER

of the Company
Share capital A% AR 38
Reserves b 40
Non-controlling interests e i
Total equity DB

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
T

36,835
3,215

124,152

118,915
162,232

106,639
9,388

1,229

145,574

543,977
9,849

553,826

677,978

18,487
347,390

365,877
121

365,998

2020
—ECFF
HK$'000
TAT

19,203
48,904
30,000
12,316
35,478

145,901

92,651
165,413

46,556

38,695
450

82
167,657

511,504

511,504

657,405

8,559
286,903

295,462
472

295,934
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR

As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE—_—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FAET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 33 30,922
Bonds payable fEHEH 35 -
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEEE 30,922
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEE SRR 31 58,694 87,353
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M B ER B 32 175,737 187,266
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 22,075 20,677
Borrowings EE 34 614 18,595
License rights payable FERFREE T 3R 7,789 8,099
Product warranty provisions EmiRBEE 36 3,584 4,611
Current tax liabilities BERFETE B (& 4,973 3,948
Total current liabilities FREEEAE 273,466 330,549
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREBHRE 677,978 657,405

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022 and are signed
on its behalf by:

EEeN T _FNA-_TABIAETHT
FIATRAESE

Lin Dailian Wang Guozhen
PR FEIE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AREFBE

[\\/ N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==F——

FHZA=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAER
Foreign Equity
Share Share currency Investments Non-
Share  premium option Merger translation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital  at FVTOCI Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve surplus ~ reserve  reserve contribution  reserve losses Total  interests equity
RAYE
HARM
2ENEN
kit RiERE F2R
e RER BRERE AHEE ENRE SABR IERE ELRE  EndE RE RitER &3t BE ERSE
(noted0  (note40  (noted0  (noted0  (note40  (note 40 (noted0  (note 40
(note 38) O)0) O O o) O ) oD ) H))
(Wedo (Wit (Wit (W0 W0  WE0  BEFo (20 (Ko
(Hiit38) Gy Gn) o) G Gw) o) oe) o) 06)
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO00  HKEO0O  HK$000  HKF000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKEO000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér  TEr  TEr  Tar TR TEn TR TRn TR T TEr A TR TEn
At 1 January 2020 WZ%-%%-8-A 5945 603,750 - 311 1454 18298 2502 4275 11280 (36559 (216193 411,013 - 40
Total comprenensive expense for the year - - 1,200 - - - - (12212)  (173052)  (184,064) (18) (184082
Issuance of placing shares (note 38(3)) 1,189 40,324 - - - - - - - - - 41513 - 41,513
Issuance of consideration shares
(note 38(c)) 1425 5,575 - - - - - - - - - 27,000 - 27,000
Capital injection from anon-controling ~~ FEERERTE
interest - - - - - - - - - - - 490 490
Disposal of equity investments HERER - - - - - - - - - BTL @877 - - -
Changes in equity for the year 2614 65,899 - - 1,200 - - - - 559 (2183 (115550 (115079
At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021 8559 669,649 - 3m 15,744 18298 2502 4275 11,280 - (438016) 295462 o 29593
Total comprenensive expense for the year - - - - (1,061) - - - - - (46,397)  (47,458) (749)  (48,207)
Issuance of placing shares (note 38(d) 1712 27,643 - - - - - - - - - 29,355 - 29,355
Issuance of placing shares (note 38(e)) 2,054 20,262 - - - - - - - - - 22,316 - 2316
Issuance of shares upon rights issue
(note 38(9) 6,162 55,464 - - - - - - - - - 61,626 - 61,626
Capital injection froma non-controlling ~ JEERIERITE
interest - - - - - - - - - - - - 398 3%
Equity-settled share-based payments IRELE DR BER 2T - - 4576 - - - - - - - - 4576 - 4576
Changes in equity for the year FRERED 9928 103369 4576 - (1060 - - - - - (463N 0415 (31 70064
At 31 December 2021 18487 773,018 4576 3m 14,683 18,298 2,502 4215 11,280 - (44413) 365877 11 365998
Annual Report %k 2021 143



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/ \ Eﬁ:i ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Note
HtaE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETEHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax ML RIEE
Adjustments for: HE
Impairment losses for trade FEWE 5RO EEE -
receivables, net of reversal R #E A
Impairment losses for other H b pe WG IRRE S 18 -
receivables, net of reversal ElE3=3E

Impairment losses for loans
to other parties, net of reversal
Impairment losses for investments
in associates
Impairment losses for intangible
assets
Allowance on inventories,
net of reversal
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs

Share of (profits)/losses of associates

Gain on disposal of associates

Gain on derecognition of financial
liabilities

Gain on bargain purchase of
a subsidiary

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income on loans to
other parties

Bank interest income and bank
fixed deposit interest income

License rights payment

Provision on product warranty,
net of reversal

Fair value gain on investment
property

Net realised gains on disposal of
investments at FVTPL

Unrealised losses from
investments at FVTPL

Equity-settled share-based payment

mEAMA LT ERZRE
B8 - kB
REEE R R ERERE
B8 EREEE
FEEE  MBED

o A M
W BRRRETE

EREEENE
BB

FEGEE N R CaR), B8

H SR QA
BUHRER SR A B2 W

EAETC L =N A6

HEWME  WERREZ
&8
mMEMALTERZ
FLBUA
SRITRI BURA KR 7T E B
FR A BURA
FERTRE 3R
EmRARE kB

KREMEN A FEKRR

BAHERARRNEE
RE 2 SR F
BATER AR
BREZARERER

VARS8 B AR 1 7R EL e B

BES
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2021 2020
—E-—F
HK$°000
T

—E_RF
HK$'000
TAT

(169,747)

2,083
18,165
23,471
10,281
14,130

1,874
2,392

17,714
28,189
4,928
12,622
(873)
(69)
363

(5,665)

(956)
2,712

4,611



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Note
Hiat
Operating loss before working LBES R EIE
capital changes
Payment of license fee payables FEETREFET K
Increase in inventories FEEmn
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEWE SR TR A, (3E 1)
receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  TB{IFIE ~ 124 K E M EK
deposits and other receivables FIE G M), R
Decrease/(increase) in amount due fEUREE E R IE R (1)
from directors
Decrease in amount due to a director ~ fEfRt— & EEFIER D
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables JEFHE ZBEZ Ori4) /1€
(Decrease)/increase in accruals TERBA K EMENFUR
and other payables CRA) /1
Decrease in product warranty EmiRBRER
provisions
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL BB AT EE AR
IRHERE
Proceeds from disposal of equity HERAFET ABRED
investments at FVTPL WRAEIRE 2 FT1SR0E
Cash used in operations KREARE
Income tax (paid)/refunded B (XfY),/REMEH
Finance costs paid B BERA
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 42(e)

Net cash used in operating activities

RETRHMAR SRR

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
T

(12,597)

(26,76;)
4,146

(16,986)
450

(28,659)

(13,724)

Annual Report &3z 2021

2020
— BT

—= =

HK$'000
TAT

(33,775)
(581)
(14,575)
(36,444)
27,551
(450)
(204)
32,931

15,132

(2,059)

(12,474)

1,144
(1,400)
(3,266)

(15,996)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEREMRER

/\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==—F——

F+A=+t—RALFE

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
T

2020
—ECFF
HK$'000
TAT

Notes

GES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of associates

Disposal of associates

Disposal of a subsidiary

Bank interest received

Loans to other parties

Refunded from loans to other parties

Purchase of equity investments
at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at FVTOC

Prepaid intermediate fees for
acquiring exclusive agency rights
for potential real estate projects

Deposit paid for service to obtain
exclusive agency right of a real
estate project in Thailand

Refundable deposit paid for exclusive
agency right

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Proceed on disposal of properties,
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

REZDRERE

Ui s Ff 8 22 )

ek i NC]
HE—FHHE QA
BEUERTTHI S

A H A A &K
RIETHEMALER
BERATESARMEZE
Wan R &

HER A FER AR EE
W e IR A 2 PSR
S B ER B BR
REEANTNE

FESRBEEEEEBEBR
RIEED M RBEE

X ERRIER RE®
BEEWME  WEIEB
HEME - BE &
ki

R

42(a) & 69
42(b)

(35,662)

956
(31,000)

42(c)

(37,177)

38,362

(9,500)

(18,000)

(3,312)

Net cash from/(used in)
investing activities

wEERBAE, (FTA)
IR HEE

(95,264)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;
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Notes

S

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of placing

MEZDRERE

BITRERD TSR

38(a), 38(d),

shares 38(e)
Proceeds from issuance of shares MRS TR D PR 1S A
upon rights issue 38(f)
Principal elements of lease payments  FAENZAEEH 42(F)
Borrowings raised EEER
Repayment of borrowings EEEX
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEFATSE
Capital injection from a IR ST E
non-controlling interest
Net cash from financing activities MEEHEIRE F5
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRSEEBYRDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREB)TE
changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HBWEERES
AT 1 JANUARY EEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-RA=+—HHEBEER
AT 31 DECEMBER BEZEEY 30

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTER THBTT
41,513

(24,184)
17,840
35,169

(76,091)
2,384

167,657 241,364
145,574 167,657
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is Suites 3501 &
3513-14, 35th Floor, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

— AR
RRABR_ZE—ZTFRATNBRER
AEERERESAMA L AEREER
Al o HOFE i 3% = & M Ak & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © &= &
EEME AT ABNIELSD RGBS
BN A JE 56 6 BE 3518 3501 & 3513-14 & o 7R
RARODEBEBERXSMBR QG
(B3P ]) MR 7 -

RRRRBREER AR - EB AR
TEERBEN R HREME23 -

MR

RZEFAMBRERDBREEEGTA
S((EBEEAE ) RAZAAER
FEEMBHRELEN(EBHBEREE
ADER - BERBREENBERE
FigmE R (BB BREEN]) -
EReFEAN(EBEFERN]) KA
B ZFEGEAMBRRNTAMIME
Z B R AT B R ) 9 3 M 4% B 16
XRBAERAERD(F622F) W HER
E o AEBRM 2 EEZ G BRNHIFES
B

BESMASERME TH LEE
RIEEY B HmEER  ZFEARAE
BASETHEE R AR A HIEFK
e tRAKEEHCBENERER
S FH AT RAEEFT 2 2 RIFT S| BE B
BESTHRZETHRNTMESE -
EREEFGEHMBERRARR  BEE
LIRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for
the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial
statements, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendments
to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021.

The nature and impact of the amendments are described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address
the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate ("IBOR”) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-
free interest rate (“RFR”). The amendments include the
following practical expedients:

. A practical expedient to require contractual changes,
or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating
interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market
rate of interest;

. Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made
to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued;
and

. Provide temporary reliefs to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when a
RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk
component.

RNFTR] R ERT RS

Ell

(a)
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FERRFTR] MAE R B BB SR &R
REBERAFE 2GETBRE
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BEMBRSERF RN
BENBREEF 67
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3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (Continued)

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The Group intends to
use the practical expedients in future periods if they
become applicable.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required to assess
whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met (see note
4(g)). One of these conditions requires the reduction in
lease payments affect only payments originally due on or
before a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment extends
this time limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment in this
financial year. With the extended time limit, certain rent
concessions that were previously ineligible for the practical
expedient because of the original time limit, become
eligible. Accordingly, these rent concessions, which were
previously accounted for as lease modifications, are now
accounted for as negative variable lease payments, and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurred (see
note 20).

In accordance with the transitional requirements, the 2021
amendment should applied retrospectively, with the
cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1
January 2021. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1January 2021.
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRETE] RS F BB ERE 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) Bl (4&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EEMEEKERZFE] MEEET

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective and relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 3
BB ERIE 3% (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

AR B ERE 1 (EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS Tand
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BERGRENFE VR REBUBHE
ERIBEHHREF 295 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIE 8% (1BFTAN)

Amendments to HKAS 12

R GETERIE 25 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB ERE 165 (1BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 37
BB TR 375 (B3] A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BB BEmELEREI05 X
BB GFERIE 285 (IBFTA)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB RELEN(BETA)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. L

FEMBHREER
AEBIWEEF AT HEME
AR ER L FE] RARIERT BB

e ) -

Business Combination — Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
EBEa0 - HaiER 2R

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
MENSSERBBESEUREEZREE S (2020 F) 2 HHEERT

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

SEtfAAt 2 ER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction!
e - HEENEERARMEMNELTTIE

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
Y - BB REE — BT RR 2 PTSRIA?
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

BREH — BITAHZRA?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
HEEREBRENFNEECEZFANEEHERFEAS

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle?
BB SRS 2R 2018 2= 2020 FiR 2 FE i

REZB_=F—-A-BHZERRENF

EEAR AR o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. ? ANZEZZF A A2 EBRENTF
EEAR AR ©
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be B REFETEZ Ak 2 RN EREHRM
determined. AR o

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.

AEBEEEEY - BRAMAEH R
RIEFTEERBREERR AR A
KT8 a B RRENERT

488

== o
=
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign

currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale).

(b) Business combination (other than under common control)

and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. ldentifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are

measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase

which is attributed to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®)

Business combination (other than under common control)
and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the
goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R s Bl 2 BRI EE B R A

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill which is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:

sRe R T

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying amount of
that associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EBEFEHER(E)
(d) Foreign currency translation (d) ;e
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) WEREZINEN

158

(i)

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ira
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==F——

4.

FHZA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C))

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line

basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned
investment property is measured initially at its cost

including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of the investment property are recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit

or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any
gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for

as described in note 4(t).

(g) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from

that use.
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4.

162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R s Bl 2 BRI EE B R A

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 4(f).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful

life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-

of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.
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4.

164

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the group took
advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in

consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating

lease.

(h) Intangible assets acquired separately

() Intangible assets with defined useful lives — license

rights and customer relationship

License rights and customer relationship are state at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

License rights
Customer relationship
Computer software

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

Over the license period
3-6 years
3years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEFHE(B)
(h) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) (h FERNENEREE (8)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERUEAFHENERE
exclusive agency rights for real estate projects E-RHEEENBERNRE
&

The exclusive agency rights represent exclusive right BRREEAEWENNRE
to sell certain properties in Thailand within agreed HANERBEEESETYED

agency periods: BREF :

Exclusive agency rights

BRAERE

Agency Period
REH

Number of units
BNUEE

Level Condominium
(“EAR-1")

Level Condominium

(IBxRAEE-1])

LA VIE ("EAR-2")

LAVIE(BRRERE-2])

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to project
owner or property developer for the acquisition of

exclusive agency rights.

from 1 January 2020 to 17 March 2021,
and further extended from 17 March
2021 to end of 4th (fourth) months
from the date on which the government
of Thailand and China resume the
leisure travel and cancel the quarantine
arrangement between both countries

RIE_ZF-—A—-HBE_Z_—F
=A++R - RE—FH_T_—F
ATt BEEREFHEMBERAIRE
PR Bl B 48 30 B W B 2 R A A e B
EARMNEA(M) EAERE

from 18 August 2020 to 24 November 2021
and further extended from 24 November
2021 to 24 May 2022

RZZEZZEFNATNBEZZE=—F
+T—AZ+mMAB - RE—FH
T —F+—-AZtTHEOEERE
T -FRAZ-+WA

228 apartments
(both furnished and
without decoration)

77 villas planned to be
constructed

FHEERM 77 R B 22
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IR A BRAESERR
BN THRBEMEENL
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
exclusive agency rights for real estate projects
(Continued)

The amortisation of exclusive agency rights is
calculated by the number of units sold during the
period over the total number of units granted, after
taking into consideration of any residual value. The
residual value of exclusive agency right is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already
of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life.

At each financial reporting period end, the
management will review the forecast of units sold
over the remaining agency period and the estimation
of residual value, and consider whether it is necessary
to adjust the amortised cost shared by each unit.

(i)  Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
—  Management intends to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

—  Thereis ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt
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4.

FHZA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available;

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)
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Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.

(K

SETHR ()
ERRE I ERERTA
TREERTRABER

dﬂ i
Jii]
i
i

XA T A KRS ZFT#H7
RA MBI R NRER

EREENEREBBEVNIRATE
FTE - RYIPHERE - WA ET
CREELTRABEMEREEN
RBEA(BAFEFABRNE
MEENSBEERIN) SRER
BERMASKHR AT R EEX
TRAEENATE - R KER
NPHESFABSNEREES DR
BEEAZRHRARERIEZT
FERR ©

AEEEEREEWEEERELZ
EHENIE  IEAEEKSH
BERZEERBEIBRIT R
e REREETS —EENER
T ARIEEREMEE - WAE
EEmE R RE R RNBAR
B9 [ K2 [0 R N 4 A 4 I 2 45 R
BE AIXANSEemRERNZEE
HR B %\ AR EX N aAE
BERE - WAEBREBEEED
ﬂé?%ﬁ%miﬁ%fﬂhﬁﬁ
o ANEBEEERCBEE T
FEWMB B RIEERERIRE

e
N

AEBEERNEENE TERR
HUHSR IR R RS RAE -
RiEERceRABEZREERED
HRENREzEOEZRE(BIEE
MEBEBIRNEEERDAER
) NIBR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:

sRe R T

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)  Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

company or the counterparty.

() Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial

assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EE

()  Financial assets (Continued) ©)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(m)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for

ECL.

(0) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. The Group must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of

classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

@

)

©)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds payable

Borrowings and bonds payable are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings and bonds payable are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

®

@i

Revenue from the sale of electronic products and
medical equipment are recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.

The real estate supply chain services operation
provides two type of services, the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service. The real
estate advisory service provides the customer with
real estate investment advice and help them to
source investment opportunities in South East Asia
and Pan Asia markets. Real estate purchase service
provides services for obtaining the legal title of real
estate investment on behalf of customer. The
customer will negotiate the price of the two services
together, and the customer usually pay a lump sum
fee that represents the sum of the consideration of
the two services.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EBEFTHER(E)
(t) Revenue and other income (Continued) O WAREMIA (E)
(i) (Continued) (i (&)

Real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service are two distinct performance obligations. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis
estimated using the expected cost plus a margin
approach.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service at a
point in time upon completion of each service.

According to the related terms of real estate
purchase services, the Group has contracted to
arrange delivery and transfer of legal title to the
customers within a period specified in the service
agreement. If the Group fails to fulfil the obligation on
time, the customer has the unilateral right to cancel
the contract, and recover all the payments made to
the Group, together with the interest determined
based on the formula specified in the service
agreement.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
amount of revenue recognised to date will not occur
should the legal title to the subject real estate not be
transferred to the customer within the timeframe
specified in the service agreement.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission
are recognised when the services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

W)

D)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

(u) Employee benefits

®

(i)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the

payment of termination benefits.

(v)  Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to

certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-

market based vesting conditions.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for

calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

(x) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them

with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

4.

EE
)

SETHR ()
PR

FriSRisE VAT B BB XE R TR 2 48
B8 o

BB RN IR TR E SR Bl A
AHE - REMFE 2 BRI SEN
B WA TG IE B KA E R
NAMERIRINR 2 IR B - BUER
i F ER R B 2 FERR 2 i AN A) o AR
SEZERHBRBERENEEH
KA B AR B2 B RE

st
H o
>t

BB B GAMBHRERANEER
BEREERNERERBEN TR
PRI E 2 Z 8 T AR - IRIE
HIREE—RIRATA R =
BER . EEREEEANERN
S MR AT BE A] (14 1 1 88 AT RS
RFERE  RBAREERIAPA
BB R 2 BT T ARER  fid
ERZRRAREARNSER (X
BEHERIN —BRZ PR EM
BERAGEMEL MTE8XERE
ARPUE N e RN - RIBREEE
REETTHER -

IR B ENHE AR R
RAZWERNE E LB 2 et
ELRRVERZETIAER -
RS E G LS I = R
@ - mERZREBRAETERA
R HREERIERIN -

ELERAEEZRMEIRERE
HIREITIRAT - I T IAAEEHIA, -
BEETRIEH R A RTOm A Al
EHAHFIEER TREBLE

Annual Report %k 2021 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[\\/ AY

e MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==—F——

4.

180

F+-A=+—RIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

(z) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of

disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose

impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as

a revaluation increase.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@aa) Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables and loans
to other parties, as well as on financial guarantee contracts.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

184  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B2 BRI EE AR A

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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4.  SIGN
(aa)

IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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186

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any

recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGN
(aa)

IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ao)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R s Bl 2 BRI EE B R A

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ad) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which
are dealt with below).

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(aa), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.

4.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Determining the lease term

190

In determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance
of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease
liability because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption. Further information
is set out in note 20.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group’s control. During the current financial year, no
lease term has been reassessed.

5.

A4 I i Ko = 24EE (8)

fERE
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$29,636,000 (2020: HK$19,203,000) and
HK$54,466,000 (2020: HK$48,904,000) respectively.

A4 Il Ko = 245 (8)
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BARHETNESEE(B)

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) T TR EZ TERR (B)

(b) Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-1 (b) BRAREFZLEAR-1ZHE

The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to a company (“BXG”) in
2019 as prepayment and has reclassified that prepayment
as intangible assets in 2020, which represents exclusive
agency rights (“EAR=1") for certain number of apartments
(both furnished and without decoration).

As at 31 December 2021, in view of impairment indicators,
the Group performed impairment assessment on the
carrying amount of EAR-1. The recoverable amount
represented its value in use determined based on
discounted cashflow forecast prepared by the
management of the Group. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash flows
projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject to
greater uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve
and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss (2020: HK$14,130,000).

Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1and
EAR-2

The Group determines the amortisation of exclusive agency
rights EAR-1 and EAR-2 based on the allocation of costs
corresponds to the actual number of units sold during the
reporting period over the total number of units with
exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-1 and EAR-2,
respectively. The Group considered this method is more
appropriate to reflect the usage of the exclusive agency
rights as the customers demand varies from period to
period.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZEF(E)

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) e TR EZ TERR (B)

(c) Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1and (c) ¥B xR K ¥ #EAR-1XZ EAR-2# 4
EAR-2 (Continued) (%)
Due to the pandemic, the term of exclusive agency rights RREE - BRREEEAR-1ZH
EAR-1 were extended and revised and the economic effects BBEIERNES] 0 MEEERALK
of the pandemic could materially affects sales forecast. At e N e T ETE RIS E K
each financial reporting period end, management will 2o NEMIEREE KR BIEER
review the forecast of the number of units that can be sold EHRNBRRIEED BRI A HEE
before the expiry of exclusive agency rights, and the CEETER - LTS EEGE -
estimation of residual value. Any changes to the forecast FER| B A (E B n] E B S EE T
may result in changes in the unit amount of amortisation. SRR EE) o
For the year ended 31 December 2021, HK$543,000 HE-_ZTE-_—F+-A=+—HI1t
(2020:HK$2,392,000) was recognised as amortisation of FE 5430008 T (ZE_FF :
exclusive agency right EAR-1in profit or loss. 2,392,000/ 70) ERIEm R A

BRRIZEEAR-1RYHEEH -

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no (2020:nil) BE—_E-_—F+=-_A=1+—H1t
amortisation of exclusive agency right EAR-2 was FE #$E(CE-Z2EF . #)BR
recognised in profit or loss. BRI EREBRRIEREAR-2H
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-2

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the exclusive
agency rights (“EAR-2")(note 22) from Ratchaphruek
Global Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77
villa units (“Target Properties”) planned to be constructed
under a project (“Project”) of a developer company
(“Developer”). The Group has the rights to sell the Target
Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months
from 18 August 2020, and may be extended by another 6
months upon expiration.

On 19 January 2022, the Developer further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent from 24
November 2021 to 24 May 2022.

The EAR-2’s carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and
2020 was assessed by management for impairment and no
impairment loss is made. It represents the remaining
consideration promised by the Developer to transfer to the
Group properties of equivalent amount at the expiration of
exclusive agency terms, regardless of the number of Target
Properties sold. The expected future economic benefits of
EAR-2 are dependent on many factors including whether it
is probable that the Developer can obtain the approval of
land allocation project related to the Project. In light of the
foregoing uncertainty, the management of the Group will
review the sales forecast of the underlying Project to
determine whether any further impairment on EAR-2
should be made at the end of every reporting periods.

Upon termination or expiration of EAR-2, the Group would
receive the same amount of remaining consideration from
the Developer in terms of the villa units based on their
market value. In the view that their fair value will not be
lower than the carrying amount of EAR-2, therefore, no
impairment loss was recognised as at 31 December 2021.

5.
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BARFIERF2MEE(E)

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) T TR EZ TERR (B)

(e) Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables, and (e) EWEZEREN HtEKRREUR
loans to other parties AEMATERZRE
The management of the Group estimates the amount of AREEEEBRIEEWKEZE SER
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, other HE W RTEA R A E M A TER
receivables, and loans to other parties based on their credit ZEERBMGTEREZE SRR - H
risk. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL fo e RIEA R AEMATERZ
model is measured as the difference between all B EEEREZBEEIESSE &
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in REREEEEEANBESES
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that BV IB AN ENANEENRE
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective A 4IR R EENE BB UEL
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the WA S RENEREEte Wik
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised AR BTN ERFRALIE -
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, MARFRSRELNIES  SKE=E
further impairment loss could be necessary. BENEREEMETH  BEVE

TR — FREREE -

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H [E
receivables was approximately HK$162,232,000 (net of WE SER2EBEN A
allowance for trade receivables of HK$220,000) (2020: 162,232,000/ 7T (KR EEWE F R
HK$165,413,000 (net of allowance for trade receivables of FIEE220,0008 T ) (ZE-FF ¢
HK$3,811,000)). 165,413,000 % T (N B E W E 5 AR

B 3,811,000 7)) ©

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of other R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H H
receivables was approximately HK$62,923,000 (net of EWKFTEBZEBEN A
allowance for other receivables of HK$1,765,000) (2020: 62,923,000 7t (30 E b B Ua 3k
HK$18,038,000 (net of allowance for other receivables of BRE1,765,0008 ) (ZE -
HK$18,165,000). 4 18,038,000 7T (1 Bk A fib &

U 2k TE B 18,165,000 78 7T, ) ) ©

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of loans to R-ZB-_—F+_A=+—H"' M\
other parties was approximately HK$9,388,000 (net of EMATERZEEBEDN A
allowance for loans to other parties of HK$39,113,000) 9,388,0008 T (MR MEMATE
(2020: HK$38,695,000 (net of allowance for loans to other 291130008 L) (ZE=F
parties of HK$23,735,000)). F : 38,695,000 % 7T (#0 B 7] H

AT E B 23,735,000 7)) ©
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BARHETNESEE(B)

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) T TR EZ TERR (B)

(f) Allowance for slow-moving inventories H HHEERHE

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2021, accumulated allowance for slow-
moving inventories was approximately HK$18,911,000
(2020: HK$19,412,000).

Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate.
Movement of the product warranty provisions during the
year is set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$3,584,000
(2020: HK$4,611,000).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted is estimated by
independent professional valuer based on the various
assumptions on volatility, life of options, dividend paid out
rate and annual risk-free interest rate, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions, which generally
represent the best estimate of the fair value of the share
options at the date of grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, HK$4,576,000
(2020: nil) recognised in profit or loss and correspondingly
to share option reserve.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

B 75 e 32

AEEEXBEHEAZSETHRER : S
KRk ERER- - EERR- ?u’f@)iéf
2 B R ) 2R [ B o AN S L Y 4 R
MEEIEH IR S BT 5T Al TR I?E
RBNREHAEEPBRENEED

gz

(@) SMNERR

AEBBAZETINERAR - RE
RABODEBRS  BERAEE
ZUASEERZNEERIIE -
7R 62 [ 3R By 3F 4R 1 TE B R EL A N
R BERBENIINEE K
R ARBEZYEREINERR
R EE B P ERNINEE

0
PA

BRAEEMRARE SR TE
AEERHEHRAEBEERNRR
mt?%&amﬁm@,¢%.¢
E B 18 M A 25 1] B R IR O B RS 241
WTIERAR

Foreign

currency Increase/
strengthened/ (decrease) in
(weakened) consolidated
by loss after tax
BRBi2
SNEFHE REER

(B2fE) &/ OF2)

HK$'000
FATT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—ZE=-—F
+ZBA=1+—HLEE
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) AR (AR 5%/ (5%) 745/(745)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z_TF
=B = EMEEE
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®E]) 5%/ (5%) 494/(494)
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6.

198

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

®)

©

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investments in equity securities at FVTPL. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The management of the Group considers that the exposure
to the Group arising from equity price risk is limited and no
sensitivity analysis is therefore prepared.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BEARERE (&)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at
31 December 2021

SERR (8)
P& B 5 BR K

BEBELEASERMBEBERER
FERBEIEMECR - BFREE
BBRET  EREFPEERR -G
BEETEESENEFBEET
ERHEEFE - ZEFEETRRE
FiREEIA SME e IR R
e WEEBEFPHEBERNERI
MEFPEBEBMELERENIEEE
o EIE SRR EEH BB
I0ENROKAEIE - B BE=
EANENEBABEERBRE
BESHBEREAER - —%&
ME ' AEBETEEREFRIUL
e

AEERBEN2HBEHESER
M & A ERNE RN B R
B AHRBEEERcBEERAR
BREEE - IR AKERBERE
EERERYEBRTTIRAEF 2 E
MEBREAFEEAER - ALK
%20 S — R oy E AR 2 P A
Z iR MR B E BT IR R o

TREFNEBEAEBR T ——F
+ - A=+—HBAEAENEERR X
EWESEREREEFENE
I

2021
—E_—F
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE REOALE EHERE
% HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Current (not past due) BNEA (7 HA) 145,071 94
1-90 days past due AH1E90H 15,427 88
91-180 days past due AHIE180H 128 1

More than 180 days past due AHA80 B A £ 1,826 37

162,452
EERIE (AfiE) =

Credit-impaired (nhote)

162,452
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
2020
—E-FF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BHEERE REGE BERE
% HK$000  HK$'000

T FAETT

Current (not past due) BNHA (SR HR) 0.00% 152,580 3
1-90 days past due #E1Z90H 0.30% 10,289 31
91-180 days past due #HI1 =180 H 2.27% 2,590 58
More than 180 days past due AHA180 B A £ 60.09% 116 70
165,575 162

Credit-impaired (note) EERE ) 100% 3,649 3,649
169,224 3,811

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Note: For trade receivables relating to accounts which have known insolvency,
they are assessed individually for impairment allowance in order to
determine credit-impaired.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 71.5% (2020:
56.4%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2021.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

BHERXERBE=FNERE
BRERHE - ZFULEREBER
EW SRR BN - EAIROR
RAEE R A RYGIRER F 6
OB P R 22 AT 3
#® .

BisE  SELANGE G B P R 5B T
T SRR EREETERTG  AE
EEERE -

AEBFASETEEESFRRR -

FERRAEE=KEBH AN

—E-—F+-_HA=1+—HHEYK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MFERRME

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (© EZEER(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWRE SRR (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FA - REWE SRS ERER
receivables during the year is as follows: ZEEIOT
2021 2020
s —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,811 1,860
Impairment losses recognised FARERRERE
for the year 58 2,099
Amounts written off WS R (2,626) (132)
Reversal of allowance B E O (1,023) (16)
At 31 December R+-A=+—H 220 3,811
Financial assets measured at amortised cost REBERLTENESREE
All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than REEIRBHEKATENAES
loans to certain other parties are considered to have low BE(MFTEEMATERRIN ¥
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the RAEEERRBE Bt RS E
period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. AR EERERS AT & A EH
For loan to certain other parties, lifetime expected losses )éig B -BAaSTHEMATERM
were recognised if credit risk has increased significantly HEERE BB ER AR K
since initial recognition. VPmi"jJ[] AEBE S SRR ETEH
[E518 o
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBZ A ZERBFTEERE
comprises the following categories: FELATEER
Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description contract assets other items
R EETR it EWERRR ANEE HttémEE HtER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
EE R RGUFEHRRE - NEEMEE 2HRNEEEE - +ZEABHEESR
A EEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired ‘
BRaE ERABERIBEE S EE  TBT *HRBEERE - +-EABHEERSE
//\ﬂfﬁ}\i 1»:l/\/UZ.TE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk L|fet\me ECL - Lifetime ECL —
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
A&t BBRNPELEZEMKNREREBA - SHRHEEER - SHRHERER -
EERR B kR AR REE M BEERE BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B BEREB A ZEECNREERE SHRNEEEE - 2HEHREEEE -
EERE EERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

E\M‘%Ewﬁﬁqﬁ(,.;%)
© RFEERRE)

BBENATENERMEE (H)

Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description contract assets other items
REEETR Fit EWERRN GNEE HttemEE HtER
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
Wi AEBETEBEAERENBEE HET LA ST A SH

TEEYBROFBBERE

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

Internal 12mor
Note  creditrating lifetime ECL
A TZEA
M FEIR  2EBRHEESE

Financial assets at amortised cost ZEBHAFHENEREE

Deposits b 28 Note (ii) 12m
PIEE (i) +=8A
Other receivables HityElizE 28 Noteb(c)  12m

W)  T-fEA
Credit-impaired

EERE
Loans to other parties MEMATER 29 Noteb(c)  12m
9 K6  T=fEA
Lifetime ECL
HREHEERR
Amount due from a director [Elh—ZEZE NA  Note (ii) 1m
@R W +-f@A
Bank balances RITES 30 Note(i) 12m

30 HEG TZfA

Notes:

O] Bank balances are deposited with financial institutions with high credit
rating and are considered low credit risk financial assets. The
management considers these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible as they are banks with high-credit
ratings. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on theses balances

(i) For deposits and amount due from a director, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk
management to assess whether credit risks has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The credit risk on deposits is limited having considered the credit quality
of the counterparties and the probability of default is negligible.
Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on these balances.
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TRAMINL THFRETRBEER
ERFENARESREENEE
J—ngﬁ/\ :

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Gross carrying amount (Gross carrying amount
b bl el el —T-TF+-A=1-AH
FEAE RmEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TiEn FiEr

14,505

36,203

- 36,203

48,501 62,430 62,430

450

142,382 149,572

Hat

0) RITHEBTRNEE &W?mﬂ’]fr@%ﬁ%
B BEAEREERARNEREAE -
RARRTEEBRENMEE - ﬁﬁﬁaﬁé
He R - EAVBLR A BRETET -
Ht - WP F AT IR E RS -

@i HRERERER-BESFAME - A%
BizAERN T —EARREERRZS
HEAEEBRRE - AREREBABEER

RBRER A BB T EBAREE
EBEEBREEN  FRERT  AE
ERR2HRREERE  TEIXS
HF 2 EEERRBOBEAREEA -
Bz EERRAER - Bt - WERZ
SRR ERA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HUKEREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © E=ERE(E)

BRERASTENERMEE (F)
FA - REHEKATENTREE

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets

measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows: EERE s EHIT

Other Loans to

receivables other parties

HbrEU mEAMAL

;IE B

HK$'000 HK$000

T FAETT

At 1 January 2020 R-_E-_FF—H—H 1,800 60,489
Impairment losses recognised for FANERREEE

the year 18,165 23,471

Amounts written off HiEe R (1,800) (60,225)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_EF+_A=1+—H 18,165 23,735
Impairment losses recognised for FABRRERE

the year - 19,037

Amounts written off iy &8 (14,600) -

Reversal of allowance BERE (1,800) (3,659)

At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+_-_A=+—H 1,765 39,113

Certain cash deposits and investments at FVTPL

The Group has investment at FVTPL and certain cash
deposit placed in the margin accounts of brokerage firms.
The brokerage firms are subsidiaries of Hong Kong listed
companies hence the directors consider the credit-rating is
acceptable. The margin account enables the brokerage
firm to re-pledge the Group’s securities collateral (if any) in
the margin account and use it as collateral to secure
borrowings for the brokerage firm’s use. If the brokerage
firm becomes insolvent, the banks may liquidate the
securities collateral re-pledged to it by the brokerage firm
in order to discharge the brokerage firm’s indebtedness. As
a result, the Group may not be able to recover all the
securities in the margin account. This is commonly known
as “pooling risk” associated with the margin account. As at
the end of reporting period, the Group is not exposed to
any pooling risk as the Group’s investment securities and
cash deposits held by the brokerage firms have not been
re-pledged.

ETREFERRRATVPEFAER
HERE

AEBRERITRESRPFER
NHEFABZNRERETRE
T - RERITR/REABLTRAAZ
MEAE  AHEERREEERN
RBAEY - RESRPELLRT
BEARIESRPAAEE ZE S
ER () RIAZ 3R m AR
HEE  HELITER - WMELTT
ENER  RTUVERLLTAR
BEWzEHFERR  LENERE
TZER - Bt - AREAIEER
WEERREERP ZHBRES
HEREBERFAR  SHIES
B2 R¥EHR > NEELE
[ Ee (T E R AR - REERELD
TR ARBEREESFMRESFR
I B HEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B S R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIKERER(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RBESRR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBRER AT HERRRRTE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HRRHELTE @ UBRRAEE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity BB TR HENENEIHER
requirements in the short and longer term. REMTEBESHE -

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted TEBERHMEBEMNSLIERIRRS
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: REDHESTWOT

Weighted Less than
average 1year Between Between Total
interest and on land 2and Over undiscounted
rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows
1H0T
R N N¥ £33
MEF57= ERE 122% 285% BBSE REREBAE RAEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR THER TARL THET THET

At31December202l  RZ-Z=-f

T-A=1-A
Trade payables REGES ! - -
Other payables E AR ) - -
Lease liabilties MERRE ! : 2317 12,689
Borrowings EE -
Bonds payable S L 2,205

License rights payable TR b =

At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z&

t-h=t-A
Trade payables RETES - 87,353 - - - 87,353 87,353
Other payables HifErRzE - 20,189 - - - 20,189 20,189
Lease liabilities HEaE 182 21,800 16,553 11,403 11,225 60,981 51,599
Borrowings L 17 18,920 - - - 18,920 18,595
License rights payable BT - 8,099 - - - 8,099 8,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

N 7

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e

Interest rate risk

The Group’s loans to other parties, borrowings and bonds
payable bear interests at fixed interest rates and therefore
are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/(increased) the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses as follows:

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FIZ EFH (&)

6.

BARs R B IR (4R)

(e

100 fEHE 25
(100) EE 25

100 basis points
(100) basis points

At 31 December 2021, the management of the Group
considers that the exposure to the Group arising from
interest rate risk is limited as loans to other parties,
borrowings, and bonds payables carry at fixed interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout
the year.

IESA

AEEREMALER EELE
MEFZEENEFE - Btk
RN ERN R

AEBFAZERITERON KR
B ZEFZRFBNEAE F
KIZERTRME ©

RZEZ—F+-_A=+—H &
FIEEMEBBERTENERT
et F K28 FH (TFBE)100 &
B2 AEBNFEBEBRRHE
BRRED GEMm T

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,315

(1,315)

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—0 ' H
RAEMATER  BEREMNE
HHRETEF RS AEEER
BRANEBFEENFERARE
PR o

EXEBE AR BB
B EEE(FEMARE - H
AN B 1R RS R
2. SRR E 2 A —RER
3 -

Annual Report %k 2021 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEREE(E)
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H RT+ZA=Z+—BHERmTEER
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Financial assets: ETRMEE -
Financial assets measured REEKATTENEREE
at amortised cost 412,234 400,418
Investments at FVTPL A EF ABZNIEE 1,229 -
Financial liabilities: SHaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R AT BRI S R B E 157,423 185,835
(g) Fair values (@ =R»¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AREBRGEVBARARAKRAEELE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated BEMCREBENEFEEOEREASZH
statement of financial position approximate their respective MAFEES -
fair values.
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level Tinputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

DFEHE

AFEATHERE L MR EAES
P32 557 L 45 4 2 49 2 o W L
%2 B ARERANTAVES
SEBRBATFENE  ARARTE
AFEOEEREOHALRD BB

=

FIBBWAER : AEERFERAR
BzHEREEXAERE
ZEBTISME (RE
FHE) ©

Eo2WHAER BB O REN
5N BAERAET
B SR RS
ZHNER o

FIBBAAK  AEXAETTEE
ZEAER -

AEENBRESEESHERNEELIS

REHNEARAERA=BERSENEA
REH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

7.

208

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

7. RHEFEE)

(@ RTZA=T—HQFEZARE

W -
2021 —EBE-—-F Fair value measurements using: Total
DR EFEFRANER : #st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
F1E F2E EIE —F-—F
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
FERT TET FTERT TET
Recurring fair value ERMATERNE:
measurements:
Financial assets EREE
Investments at FVTPL BEAVEGTABRNERE
— Equity securities listed — BB LM 2B
in Hong Kong (note 25) B (Mt 25)
2020 —EERF Fair value measurements using: Total
NTEFEMANER - st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
F1E F2[E FIB —T-TF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Recurring fair value EEMATERE
measurements:
Investment properties REWE
Commercial units — PEEBA -
Hong Kong (note 21) B8 (HaE21) - 30,000 - 30,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVEFE(E)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and
valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2021

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 2 and 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

WERNEBER S -_—F+_-A8
=+t HRRANEERS - FE
RO R AT EFEMEANEBAL
B

AEENH B ETEAERP T RS
EITHENEER BB R FER
EB(BREEIBRATENE) - ¥
TERRELATEFEEERNES
CER WHETEREFSEFE
DR ARG ERF RER

ME2RFIBRFEFEMS -
AEBEATHERAGBERNER
B BAOHHELRNIMNEME
BFGEITIRE -

Level 2 fair value measurements 2B AFETE
Valuation technique Inputs Fair value
fHERDG WAER A¥E
2021 2020
bl T TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets Assets
BE BE
Commercial units located Market comparable Market prices 30,000
in Hong Kong approach

NREBEBNEREN

[RECLIE- 32429 mIHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

210

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four (2020: four) operating segments as follows:

EMS — Electronic manufacturing services

Marketing and distribution of
communications products

Distribution of —
Communications
Products

Equity investment, property agency
service and other operations

Securities and Other
Assets Investment

Real estate advisory service and
real estate purchase service

Real Estate Supply
Chain Services

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income on loans to other parties, interest expense, depreciation,
equity-settled share-based payments and unallocated expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated bank and cash
balances, unallocated property, plant and equipment,
unallocated right-of-use assets and unallocated prepayments,
deposits and other receivables. Segment liabilities do not include
unallocated lease liabilities, bonds payable and unallocated
accruals and other payables.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

AKENE(ZZ=FF : UE) ZED

BFRERY — BTRERY

DIEMER — FHEEOHBHER

EEkEM  — BERE - WEAE

BERE RS e Lt A
FHEHREE — BHERARSENME

ARH% M EERE B AR
A& B RS D #B AR AR E a KR

BEORBEEBEN  SOALBULE
B FRARSESTETRMNEMNEE
SHERRE o

ﬁ%g’ﬁa‘m@ﬁﬂz% iR BT IR AR B
AR EMRR - HEERL T BEER
HATERZFEBA - FEFRAXZ
e - URELE RN AEBRONR
RADBRAX - DEBEEXTBIERD
BRI MBS &% - ROBEWE - W5
Bl RKOBEERAEEERRDETE
NRIE - e REMERFTE - DEE
BiEAPEHEEAE  EBHES
MARDBTEIRE R R M B HIE -

AEBIZERMELD AEEE R EE
AR - BN =TT SHE SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HNHERE)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEBRSHITEFNEE BEK
and liabilities: BENER :

Distribution
of  Securities Real estate
communi-  and other supply
cations assets chain
EMS products investment services

EHER

ETHE SHER 2 HEE Bt E
PR Em RE MHEERK
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET THET THET

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-F-—£

TZA=t-HLEE

Revenue from external customers R ENEZE A 629,958 ! 689 " 675,523
Intersegment revenue LR ON - - - -
Segment profit/(loss) DEEF/ (FIE) 26,916 ] (44,054) (11,307) (24,411)
Interest revenue MEBA 571 170 5,584 6,325
Interest expense MEFX (2,554) (1,169) - (3,741)
Depreciation k=] (17,497) (4,821) (113)  (22,808)
Amortisation i = - (543) (543)
Other material non-cash items: ~ EfEAFIRELTAR ¢
Fair value gain on investment BEMEN AT ERE

property
License rights payment KT
Impairment losses for loans to mEMATERRRE

other parties, net of reversal B8 - M (15,378) (15,378)
Impairment losses for trade B E SERFURESE -

receivables, net of reversal MR #EE 965
Impairment losses for other Hio U ERESSE

receivables, net of reversal kR ] 1,800
Additions to segment non-current P IERENE ELE R

assets ! ; 9,462
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=Z-$+ZA=t-8H
Segment assets NEBE 485,602 | 60,737 b 650,938

=
Dk
2=
iy
ST

262,830 b 10,660 b 313,040

Segment liabilities
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—Z—

8.

212

—F+tA=t—RALFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEPER (&)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEBRSHTEFNEE BEK
and liabilities: (Continued) BEMER: (B)
Distribution
of Securities  Real estate
communi-  and other supply
cations assets chain
EMS products  investment services Total
ETHE wag oy Hl HitnEE R E
% Em BE HERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-B-F&
+-R=1+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers R EINREF KA 544,275 35939 654 14,155 595,023
Intersegment revenue P A 2783 - - - 2783
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (BB) 33,661 (18,497) (70627)  (108972)  (164,435)
Interest revenue FIEMA 944 - 1,948 3,021 5913
Interest expense FBHY (2,033) (32) (2,863) - (4,928)
Depreciation e (18,965) (368) (26,414) (156) (45,903)
Amortisation i - - - (2.392) (2.392)
Other material non-cash items: HEAFRLIER ¢
License rights payment FRrENR - Q.712) - - Q712)
Impairment losses for loans to mEMATERRRE
other parties, net of reversal BB - MiREL - - (3063)  (20,408) (23477
Impairment losses for trade [EAE SEFURERE
receivables, net of reversal MER#EE (2,083) - - - (2,083)
Impairment losses for other HipEWERERSSE
receivables, net of reversal mk#ER - (265) (1,800) (16,100) (18165)
Impairment losses for investments  REEL A BB REEE
in associates - - - (10,281 (10,281
Impairment losses for intangible B EERERRE
assets - - - (14,130) (14,30)
Additions to segment non-current 2 EIERENEE LR
assets 2,417 57 59 52,779 55,312
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-EH+-A=1-H
Segment assets DEEE 482,529 25,326 75,598 93,543 676,996
Segment liabilities NEEE 281392 51,464 33,914 8976 375,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==F——

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

FHZA=t—HALFE

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss:

8.

DEVER (58)

(b) 73 BB A B ) s B R O SRR -

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
FET

675,523

675,523

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FTERT

Revenue PN

Total revenue of reportable segments  #4E5 ZUL A 4258
Elimination of intersegment revenue 43 2B & W A 3K 8
Consolidated revenue REUWA

Profit or loss AR EE

Total loss of reportable segments WESESETIB 45
Intersegment elimination 7 BB EHE 5
Unallocated amounts: Folers

Interest income on loans to
other parties

AEAALERZFMEBA

(24,411)
(1,831)

Interest expense FBEHAX
Depreciation e
Equity-settled share-based VARG IS B LA D B
payments AR
Other unallocated head office Hi RO BLAMEE R
and corporate expenses AEAX
Consolidated loss before tax BRI AR A B 1E

2020
TR
HK$'000
TAET

597,806
(2,783)

595,023

HK$ 000

TAETT

(164,435)
905

(6,925)

(169,747)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

214

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

DEVERL (8)

(© PDHBENARNHE:

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
FET

Assets
Total assets of reportable segments
Elimination of intersegment assets

&E
WEDMEERE
7R ER

650,938
(21,045)

58
12,368
16,561

19,098

677,978

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FHR

313,040
(21,045)

499
17,486
2,000

Unallocated amounts: ROBLESHE
Bank and cash balances RITRIBRER
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - me Kk
other receivables H At FEU RIE
Consolidated total assets mEEERE
Liabilities af&
Total liabilities of reportable HENHaEeRE
segments
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 2 2B & (&K 5
Unallocated amounts: RO EHE
Accruals and other payables TERBRAREMENFUE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Bonds payable e EH
Consolidated total liabilities mEBRERE

311,980

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras BIR BRI EB AR A

2020
TR
HK$'000
TAET

676,996

(23,459)

51

657,405

2020
—EB-FF
HK$'000
TAETT

375,746
(23,459)

9,184

361,471
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HNHERE)
(d) Geographical information: @ HEER:
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location REEREINRE PR ER T
of operations and information about its non-current assets 21D MU A A RIZET 5 2 3E
by location are detailed below: MEVEEMBEERFFMNT

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHT
Revenue ['ON
The People’s Republic of China FREE A RHEME([FHE])

(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) ~ (B#E&E#) 78,004 87,597
United States of America (“U.S.A.”) ENRERE([XE] 81,807 40,601
Switzerland It 177,027 229,847
France JEE 123,202 72,292
Poland Vil o 825 2,259
United Kingdom B 16 25,709
Belgium [aalli= 47,772 -
Russia BZE AT 14,693 11,127
Thailand = 18,566 20,201
Malaysia B2k 21,617 17,687
Brazil [agic] 15,688 9,322
Others EHh 96,306 78,381
Consolidated total RA1BER 675,523 595,023

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BIEEE) 124,152 145,901
Consolidated total LRE MR 124,152 145,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==—F——

8.

216

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

(e) Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as

follows:

F+A=+t—RALFE

D EEFR (F)
e RAXBFSHKA :

EAREBRAIOSE A FHFER
BUWADIHIT

EMS segment
Customer A
Customer B (Note)
Customer C (Note)
Customer D

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
FET

EFRERE DM
BFA 278,260
BFEB(HE) N/A FE A
BP C(HfaL) N/A 138 F
EFD 137,821

Note: Revenue from this customer is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue for

the year ended 31 December 2021.

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service line for the year is as follows:

2020
—ECFE
HK$'000
TAT

216,633
65,569
88,606
80,159

HiE . REZEFPHBRABRARERE-T

TE T A=+ HLEFEMRAL

10%

9. WA
WA DT

AEERAEFE
RIEIEE 2T

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
FHR

Revenue from contracts with customers B&E & BHREERE155

within the scope of HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products
or service lines

BEEANEFEHBRA
BEEERIRGERE DI

— Sales of goods —HEEm 670,232
— Provision of real estate supply — PR Hb EE (P S AR S
chain service 4,602
674,834
Revenue from other sources R B HARRABA
Rental income e WA 689

675,523

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras BIR BRI EB AR A

AR E

REMK

2020
—EB-FF
HK$'000
TAET

580,214

14,155

594,369

654

595,023
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

9. REVENUE (Continued) 9. WA(E)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) WAD (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AEBRTHNEEERE R IEEGI%
services and at a point in time in the following major product E—HHEEEE R ERBEERA

lines and geographical regions:

Marketing and
distribution of
Electronic communications Securities and other Real estate supply
manufacturing services products assets investment chain services Total
ETHERE EUERAMBAER  RERAMEERE Bt EHEERE @t

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
= bl —ToTF ] “ T T el T T Rl T OTF il —TOTE
HK$'000 [TCSUOON  HK$'000 TGO  HK$'000 TGN  HK$'000 JEIIVOON  HK$'000 TSRO0
TAT IRl TEr EERSM  TET Ryl TET BRSO  TiEn R

Primary geographical markets IEHETS

—~The PRC -4 N 72735 53 654 Y , 78,004 [EETAY
-USA - %8 LYALY 11,266 32,118 - 81,807 43,384
- Switzerland -t 177,027 229,847 - - 177,027 229,847
—France - 4E 123,202 72,292 - - 123,202 72,292
—Poland - 58 825 2,259 - - 825 2,259
— United Kingdom - &R 16 25,709 - - 16 25,709
— Belgium il 47,12 - - - 4,m -
—Russia -BES 14,693 11,127 - - 14,693 11,127
— Thailand -5 18,566 20,201 - - 18,566 20,201
— Malaysia - EXfn 21,617 17,687 - - 21,617 17,687
— Bradi i 15,68 [KSY) - - 15,688 (RSN
— Others -t} 90,655 74,613 3,768 - - 96,306 78,381
Segment revenue GELON 629,958 547,058 35,939 654 4,602 675,523 597,806
Intersegment revenue AHERA
-USA -XH (2,78%) - - ,
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMEEEIMA 629,958 WYL 35939 654 4,602 Y 595,023
Timing of revenue recognition AR 2 BY
Products transferred at RE-EBEAEENER

apoint in time 629,958 544,275 35,939 - 4,602 IURRCR 674,834 594,369
Products and services REREEBNERRRS

transferred over time S S 654 - S 689 654
Tota st 629958 [STRIS 35,939 bl 4602 675,523 [RVS
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10.  OTHER INCOME

218

=

—$+-RA=+—HILFE

10, EAbUA

Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll
expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The directors of the Company confirmed that the Group
did not have any unfulfilled conditions relating to the grant during 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, no such government subsidies (2020:
HK$3,916,000) was recognised as other income.

2021 2020
—B_—fF —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET
Interest income on: AT RIS SN
Bank deposits RITER 82
Bank fixed deposits RITEHTF K 874
Loan to Individual D (note 29(ii)) & A D& R (F1 7 29Gi)) 1,692
Loan to Company B (note 29()) MR RBERK(KE29)) 1,944
Loan to Independent Third Party C MBYE=FCER
(note 29(i)) (Bt &£ 29(ii)) 1,321
Loan to Independent Third Party F RBYE=FFEX
(note 29(iv)) (Bta£29(¢v)) -
Loans to other parties mEMATE R 708
Total interest income B ALRE 6,621
Government subsidy (note) BT & B (f1at) 3,916
Reimbursement from suppliers 1 1 PRI LR ML E O SR 8
for testing defective products 360
Sale of scrap materials tHERER 248
Service fee income AR 7% & U A 398
Written off of trade payables JETE SRR FM s 391
Other Eh 298
12,332
Note: The amount mainly represents Guangzhou government refund the Miat : ZeBEZREMNBMRENKERRBE « K
unemployment insurance premium with a condition that PRC subsidiaries BR-ZE-—FPENMNBARERELERES -
dismiss only few employees during 2021. During the year ended 31 December BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEE &8
2021, an amount of HKD404,000 (2020: nil) was recognised as other income. 404,00087C( = =FF : #)ERBHEMEA -
The amount in 2020 mainly represents Employment Support Scheme under the RIT-ZTF  ZREXEEBFBEFRITHRER

FFRBT BB E ST TR BT 8] - AREA
FaESAREDBEF LM - MEERHAT
BHEEABEIBEERFEKRT - AARES
ER - ARERN T _RFURIMEZZEY
FHRZABITHEME - BE-ZF-_—F+-A
=+-RALEFE - BHERNAN(ZZT-_FF:

3,916,000 7T ) HER A EAMUA ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

1. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES N Halism REE
2021 2020
—E-—F ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Fair value gain on investment property — R&M¥ 2 AT EWE 2,068 -
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary B UFEHEB AR 2 W=

(note 42(a)) (Bit42@a)) 69
Gain on derecognition of financial BUER S RAaE s ke

liabilities 873
Gain on disposal of associates HERE AR 2 W -
Net realised gains on disposal of PERQNTFEFABRNIREZ

investments at FVTPL IR W TR -
Unrealised losses from BRATEFABRHNEREZ

investments at FVTPL REBERE -
Net foreign exchange losses PE 5 B8 55 (3,269)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB R&EZEE

equipment (363)

(2,690)
12. FINANCE COSTS 2. BEBEKAK
2021 2020
—B-—-F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHIT

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaedE A ERY 3,649 3,266
Interest on loans from financial RESBEE CEFHFE

institutions 456 1,109
Interest on loans from independent REBIEB=FHZ2ERFE

third parties 553
Interest on bonds payable FERHES 2 & -

4,928
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13.

220

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

F+A=+t—RALFE

3. FrfSHiFX

ERPMSHERBEERNT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TFHET FAETT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEARIIE — HBFER
Provision for the year FERE 1,192
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFE (BERE), BETR 191
1,383

Current tax — Overseas BNEA®IIE — 8 oh

Provision for the year FEBE -
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 2
2
Deferred tax (note 37) EEFLTE (B 37) 1,938
3,323

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the
first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25%
(2020: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be subject to
the tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong
established subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been it o
provided at a rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated

assessable profits.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and

practices in respect thereof.

RBMARSFIEHHE - REBKILD
&AM EHE 2000000 T ERB

AR S HEHREES25% (2=
TF 0 825%) 0 MiBiBRZ S FEAE A
1#165% ( —ZF — T 4F 1 16.5%) B & R 1

MEMBEBEKIORBRATMSE -
EEFSRIR AT ERTE F#916.5%( —
T T 1 16.5%) sHIREYE o

Efmimﬁﬁé%ﬁiﬁéﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁJHEZIK

BEEMEBRRENRE  REEiH
fﬁﬁ/?iﬁll - BRERERFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==F——

13.

FHZA=t—HALFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13, FEHAX (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the FR 15 %t B 2 B2 Bk B A B 18 R A B B F 15
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits MM EFFTE N 2 SN EHERDT ¢
Tax rate is as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E_THF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHT
Loss before tax BRI E R (43,752) (169,747)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of %ﬂiﬁiﬁﬂ’a FRFi&16.5%

16.5% (2020: 16.5%) TEFF 165%)TE 2 HIA (28,008)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ HERHR AN KL (966)
Tax effect of expenses that are PRAIHIR B BB E &

not deductible 26,824
Tax effect of temporary differences REREREZENHIETE

not recognised 2,385
Tax effect of tax concession BERERNHETE (2,978)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR 193
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABERERTEEER

not previously recognised METE (1,540)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEENRBTE 12,432
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries KB AT RZ=EH T E (5,281
Others At 262
Income tax expense Fri5®ife 3,323
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14.

222

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 4. FEBE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEBZFEBBENRGFA) AT
the followings: FIBEHIT
2021 2020
—BZ—-F —TEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN £
— audit services — BZARTE 2,080 1,600
— other services — AR 920 266
3,000 1,866
Cost of sales (note (7)) SHERA (M3 (D)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERKA 527,285 428,169
Allowance on inventories FERE 11,141 12,999
Reversal of allowance on inventories FERERR (FZE0))
(note (1i)) (11,642) (11,125)
526,784 430,043
Amortisation of exclusive agency right BRAEECBRRERE-) 2
(EAR-1) 4 543 2,392
Depreciation on property, Y% BB REREITE
plant and equipment 9,584 17,714
Depreciation on right-of-use assets TREEERE 24,913 28,189
Legal and professional fee FEMEEER 20,637 14,328
Research and development expenditure  #ff3t & FEE T H
(note (iii)) (B (i) 15,006 13,946
Expense relating to short-term lease EHHERERX 9,274
Selling and distribution expenses: HERDHERAY
Technical support services fee BT RREE 18,537
Administrative expenses: ITERER :
Consultancy fee (note (iv)) FEME (M av)) 23,250

Equity-settled share-based payments

VAR 4 4 B DA RS A A B R B9 151 350
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

14.

15.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

O]

@D

(i

@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, cost of sales includes approximately
HK$79,796,000 (2020: HK$82,539,000) relating to employee benefits expense
and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above and note 15 for each of these types of
expenses.

The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of
inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$14,983,000 (2020: HK$13,904,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

On 12 August 2019, the Company engaged a consulting company to prepare
written research report on Singapore real estate market, advisory on positioning
and distribution of real estate projects, and to help establish downstream sales
distribution channels. The consulting service fee of HK$27,000,000 was paid
upfront in August 2019. The Company recognised service fee expense based on
completion of work approved by the Company, and the consulting company
rendered all contracted services in 2020.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

14.

15.

FEEEE)

0]

(i)

(D)

@iv)

HE-Z-_—H+-A=+—HILFE ' HEX
A EIEE B R 8 48 FI B & J 47 8 4979,796,000
BT (ZT T4 : 82539,000/87T) ' 2ESH
TRat A SR M1 1E B4 FR S AR L e 8RR R -

AEEHRRDE B ERMNKRRENOTEEH
B - BRARREREANEEIHENTRES
-

BEZ-—F+-A=+—HULFE #HEKk
M HBEABIERENFX414983000%
T(ZZEZFF 139040008 7T) - ZELEH
RERA BB RRMFLS -

RZF—AFNA+ZB ARAZEHHADF
REGTIMPEHETSNEEMARE - HEH
EEANER A MEITER - WEBRL T
HE D IHRE - AR E 27,000,000/ L2
RZF—NFN\AEN - ARRAREARFA
M TIEERBRRRMBEX N - FAREER
R TEREMEOTENRSY

EERFIFX

Employee benefits expense BEERAFH
(including directors’ emoluments): (BIEESHE)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e B4 N ERE

Equity-settled share-based payments

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

g
RIRENE B

VARCRE S B AR 1 R B B Y

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
TET

2020
—E—T&

—_—= =

HK$000
TR

177,908 176,312
4,576

12,854 2,498

195,338 178,810
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15.

224

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included none (2020: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a). The emoluments
of the remaining five (2020: five) individuals are set out below:

15.

BEERBANHAZ (&)

HEESHATL:

RNEE  REAREZSHFALTTHRE
TECTEE)EE HWE WM
6@ ENH DR R - 82 FTHZ (=
T-TF o BE) ATEHBIEET

¥o o JEARORR
RIRERE B

Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2021 2020
=EEd ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#5 Fi5
41,917 21,250

269 276
42,186 21,526

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BN oIS E -

Number of individuals

2020
—E-THF

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

2,000,001/ 7L & 2,500,000 77T
2,500,001 7L & 3,000,000 7 7T
3,000,001 7L 2 3,500,000 7 7T
3,500,001/ 7L & 4,000,000 % 7T
7,500,001/ 7L & 8,000,000 7 7T
8,500,001/ 7L 2 9,000,000 % 7T

e

HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000
HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000

11,500,00178 7.2 12,000,000 /8 7T
15,000,001# 7T & 15,500,000 % 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

HE-_ZT-_—FR_Z=_Z2F=H1
=+—BLHFE AEERERTFNR
FEaH A TSEHR - EAMAR
SELIMMAREBE K RE) A RBER
e -
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. EERMNNER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ FEFEH
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BZESFHMEIMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
PMEAEE (ERNAQARENEARER)
YN SR E Gk
Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
Discretionary benefit based
Fees Salaries bonus scheme  payments
BEEEHK HURELE
BHGE  URGAR
ER ¢ BRETA R ERNAR @t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$°000
TR TR T THER TR T

Name of director s
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WA ()
Mr. Duan Chuanhong BN A
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BNERE 0)
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE
Independent Non-executive BUINTEE
directors
Mr. Li Huiwu FEALE
Mr. Yang Weidong BEREE
Dr. Sun Xiaohu RigREL (i)
Mr. Chak Chi Shing Eh Y e (ii)
Total for 2021 “BC-FM
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 16, Z=f@f| &iEzR (8)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EBHMNE)
BEZHMEYOT ¢

The remuneration of every director is set out below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
FERES (BRRARAIZENBARIER)
MEARBE N BN E ]

Employer's

contribution

toa

retirement

Discretionary benefit
Fees Salaries honus scheme Total

EERHK
ER ¢  WEEL RAEER @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TEL TEL TET T

Name of director BEns

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WRE L () - 1988 - 2,006
Mr. Duan Chuanhong B kS - 775 - 775
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BNEGAE - 351 - 35
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE - 1612 - 1624
Independent Non-executive BUEHTEE

directors

Mr. Bao Jingiao HEHTE 385 - - 385
Mr. Li Huiwu FERLE 240 - - 240
Mr. Yang Weidong BERLE 165 - - 165
Total for 2020 CECEEAH 790 4,726 - 5546
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E==F——

FHZA=t—HALFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 16. ZHEEF| MiEn (48)

(a) Directors emoluments (Continued) (@ EEFHME)
Notes: Hiet -
0) Resigned on 4 March 2022. 0] MR-T-—F=AWABHT -
(i Appointed on 6 January 2021 and resigned on 19 April 2021. (i) RIZEZ—F-ARNABZERR=E

——FWA+HIARE-
(i) Appointed on 7 June 2021. (i) RZZZ—F XALABET-
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the ilﬂﬂ CMEEERETANE (=
year (2020: Nil). TEF )
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no (2R FRZEEF=A
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors =t+—HIEFE  AEBEBERT
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MESZNAHH - EAEMALRER
compensation for loss of office. SONA RS [E 14 09 SE B Sk /F A B B
H{E -

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in b) BHEMES IEZHEEREEE
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and BHAMER  EERNEMER
connected entities E’Uﬁﬂ
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other EBEARRBIXMB ARG LAES
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary AR AZER  EERREME
undertaking of the Company in favour of directors is as EZERMAT -
follows:

Outstanding Maximum
Total amountatthe  Outstanding  outstanding Provision
amount  beginning of amountatthe amountduring  Amountdue for doubtful
Name of director SR payable the year end of the year theyear  butnotpaid  debts made Term  Interest rate
FozERx  FRZHEK e  HEEME fEd
EftERE RERE REXE HAKERE XfHE RERE R bk
HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$7000
T#n TR Ti#n TiEL TiEn Ti#n TiEL TiEn
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-§
+-A=+-H
Quasi-loans or EEFREERS:
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian HREEE
As at 31 December 2020 R-B=%F
+=B=1-8
Quasi-loans or EEFREERS:
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian HREEE 450 Nil £ 450 700 450 Nil & Nil & Nil £ Nil &
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16.  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether

BEEEN RS (E)
(© BERXRS LHHAAGHHNEAE

=

BERERLFNEMERFER
ARBIREFINT RARAES
REEZENERIEERRE
REDNEBAREEFNEMBE

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

17. DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period (2020: Nil).

18.  LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based

on the following:

7. BB

AR5~ BHFEREH -

BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RI=EE
MEERERFRERE - AaREH

RUARTERERBETARE(ZT-F

FE) -

18. FERE

BRERNEEERZ T AGE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss B8
Loss attributable to owners of ARFTEBREANEEHE
the Company for the purpose of KARIHEA ARG EE
basic and diluted loss per share (173,052)
2020
—T-TF
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BARETESRERAREEEE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating TR E &
basic and dilutive loss per share 595,327,745 375,230,709
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18.

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

No diluted loss per share for year ended 31 December 2021 as the
outstanding share options do not have any dilutive effect (2020:
no potential dilutive shares outstanding).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

F+-A=+t—BIFE

8. EkEREGE)
- —F+-A=t-AILFE

HE—
W R G EEEE
B PG e 7 4 (T (] 42k

=

W B EE B

19. W% - WELEE

It TS R 1R AR TT 1R
X&E(—?—gfﬁ :

Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Leasehold moulds and and Motor
improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
BE - #eE-
HEHREIR HARIAE HEHARRE pat st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAT FHET FAT FAT
Cost %N
At 1 January 2020 —E-FF—-A—H 28,712 122,017 6,990 979 158,698
Additions E%E 295 1,080 1,158 779 3,312
Acquisition of a subsidiary It — M B AR
(note 42(a)) (£ 42G)) - - 1 - 1
Written off bkic! (472) (18,344) (387) - (19,203)
Exchange differences [ =5 1,150 4,795 246 14 6,205
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZZHE+-A=+—H
1 January 2021 —T-—%—H—H 29,685 109,548 8,008 1,772 149,013
Additions BE 5,263 5,674 8,765 496 20,198
Disposal HE = = (50) (779 (829)
Written off i S (4,680) (142) - (4.822)
Exchange differences i =8 480 2,064 135 6 2,685
At 31 December 2021 —E-—%+-A=+-H 35,428 112,606 16,716 1,495 166,245
Accumulated depreciation RiHTE
At 1 January 2020 “E-TF—A—H 20,851 99,289 4,619 979 125,738
Charge for the year ir%ﬂ% 5,454 11,041 1,063 156 17,714
Written off bkic! (118) (18,339) (383) - (18,840)
Exchange differences i = 1,082 3,915 188 13 5,198
At 31 December 2020 and _7_7¢+ A=t+—H
1 January 2021 k-Z-—%—HF—H 27,269 95,906 5,487 1,148 129,810
Charge for the year FEER 2,034 5,570 1,867 113 9,584
Disposal HE = = (50) (195) (245)
Written off i 5 - (4,680) (142) - (4,822)
Exchange differences fE =% 485 1,689 102 6 2,282
At 31 December 2021 —E-—%+-A=+-H 29,788 98,485 7,264 1,072 136,609
Carrying amount RAEE
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F+=A=1+—H 5,640 14,121 9,452 423 29,636
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—H 2,416 13,642 2,521 624 19,203
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20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20, EAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEEgF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TAT FAT
At 1 January 2020 NZE-_FTF—H—H 1,251 61,269 62,520
Additions BE - 14,662 14,662
Depreciation e (625) (27,564) (28,189)
Reassessment EHAE - (1,122) (1.122)
Exchange differences & =% 42 991 1,033
At 31 December 2020 and E(\:%*%tii—f—*ﬂ
1 January 2021 =+—HERZE=—%
—A—H 668 48,236 48,904
Additions BE - 28,844 28,844
Depreciation e (675) (24,238) (24,913)
Exchange differences EH Z%E 7 1,624 1,631
At 31 December 2021 N-E—-—%F
+-A=+—8 - 54,466 54,466
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20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

20. FREEE (&)

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Depreciation expenses on TREEEZITERY
right-of-use assets 24,913 28,189
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBE A EREZ
(included in finance costs) (BT ABE K A) 3,649 3,266
Expenses relating to short-term lease EERHHEENRAY
(included in cost of sales GTABEERARITHRER)
and administrative expenses) 1,970 9,274
COVID-19 Related rent concessions received B 4B COVID-19 t8REFE & E iRl 299 915

Lease liabilities of HK$58,589,000 (2020: HK$51,599,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$54,466,000
(2020: HK$48,904,000) as at 31 December 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 42(f).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

R-E-——F+=-_A=+—8 B8
# T8 & (558589000 T =& —
= 4F : 51,599,000 7T ) K #8 #8 B (= A
7 & FE 54,466,000 T(ZFE T F :
48,904,000 7T) - BRI ARBHNEE
BEPHERERIN  HEBZETHEN
FREMELY - HEEETFARER
R o

HER ST HAAENFITENI 420 ©

RREHE - AEERELEEREZE
MAE - IBAkEIES HEAOR
—E+ENBEEFHITL - HEGRHIR
BRI EEER - Y EESETRB KRR
R fge = B EETE T A S R A T AT =l 2R
MEER  AEEERAANNERLE
EAK P RHIFITHER -
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21,

232

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

21.

At 1 January w—HA—H
Fair value gain N ERE
Disposals of a subsidiary (note 42(c))

=

HE - AR (Mat42(0))

At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H

REME
2021 2020
el —Z-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
30,000 30,000
2,068 -
(32,068) -
30,000

The Group leases out office and carpark under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 years (2020: 2 years), with unilateral rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in
the event the lessee exercises the option to extend.

On 31 December 2021, the subsidiary which held the investment
properties was disposed of to an independent third party (note
42(c)). The investment properties were revalued at the disposal
date by reference to the transaction price.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2020 on
the open market value basis by reference to market evidence of
recent transactions for similar properties by Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors. For commercial properties and offices, the Group
used market comparable approach.

AEBUGEEREN A LENAE
BHEg He8 A - HEY LR
BER2E(ZZEZZF : 2F)  RAX
MARTESE#ACERAEN S R
R - RENAESHAFMISEEIK
FHHERBATELERBEREFR)

RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—H BFK
EMENNBRAREEE T —BBULE
=7 (MiEE42(0) - REWMENHE B H
DEZGEETER -

REMERBISTAEMEBME—
AFapEEREXRERERARAZ
ZRUMENMHR SN EEBRRAR
MEEER_Z-_TF+_A=+—H
Ef - EAEMEEBAEME  AK
BRATSAELEX -
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22. EBIVEE

License Customer Computer
rights  relationship EAR-1 EAR-2 software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c) (note (d)) (note (e)) Total
TR EFBR BRAEE1 BRAEE-2 EEH Fohy
(Fis @) (M wm) (Hit ) (HiEE () (hEE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT TR THT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZF—H—H 32,458 13,707 - - - 46,165
Additions BE - - 25,000 27,000 - 52,000
Written off b6 (32,458) - - - - (32,458)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FF+-A=+—-H - 13,707 25,000 27,000 - 65,707
Additions BE - - - - 1,900 1,900
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-A=1—H - 13,707 25,000 27,000 1,900 67,607
Accumulated amortisationand R ## KR ERFE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZF—H—H 32,458 13,707 - - - 46,165
Amortisation for the year FREHH - - 2,392 - = 2,392
Impairment loss for the year FERESSE - - 14,130 - - 14,130
Written off b6 (32,458) - - - - (32,458)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZEF+-A=1—H - 13,707 16,522 - - 30,229
Amortisation for the year FEBH - - 543 - - 543
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—4§+ZA=+—H - 13,707 17,065 - - 30,772
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-FA=+-H - - 7,935 27,000 1,900 36,835
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H - - 8,478 27,000 - 35,478
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certain manufactured business phones in U.S.A. and Canada. The license rights
expired on 31 December 2018 and was further extended to 31 December 2020.

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 2. BREEE)
Notes: Hat -
@) License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of B EEEERRNEREES THKEEEKR

BEMRCAI ARMER - HHRER-F
—N\FE+ZA=Z+—HER  LE—FERE—
ToZF+=-HA=+—H-

(b) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group EEBREEEBEHAIBEAREREBEET
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business HEBHAEBEESNRRLEENZ - TEBAR
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer MBS EA A3 E 6 -
relationship was 3-6 years.

©) The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to BXG in FY2019 as prepayment and has AEBRZF — N ERFERABXGCE
reclassified that prepayment as intangible assets in FY2020, which represents 25,000,000 TEATENRBI R S -8
EAR-1 for certain number of apartments (both furnished and without BEERZBNRBEN P BRENEE  BE
decoration). Due to the effect of the pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were FHRAE (BRMEREREE)NBRRIE#E-1-H
extended and revised. The Group determines the amortisation of EAR-1 based REBEE  BRAEBR- 1NERETTERR
on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of units sold during B8] - AEERBIBMEHNE HE B EIRE
the reporting period over the total number of units with exclusive agency rights EHREBRRER 1RHNBRREEEE
granted under EAR-1. Further details of impairment assessment and amortisation HWLLAIAEE D B MK AE ERERRIEE
of EAR-1 are set out in notes 5(b) & 5(c). HIEESH - BRABRMAIDRE -URERT A R R E

— B IEH M 5(0) &5 °

(d) On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the EAR-2 from Ratchaphruek Global RZZEZFTEFNA+NA AEHEA
Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77 villa units (“Target Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. ([ & 77 ]) B
Properties”) planned to be constructed under a project (“Project”) of a BERREE -2 AREES—HERHAR([R
developer company (“Developer”). The Group determines the amortisation of BEEE((ZEBDETHRERZN77ES
EAR-2 based on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of FEU(BREYE] - AEERREBEREHAE
units sold during the reporting period over the total number of units with HEBNEREEEREBRREE 2BEEHD
exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-2. The Group has the rights to sell BRAEEEMBEA L FIBED LR MR A E
the Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months from 18 FHEBRREBE 2NEE AEEBFHEE T
August 2020, and may be extended by another 6 months upon expiration. On 19 ZZFENATN\BRETLRREANFEGE
January 2022, the Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as HPEREME  YRERSIBESEAR -
its exclusive agent from 24 November 2021 to 24 May 2022. Further details of R-ZEBE-_—F—A+NH ZEEFE-—FZIL
impairment assessment and amortisation of EAR-2 are set out in notes 5(c) & SEEREBRRENER T —_—F+—
5(d). A-+WAE-Z-_—FHA-+MA - @B

KREBRE-2REN G REHENE - SHBERR
B 5% 5(c) & 5(d) ©
(e) Computer software represents software acquired for money lending business TR ARBEEBBEOEM - URARE

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The system software is amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 3 years.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

FHZA=t—HALFE

23, RHBARINIKRE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as E’b:?:-ﬁ*& A=+—HWBA
follows: HEBIT
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
BRARAZRE/ fERRs: REE/
WEAREHR ML/ R ZMER BRMEEAL TEEK
2021 2020
—Bz-f I S
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE i
Charm Year International Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Investment holding
BIFERERAR RBRAES of US$1 each RERR
00 REREEIZTH
TRk
China Khan Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
ZRERAF] RBRAES of US$1 each RERR
00 REREEIZTH
LRk
Natural Perseverance Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
RRBERAH HBELES of US$ each RER
100 REREEIETH
LRk
Powerled Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EEERAF) HBELHSE of US$1 each RERR
100/ BREB X
LRk
Power Trump Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 100% - Investment holding
Bk 1008 TR L @R REER
Sheer Victory Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
RBRAES of US$1 each RERR
00 REREEZTH
LRk
Dayshine Global Investments Limited BV Tordinary share S 100%  Inactive
HBERHE of US$ each BEEK
IREREEIZ T
LRk
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKSI S 100%  Investment holding
EEEXARAR B 1BTRE @R REER
Link-Asia International Cell Technology Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited (Formerly known &% IBTREER RERR
as Idea Perfect Holdings Limited)
RoARBRNRERERAR
(IWEZERARAR)
Be Smart Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 S - Inactive
ik 1BTA L AR EREK
Link-Asia International Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = - Inactive
Electronic Technology Limited &% IBTREER EEEK

REBRETRRERAA
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RBARIMIRE (&)
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
BRARAZRE/ fEREs REE/
WEARER ML/ RIS ZMER BRMEEAL TEEK
2021 2020
—B--% —Z-%%
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE R BE i
Keenpro Investments Limited BV Tordinary share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BREEARAR ABRLES of US$1 each REER
\RGHRAEEIETH
TR
Link-Asia Medtech Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Inactive
(Formerly known as Sheer Victory i BTRE @R BEEK
Company Limited)

ROBRNEREBRAR
(i@ Sheer Victory Company Limited)

Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
REERAR % HK$5,000,000 and trading
50000007474 £ REDRRES
Space Wisdom Limited BV Tordinary share of - 100%  Inactive
BAERAT HRRAES US$1 each EREK
1REREEIZTl
LER
Talent-Asia Holdings Co. Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
(Formerly known as Talent-Asia 5% HK$1,000,000 provision of real estate
Real Estate Holdmgs Co. Ltd) 100000087 B advisory service and real
AERGERERAT estate purchase service
(ﬁu%ﬂﬁfﬁiﬂ?? RAERA E‘ B RRERE
AAREAEE
BERYE
Talent-Asia GC Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 51%  Provision of real
ROHEERAT 5% HK$1,000,000 estate advisory service
1,000,000 B TH LB and real estate purchase
service
REFHEZAREA
FHERERYE
Telefield Holdings Limited BV 410,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
RBRAES of USS each REER
410000 REREEIET
k3l
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding,
HEBRAT 5h HK$20,000,000 and electronic manufacturing
non-voting deferred services for
shares of HK$5,000,000 telecommunications,
20,000,000 &A1 B security, car electronics,
55,000,000/ LK) home appliances,
ERFRELRND other consumer and
industrial electronic
products
RERE B R%
RE E@%Euu EER
EMEBRIZET
EmNETEERS
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. REBARIMIEE (8)
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
BRARAZRE/ fEREs REE/
WEARER ML/ RIS ZRER BRMEEAL TEEK
2021 2020
ZBC-F “T-%F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE R BE i
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100% - 100%  Trading of personal
FERERNARAT 5% HK$1,000 care products
1000 B LR BEAEEERES
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
FERRARAR 5% HK$15,600,000 trading of
15,600,000 B LH EER telecommunication
products
REERRENERES
Telefield NA Inc. USA Share capital of - 100%  Trading of business
e 1S$2,000,000 telephone system
F&7K 2,000,000 % 7T BEEEES Y
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100%  Manufacturing services of
KEETERAT 5% HK$1,000,000 home appliances, other
100000087 B consumer and industrial
electronic products
RE HUEERI%
BT ERMEERTS
Sota Acoustics Umited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Sale of audio equipment
BESZERA i 1ATAEER BIERENHE
Link-Asia International Assisted Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ S 100%  Investment holding
Reproductive Technology Group Bh IATHEBER RERR

Limited (Formerly known as Wise

State Investment Ltd)
REERENEENREEERAR

(FIREAREERAR)

BENFEEFERAR(EMNTE])  PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield Limited ("GTL")* & US$8,060,000 telecommunications
FHE K8,060,000% 7T and other products
EMRAMERDEE
BNTEETERAT PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited* HE US$1,500,000 consumable electronic
FEA1500000%TT products
HEEFERNZER
#HE
EMNEEERERERAT PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Inactive
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics i US$2,000,000 BEER
Co, Limited* FER2,000000%7T
EREBRXARI)BEA PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Huashi Management Consu\tancy i RMB300,000,000 LR
(Shenzhen) Limited® ARERARE
300,000,000 7T
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23.

238

F+A=+t—RALFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23.

RHTBARHIRE (B)

il

Percentage of ownership interest/

voting power/profit sharing

2021

—F—_

Direct
EE

Principal activities

fEREs REE/
BHAMEEAL TTEK
2020
“TI%E
Indirect Direct Indirect
R BE iz
100% - 100%  Investment holding

REER

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital
BREARAZRE/
WEAREE HMERL,/ RS FRER
SHKEE BN BRAR PRC Registered capital of
Ding Cheng Investment i RMB200,000,000
(Yangzhou) Limited* AMERARE
200,000,000 7T
ERBESHH] (Wﬁ\\)ﬁlﬁ PRC Registered capital of
(7 %If%ﬂ ROMINBRAR)  FE RMB500,000,000
Huashi Medical Assistive techno\ogy AMERARE
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* 500,000,0007C
(Formerly known as Healthcare
Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)
HERYERRAERAT PRC Registered capital of
Shanghai Fu Mian Management H RMB100,000,000
Consultant Limited® AMERARE
100,000,0007C
REER(LE) AMBERE PRC Registered capital of
BRAT i RMB20,000,000
Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) AMERARE
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd"* 20,000,0007C
* English names are for identification purpose.

Except for Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd which established in the PRC in the form of limited
liability company, all subsidiaries established in the PRC are
wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$47,063,000 (2020: HK$13,208,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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100%  Investment holding
REAER

100%  Provision of consultancy
service

e

- Provision of pre-pregnancy
care and assisted
reproductive services

REPARERAYER
75

BEFBENEREERRFAKILAR
SEM(LEB)EMBEMKERAA
S BT FE R BRI B BB X B8 4
ERERE -

W-ZT-—F+-_F=+—H KEH
By AR B H B A Rl A A R EHE R F R
A E’]fEﬁE’]fEﬁ KR B %) 47,063,000
Br(= T4 1 13208,000/87T) °
AE%M@&&I\%E%P B SN B 12 {5
Pl EE EERMNEEER TR
R o AT » AEBEEAETBBRAET
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

24.

2TEC

—F+-R=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. POEE
2020
—B--—F —ETHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F FBT
Unlisted investments in the PRC: FREEZE EHRE
Net assets of associates BN NTEEFE 11,254 22,597
Impairment losses R EEE (1,405) (10,281)
9,849 12,316
Reclassified to assets classified as B BARBENHEENEE
held-for-sale -
12,316
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2021 are as REBR - ZE-_—F+-A=+—HBH
follows: N E T
Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
Place of profit sharing
incorporation/ FrEfER REE
Name registration Registered capital BB Principal activities
2021 2020
%8 MR BEmE FMmER —E--F —T-THF FEER
PERERBAABRLA(TRE] PRC RMB31,000,000 0% 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Zhanju Business Consulting AR (not fully paid up) BAR
Co., Ltd. ("Zhanju")* AE# 31,000,000 7T
(REEHZ)
EEREMBEAERAR(HBE]) PRC RMB30,000,000 49% 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Rongshu Business F (not fully paid up) RHRTE
Consulting Co., Ltd. (‘Rongshu”)* AR #30,000,0007C
(REEHE)
BNHZAIEREERAR ([HEZ]) PRC RMB5,000,000 0% 48% Investment holding
Suzhou Wangaquan Venture Capital FE (fully paid up) BB
Co., Ltd. ("Wangquan”)* AR¥5000,0007T
(BEHE)

English names are for identification purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 2 September 2020, Zhanju reduced its registered capital

from RMB200,000,000 to RMB31,000,000.

Wangquan is a substantial equity investment of Zhanju. Pursuant
to a court order on 12 October 2019, Zhanju share of Wangguan’s

equity was frozen until 11 October 2022.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Zhanju and its entire 48% in Wangquan to the controlling
shareholder of the associate with a consideration of
RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,398,000).
This resulted in a gain of disposal of HK$14,597,000 recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Through the disposal of 49% equity interest in Zhanju, equity

interest in Wangquan was fully disposed.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Rongshu to the controlling shareholder of the associate with a
consideration of RMB15,000,000. The transaction was not
completed as the agreement condition has not yet fulfilled as at
31 December 2021, and thus the carrying amount attributable to
this investment was classified as assets held-for-sale at 31
December 2021 with a view that the disposal is expected to be

completed within twelve months.

24,

REEREIHIRE (B)

NR-ZE-_ZTEAA-R BEEHTHH
&R B AR 200,000,000 7T 8158 E A
E# 31,000,000 T °

A2 hREZEIBRBRE - RIE-F
—AE+AT-BEERES  RIER
2y REREEEE T - —&+f
+—AAIL-

RZTE-——F=A=-+=H  K&EHZ]
RGO EE RS AEEERRE
B 2 30 49% HE 25 I HL R 2 /9 2 50 48%
BamTHEARZIERRE  REAA
R 15,300,000 7T (¥ & 74 £718,398,000
BIT) WWBHEE T - —F+_"F4
St BLEFEEERE AR
14,597,000 BT 1B R - MBHER
1E49% s - NIE2MREE 2 HE -

NZZE-_—F=A=-+=H0  K&EHZT
TR EEGE  ALEERKBE
B2 EP49% e T B N B 2 FEARARER
RE A ARH150000007C > B #E
BE®RER ZRXRHIR T =—

ToAZT—RAYERENX ERZEE
BARTZEARER AR =T
Z—F+Z A=+ BBZNERGE
HESEARFELHEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24, REEENTIRIRE (B8)
The following table show information on the associates that are TRINTEAEEMEBEANEEAQ
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the AW E R - ZEWE R R A RIERER
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The EFERERALR - FT27M 5 E R
summarised financial information presented is based on the DA SRR BB I TSRS 2R B S
HKFRS financial statements of the associates. WMERBELE -

Zhanju Rongshu

Name ZiE BIE BE

Principal place of business/ ¥/ EBLEME
country of incorporation A BEIS

PRC/PRC LI/l PRC/PRC
FEL P YN T E

Principal activities FTEEK V70  Consultancy BeGHEIIEN M Consultancy

service service service

o ) AR A% o o AR 3% A AR 75

% of ownership interests/  ARNEBFTH A N/A RiE A 49%/49% 49%/49% 49%/49%
voting rights held LR (%), 1

by the Group

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET TR THET

At 31 December: Rt+=—A=+—8":

Non-current assets IEmEEE N/A 138 o N/ATRER -
Current assets RENEE N/A 7 3E 18,753 WLV N8 18,254
Current liabilities nREAE N/A 7 A (11,873) VLS ¥z

Net assets EEFE N/A T~ E A N/ATEH

Group'’s share of net assets AEEE(REEFE N/AT~E A N/A &

Group’s share of carrying ~ ANEBEERER 2 N/A T iE N/ATEA

amount of interests BREE

Year ended 31 December: BEZ+=-B=+—H

IEEE:
Revenue WA N/A RiE A Pl N/ATEA =
Loss before tax KA E R N/A RiE A GVAXZ] N/ATER (13,126)
Other comprehensive income Bt 2 E I &5 N/A 738 3 N/ATER =
Total comprehensive income 2 U z5 4258 N/A RiE A (12,634) UL 1] (13,126)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

25. INVESTMENTS AT FVTPL 25. MAFEFABZNEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAETT

Equity securities, at fair value fEARFE S - HmAFE
Listed in Hong Kong REEL™ 1,229 -

Analysed as: DT

Current portion BIEAER 2 -
Non-current portion JERNERER 7> -

ETREHZAFEIRERSHRZR
TEAEME - 28R A FEF ABE

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices
at the end of the reporting period. All investments at FVTPL are

denominated in HK$. B B TTEHE °
26. INVENTORIES 26. 78

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Raw materials R 49,813 33,808
Work in progress RS 20,278 19,637
Finished goods 2 40,012 32,373
Goods in transit TEER 8,812 6,833
118,915 92,651
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NIRRT e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27.

W E 7R R

2021 2020
el —*-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Trade receivables JEWE 5 Rk
Allowance for trade receivables (note 6(c)) FEUR 2 5 BE 538t (ffat 6(c))

162,452 169,224
(e¥1)] (3,811)

162,232 165,413

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEBEZEFTEUNEEHANETE
E-EZEH-—MNTI0ERNK- FH
BEEYEEREERE - EF—KA
FAEMARIE - AEBMB A A D
FEUGRIB M BRISEEE - EE T HIEH
EHAAE R o

BER BN EKE SRR GIREE)
FRECDMTEAT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET

0 to 90 days 0&90K
91 to 180 days 91E 180K
181 to 365 days 1812 365K
Over 365 days 365 R

120,666 136,286
40,655 27,616
353 672

558 839

162,232 165,413
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

—$+-RA=+—HILFE

27.

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

JEWE SR (4E)

FEUE SRR BB 1K

2021
—E-—fF
HK$°000
FTERT

3,811

58
(2,626)
(1,023)

At the beginning of year REH]
Impairment losses for the year FEREEE
Amounts written off b6l
Reversal of allowance B m

At the end of year RER

220

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2020
—ECTF
HK$'000
TR

1,860

2,099
(132)
(16

3,811

118 311 1L B Wi 580 5 P ok S22 e s 7 765 R 3
HEREENK2EP AR RBREX

Y @ e Y RO

AEBERWE SRR ZREEREBIAT

EHEHE

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
FET

157,572
4,660

United States dollars (“USD”) Emx(Ewx])
RMB AR
Total =X

162,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

E-E-—F+-A=+—HItFE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28. FANFIA -

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FExT FET
Prepayment for provision of RHA YR EEE S EERD
comprehensive consultancy BR7% 2 TEAS F0R
services in biomedical field ©) 3,576
Prepayment of service fee A ARIS & (i) 9,500
Prepayment for property agent FENMEREREE
services fee (x) -
Other prepayments H ¥ FUE 937
Sub-total /N5t 14,013
Other receivables — refundable Hib R EIE — AR EBARISE
service fee (i) -
Other receivables — refundable HibUGRIE — i
deposit paid for procurement ZAREE] & (i) 3,000
Other receivables — refundable HAb EMEIE — BLARTS AT
deposit paid for services ZARER & (iv) 3,400
Other receivables — refundable Hib RUGRIE — Sh e R AR
deposit paid for conference XN RER
services (xi) 5,310
Other receivables — refundable HpERETE — niREEE
medicine agency services RIZRH (viii) 4,898 -
Other receivables — Individual G HippEu g — EAG (xii) 13,745 -
Other receivables — Power Trump H R U FRIE — Power Trump
Investments Limited Investments Limited (xiii) 28,637 -
Other receivables H b U RIE 8,143 6,328
Sub-total /et 62,923 18,038
Purchase deposit for electronics RERBEZE
appliances (V) 5,510 -
Purchase deposit for electronics STEERRERNL
healthcare products and devices REREEE (vi) 5,000 a
Purchase deposit for healthcare EEERELRBELS
products (vii) 4,898 -
Purchase deposit for testing and BARAESHBERFTELZS
measuring equipment products (ix) 4,714 -
Other purchase deposits HibREige 7,234 4,340
Rental deposits ek 3,215 8,659
Other deposits Hiigs 1,546 1,506
Sub-total /et 32,117 14,505
109,854 46,556
Analysis: Bak =
Current portion BUEAEL 5 106,639 46,556
Non-current portion JEBNHEAE 5> 3,215 &
109,854 46,556
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

246

Notes:

@

@D

(i)

@)

V)

(vi)

On 4 August 2020, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged a
consulting company to provide comprehensive consultancy services in the
biomedical field, including but not limited to project recommendations, industry
research preparation, pre-launch project promotion, legal due diligence, and
assistance in drafting agreements. An advanced payment of RMB3,000,000
inclusive of VAT (equivalent to approximately HK$3,576,000) was paid in 2020.
The Group recognised service fee expense based on completion of work
approved by the Group, and the consulting company rendered all contracted
services during the year.

During April 2020, the Group has entered into two service contracts with a
company (“Company R”) for Company R’s provision of services to assist the
Group to obtain exclusive sales rights of certain properties in 2 Asian countries.
The total prepaid service fees under these two service contracts were
HK$9,500,000 as at 31 December 2020. Due to the effect of the pandemic, the
Group signed the termination agreement with Company R on 29 July 2021 and
the supplemental agreement on 29 December 2021. During the year,
HK$2,000,000 was repaid, the remaining refundable service fee will be fully
settled in 2022.

On 25 March 2020, the Group appointed a procurement agent for the trading of
medical products or equipment, and provision of related logistics services. An
advanced payment of HK$4,800,000 was paid on March 2020 to secure supply
of goods. The advanced payment will be refundable when no purchase order
was placed by the Group before 31 December 2021. During the year, the amount
of HK$4,800,000 was fully repaid to the Group, and the management made a
reversal of allowance of HK$1,800,000.

On 3 March 2019, the Group signed a service agreement with a service company
for provision of service in assisting the Group to become exclusive sales agent
for certain properties in Bangkok, Thailand. An advanced payment of
HK$18,000,000 was made on March 2020. The service terms lasted for 6
months effective from the date of service agreement. The advanced payment
will be refundable if the service company fails to facilitate the Group to become
the exclusive sales agency of the target project upon expiry or termination of
service terms. As at 31 December 2020, the management provided an allowance
of HK$14,600,000 for this advanced fund. During the year, the amount of
HK$3,400,000 was repaid in full to the Group. The Group fully written off the
allowance of HK$14,600,000.

During November 2021, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged
an electrical wholesaler to procure electronics appliances for properties in two
Asian countries. The deposit of those electronics appliances of RMB4,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,510,000) was paid upfront in November
2021. Those electronics appliances will be delivered upon the management
request. The management targets to sell those electronics appliances in the first
half year in 2022.

On 8 December 2021, the Company engaged a wholesaler to procure electronics
healthcare products and devices. The cost of those electronics healthcare
products and devices of HK$5,000,000 was paid upfront in December 2021. The
management targets to finalise the purchase order before the first half year of
2022.

28 AN A - e R HE M EKGRIA

(&)

0]

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

()

i)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

—E-TFEN\ANA  AKEN—HTBE2EKN
BARNZRE-MEARRREEDBEAENE
EFAHRY - RBEETNRREBER  ITEWE
£ RERBAEE  AEERRAS RGE
B o ARFER_B_EFRAIXNARE
3,000,000 7T (212 EH) (HHER 43,576,000/
7o) o REBRBEARBIEN TR B RHE
RIRBEXH - MZBARRCTRFRREME
HIFE IR

RZZ_ZFWNA AEEE-HRA(RD
A ETIMPRIEE L - B RABRMARS - A
B AR EEEEMA 2 EEMNERNE TYED
BRIGEE R-ZT_TF+=-_A=+—H %
MERBAHNETHNENRSBEEEA
9,500,000 7L - R EBELE  KEEAR-T
——F+A-t+hBR-ZE-—4F+-A=t+h
HERDRIEFTRIEHZE R RIGE - RARFE
&+ 2,000,000 TTEEE - B TAREBREE
BR-T - —FREEE -

RZZ-_ZTFE=A=-+HA  AEERBEER
LREE S RIRE R RRBRE —KEER
B AEBEBEN T T F = ATE 4800000
BITUEREMHE - WAKER_T_—F
TZA=T—HAE T ERETE - AlZER
RIER T RE - RAFER - 4,800,000 % 7T
BRHMERETASE mMERECFLEERRD
1,800,000 77T °

RZT—NFE=A=ZH  AEERRERSHEN
AEEKAUREHEANE TYENBRHEE
KRB E—BRSARFTRE B - AEED
RZT=—T4F = AE1$18,000,000 47T * AR HA
R E RSB ERER - AH6EA - W&k
TSR RIAR AL AR 7% HABR B M sk AR LE BT R B AR &
RABREENBREENRE - MIFEAKIEST
RE RZZE-ZTF+=-A=+—H0 BEEE
B E BN FRIBRHE 14,600,000 87T © A
FER 34000008 T EBHERE TAEE -
7 S [ 7 U 65 #8245 14,600,000 7 T ©

RZZE=Z—F+—F AEEN—ETREEEH
BARZR— 2SR MEmAMETRMNERNY
ERBRE - 2ERELRS AR 4500,0007T
(FHE R 455100008 L) ER T =—F+—
A - 2SR EHREEBBERER - BE
BEEN T —F ¥ FHEZEKRE -

RZZEZ—F+ZANB  ARAIZE—ZH %
BREETEERRERLEE ZSETER
fEERE @ R HE 50000008 TTER T
——F+ZRAEN - BEBEENR-Z-__F
HE T RITERIRAEETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(vii)

(viii)

@x)

(x)

i)

(xiny

(xiiD)

On 3 March 2022, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged a
wholesaler to procure healthcare products. The cost of those healthcare
products of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,898,000) was
paid upfront in March 2021. The management targets to finalise the purchase
order before the first half year of 2022 and sell those healthcare products in
2022.

On 8 December 2021, the Company entered into three party agreement with a
healthcare agency and an online platform agency to provide the healthcare
agency services and online sales services. The deposit of RMB$4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,898,000) was paid in December 2021. The
agreement will be expired on 31 December 2022 and the refundable deposit will
refund to the Company within 7 business days upon expiration of the
agreement.

During June 2021, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged a
wholesaler to procure testing and measuring equipment products. The cost of
those testing and measuring equipment products of RMB3,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,714,000) was paid upfront in June 2021.

During May 2021, a wholly owned HK subsidiary of the Group engaged a
property agent to assist the Group in business expansion for the real estate
supply chain service in two Asian countries. The prepaid service fees of
RMB$3,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,674,000) was paid upfront
in May 2021. The Company recognised service fee expense based on completion
of work approved by the Group. Due to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic, as at
31 December 2021 the property agent has not yet provided any services.

On 21 January 2020, the Group engaged a service company to organise two
conferences in Beijing and Shanghai during February 2020 to March 2020. An
advanced payment of RMB4,500,000 inclusive of VAT (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,310,000) was made on January 2020. The conferences
were not successfully held due to COVID-19 pandemic, and the Group signed
two supplemental agreements on 30 June 2020 and 24 February 2021 to extend
the service period to 31 December 2021.

On 24 March 2021, a termination agreement was signed and the advance
payment of RMB4,500,000 was repaid in full to the Group.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement to dispose
of all its entire 49% equity interest in Zhanju and its entire 48% in Wangquan to
the controlling shareholder (“Individual G”) of the associate with a consideration
of RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,398,000). Up to 31
March 2021, the consideration of RMB12,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,735,000) is outstanding. A legal letter of repayment was served to
Individual G contract address on 30 September 2021.

On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell its 100% equity
interests in Power Trump Investments Limited to an individual at a total
consideration of HK$3,500,000. The disposal was completed on 31 December
2021. As at the disposal date, the amount due from Power Trump Investments
Limited was HK$28,637,000.

28.

BRI - RE M A B IR
(&)

(vii) T“¢ R=R  AKEN—HTE2EK
ARRE-ZREARBERREER - %F
%%@Iﬂ?f‘%ﬁ:E’\JWZ!S/\EﬁM,OOO,OOOﬁ(*E%?
474,898,000 BTT) BN —FE - —F = A% -
EREEE T - —F L FAICRRIERIEY
R-B-_—FHERSBEREES -

i) ZEBEZ—FF+ZANB - AR A HE-EEERE
RER MG LFARBEITE=HHENEMR
EREFEIERG LR EHERE - BEARE
4,000,000 7T (18 & F 494,898,000 & 7T ) B =
T —F+AXF - ZBBEHER =T ==
TZA=+—BEREE - TREFT S BRRE
| HE 7 ETEB NREAR AR

@) E@:‘;:—Ef\ﬁ AEE—HTEZENE

NERIE— BRI B E AR RO B RBE

me ZERARABRBEEROK AR

3,850,000 7T (FHE R 414,714,000 T) ER=F
——FXRAREN -

x) RZZZ—FHA AEEN—HEEZENB
AREE—2WE NI AR BN A £ B AR E N
BEREREHEREERT - BHREBARE
3,850,000 7T (48 & 7 493,674,000 L) ER =
T —FRAEN - ARFIREAEEIAENT
VEER B R R IR B I - R COVID-19&1E
$E NW-EB-—H+-F=+—8 YERR
AR AT A AR -

(xi) RZZZZF—A=+—H AEEZE—MR
BRARK-Z-ZZF_RE-_Z-TF=ANt
R EBEEMIZEE - ARARER T _FF
fﬁEHAE%4wmmwdAﬁﬁﬁﬂm*
495,310,000 % 7T) ° % COVID-19ZIEHE -
%*%W%ﬁm'$§gﬁzgfgiﬂﬂ,+
E&_;_*E:ﬁ:+ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
CEREHERE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—
E|o

N-ZE-—F=ZA-+WA - EFFTRILWB
# 0 BRREARK 4,500,000 0 BEEET
NER -

iy MZBZ—F=A=+=8 ' AEEFIL—HK
NEEREULELREES I 49% 2 R H
FARE 22 5 48% 1 25 B R A) 2 AR AR R ([ @
AGl) REAARKI5300,0007T (HHERLH
183980008 7L) HEE-T-_—49=A=+—
B AR#12300,000 7T (8% R #913,735,000
BIL)REBERER AEEAR-_T=_—FNA
=+ BB A G BB T b ik B B 1 FREAD K o

iy RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H KARAFIT —
MEERZ - KLt - AR EEE % Power Trump
Investments Limited 2 2 Z#Ezs B E FREA » 42
KRB A3,500,0008 7T - HERHER T =—
E+-A=+—HEK - RHEEBH " Bl
Power Trump Investments Limited 7% I8 &
28,637,000 T °
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AR B S R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

29. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES

The Group has engaged external independent valuers to assist
the management to assess the expect credit loss (“ECL”) rates at
end of reporting period.

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31 December 31 December
Name Terms of loan 2021 2021
R=B=-f RIB=-f
t2AZ+-8 12Az1-8
e/ 4% LECE ZAeiH ZERIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT
Independent Third Party B Unsecured, repayable on 0} - -
BUE=HB 31 December 2020 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. (‘Loan Y")
EER BN -T-TFETCA
= t-BEERREREI0%:E
(T&zxyl)
Independent Third Party C ~ Unsecured, repayable on (i)
BUE=HC 21 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% p.a. (‘Loan Z")
EER ERZZ--5-A-+-R
BEREER R BT8R
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (iif) 13,000
fAD 28 February 2021 and
bears interest of 8% p.a. ("Loan X")
EER ERZZZ-5ZA-+)\B
BEREEFE %S ([ERX])
Independent Third Party F - Unsecured, repayable on (iv)
BUE=FAF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. (‘Loan W)
EEA BR-E--FNATRA
EERRERZE(ERW])
Total &5t
Current portion MR
Non-current portion FHEHS

29.

A E A A L EK

A E BN L A B
ST S B TR B R ([ TR
S DER

Balance at

Cumulative 31 December
allowance Total 2020
R=B=%%

BHER TZA=t-A
K EE st &8
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ECL rate

% T T T

= = = 14,881

83.00% (25,017) 5124

83.00% (14,09) 2,887

(39,113)

(39,113)

(39,113)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

29. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued) 29. MEMALTER(E)
Principal Accrued

balance at interest as at Balance at

31 December 31 December Cumulative 31 December

Name Terms of loan 2020 2020 ECLrate allowance Total 2019

R-E-%F P-E-F RZE-NE

TZA=+-B +zZA=+-H8 EHEE T-A=t+-H

e/ 4% e P A RIS BEx ZithE @ LB

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 % HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

TAR TAR % TAR TAR TAR

Independent third party A~ Unsecured, repayable on - - - - - 21139
BUE=HA 12 September 2020 and

bears interest of 12% p.a.
BER ER-ZZTEAATCA
BRRIBFHE%H S

Independent Third Party B Unsecured, repayable on (i) 16,000 1944 17.07% (3,063) 14,881 -
BUE=HB 31 December 2020 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. ("Loan Y")
EER ERZZ-ZE12A
ST-BEEREFHNZIO%HE
(T&xY))
Independent Third Party C - Unsecured, repayable on (i) 26,000 179 2152% (5980) 21814 26,209
BUE=HC 21 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% p.a. (‘Loan Z")
&ER ERN-Z--F-A-+-A
BERREFRIR %2 (&R
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (iil) 15,000 1692 88.02% (14,692) 2000 -
BAD 28 February 2021 and
bears interest of 8% p.a. ("Loan X")
EER ERZE=- E*H ZTN\R
EBERRERIZ 8%t 8 ([EFX)
Individual E Unsecured, repayable on - - - - = 3976
EAE 5 April 2019 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
BER BR-T-NERARA
BRRBENE%E R
Total 5t 57,000 5430 (23,735) 38695 51324
Current portion A 57,000 5430 (23,735) 38695 25115
Non-current portion FHBHS - - - - 26,209
57,000 5430 (23,735) 38695 51,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B S R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

29. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued) 29. MEMALTER(E)

Notes: Bt

0) Loan Y was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Independent Third Party B failed @ BERYRERZZE-ZZTFA=1+H82H  #8

to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 20 July 2020, Independent
Third Party B rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and the last
payment date would be 31 December 2020 with all other terms remained
unchanged. During the year, a total amount of principal and interest of
HK$18,881,000 was recovered.

Loan Z was originally due on 21 February 2021, but Independent Third Party C
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 27 April 2022,
Independent Third Party C rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and
the last payment date would be 31 December 2022, with interest calculated at
10% p.a. for the extended period, and was secured by personal guarantee given
by the sole director and sole shareholder of Independent Third Party C. The
Group recognised lifetime ECL as credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

Loan X was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Individual D failed to repay the
principal and interest on that day. On 30 June 2020, Individual D rescheduled
payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 28
February 2021 with all other terms remain unchanged. Up to 12 April 2021,
Individual D had not made any repayment. The Group temporarily lost contact
with Individual D between January 2021 to March 2021. A legal letter of
repayment was served to Individual D contact address on 9 March 2021. During
the year, an amount of HK$2,000,000 was recovered. The Group recognised
lifetime ECL as the loan was deemed default and considered credit-impaired. On
22 April 2022, the Group signed a repayment agreement with individual D to
agree the loan amount to be settled in full on 30 September 2022.

Loan W was originally due on 15 September 2021, but Independent Third Party F
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. An amount of principal of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,225,000) was fully recovered
subsequent to year end.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

VYE=FBRENZBBEERSRAE - KT
ZTZFLAZTA BUE=HBENEI TR
AR BERNKEE - EP&E—ENROEH
BAE-Z-_ZHF+-_A=1+—8 MBEHEMER
WERTE  RAFEAR - KEAE KA SHEE
18,881,000 /87T °

BRZRER-ZZ-_—F_A=-+—HEH %
BUE=F CRENZAEERASRAE - R
T _EFNMA-++HR BYFE = CEHRE
TRADHEZRNHEE  HhSE—E4FTH
AffEA—_Z-_—F+_A=1t—8 EEHH
REFRIO%TE  THBYE=FCHE—=
FRME-REREREABREER AR EER
B AR EREBEEGN - MAEEHEREHE
HEEERE -

BERXRER-T_TFA=THEE @
ADKRAENZBEERSEFE - RZTZTF
ANA=1+B - EADEFRG TIRADHETRD
KX HPEE - EMFNEHEA=Z-—
FZAZHN\H - TEEMIGERESTE - BE
—ZE-—FA+=A - BADEKERTMR
B ARER T -—4—fFE2-2-—F=71
HAR B A A D B R KB AR o REER T = —
F£= AN B RE A D HE % b ik 75 2 & 52 AD
B o AARFE R - B UR[E 2,000,000 7T © B
ZEETWRERIH KRB EERE - A%
EHERATHEBREERE - RZZ-__FMNA
—+=R AEEEBEADFITERDE - BT
RZBZZFHA=THEBHEEERESE -

BERWRER-ZZ-—FAATHAEIH 4
BIUE=FFRENZAEERERFE - A&
AR#1,000,000 7T (A& R 491,225,000 7T) B
RERBRBERD -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MFERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

30. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 30. IRITRIRE R

2021 2020

—B-—F —TTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAETT

Cash on hand EFEE 3,186 85

Fixed deposits EHFR - 18,000

Cash at bank BT S 142,382 149,572

Cash in margin account of brokerage firms L4217 RFESRFP 2R & 6 -
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFEREREXRNEE R

consolidated statement of cash flows ReEEY 145,574 167,657

The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

AR BRITRASERTIEIAT EH
fé:

usD ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AR
Euro BT
Others HAt

2021 2020
—R-—F ZECEHF
HK$7000 HK$ 000
Fi# Tisn
59,965 81,593
38,518 72,474
47,063 13,252

- 291

28 47

145,574 167,657

As at 31 December 2021, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$47,063,000 (2020: HK$13,208,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

NRZE-_—F+_A=+—H A5£H
B BIF A R A A R EHE KT R
P EIRYERTT RV ERTT A5 82 B 49 47,063,000
BIL(ZEZFF 132080008 L) °

AR BB HNEA T B HMNE B 12 {5
Bl 4EE - EERMNIEEEETHAR -
AT AEBEFERB BRI EITINE
R ZBITHARE LB HME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES 3. ERNESEXR
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as REREABNEMNESRERORRD T
follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F 3
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FET
0 to 90 days 0Z90K 56,483 80,690
91 to 180 days 91E180K 1,866 6,289
181 to 365 days 1812 365K = 59
Over 365 days 365 KA 345 315
58,694 87,353
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEEERNESRFZEBBEFEAUT
denominated in the following currencies: EHEETE
2021 2020
—E—F TE-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
usD =TT 30,513 48,650
HK$ BT 20,378 30,940
RMB AREE 7,803 7,763

Total =X 58,694 87,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

33.

32. TAIRE M MEMbEN IR

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Accrued salaries EiRRE e 129,711 128,870
Accrued expenses TEIERISZ 16,225 38,164
Accrued borrowing interests TEIRBEER S 64 43
Customer deposits EREe 24,065 15,197
Other payables E R SRR 5,672 4,992
175,737 187,266
LEASE LIABILITIES 33 HEAaE
Present value of
minimum lease payments
REHEEREZRE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THET FAETT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERE
Within one year —FR 22,075 20,677
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(BREERMT) 31,409 24,345
After five years BFE 5,105 6,577
58,589 51,599
Less: Amount due for settlement within 3 : 12 & B R 2 B fE < 208
12 months (shown under current (RREaETIIR)
liabilities) (22,075) (20,677)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A& EIHARE A 508
12 months (shown under non-current (RIERHBEBRETYTR)
liabilities) 30,922

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 2.41% to 9.58% (2020: from 3.81% to

7.86%).

FEFRRTE 8 E/INEEF 1L 2 18R F
RANF2 4% E9.58%( — T -TF : 381%
Z=7.86%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

34. BORROWINGS

—$+-RA=+—HILFE

254

2021 2020
—B--F —EEF
HK$7000 HK$000
FExT FAETT

Loan from an independent KEBIE=TGCHER
third-party G (note (i) (K17 )) 595
Bank loan (note (i) RITEFR (WAL D) 18,000
18,595

Notes:

O]

@i

The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which is non-
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand. The independent third-
party G has been a related company of the Group until 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group obtained mortgage loan
amounted to HK$17,000,000 (the “First Loan”) granted by Lei Shing Hong
Credit Limited. The First Loan was drawn on 18 February 2020. The First Loan is
secured by the Group’s investment properties (note 21) with a carrying amount
of HK$30,000,000 and corporate guarantee executed by the Company. The
First Mortgage was interest bearing at 11% and repayable on or before February
2021,

On 7 July 2020, the Group obtained a new banking facility of HK$18,000,000
("New Loan”) from Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited to refinance the First
Loan. Part of the advance of the New Loan is used to repay the principal amount
of the First Mortgage and the cumulative interest payable, in total of
HK$17,159,000.

As a result of the refinancing, the effective interest rate of the loan changed
from 1% to 2.75% and the maturity date was extended to on or before August
2021. On 7 December 2021, the Group fully repaid the bank loan of
HK$18,000,000.

Certain borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates thus
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Except for the
loans from related companies which are denominated in RMB,
other loans are denominated in HK$. The directors estimate the
fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31 December 2021 and
2020 approximate to their carrying amounts.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 2= o0 B FR &8

Hist -

0} ZEBRRRA—BBUE=INEHK - REE -
BEARRBREENER - AE_F-NF
ToAZ+T—HABIUE=ZCAAEENEBA
EE

(i) HE-ZT-_TF+-A=+—HILFE F£H
EFNETEEARQRR TREE 7,000,000
BT E—28R])  -F—EEHER=T=Z
FZATN\BRER - F—E5FUAEEERERS
%8 530,000,000 7 7T K995 & ) 2 (M 5E21) AR
ARFENLHRAERER - F—BRBIRN%FT
B BAR-_T-_—F A ZAIEE-

RZE-ZTFLALR  REERFERRT(F
#) AR A F)#1518,000,000 8 T FTIR1TE R
(THER])  AE—E5RHEAE - FERNI
PRECEANEES —SRBNASRENZ
EFFLE 0 #5H17159,0008 7T ©

HARBERE  EREBRMEHEN%ZR2.75% 5
HREEE T —FNARZA - RZT=—
F+ZAtH AEEXHEERTEX
18,000,000 7T °

AETEEREENEGE - ﬁ¢t$‘il

EEAFEMNERRE - BRERATER
NARBEEN  HiWEF i’]l«/(/’éﬁﬁ'
(= %%1&15%'%@7%_ T -_—FR=
T EFT A=+ -HHNEBENRTF
BEHERREMRS

SEMBREEERA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

35.

30.

BONDS PAYABLE

On 10 May 2021, the Company issued unsecured bonds in the
amount of HK$2,000,000 at the rate of 5% which will be due by
9 May 2023 to an independent third party.

The Company has used all of the net proceeds from the bonds
for fulfilling working capital and other general corporate
pPUrposes.

During the current year, interest expense of approximately
HK$64,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are
analysed as follows:

35.

36.

FEfHEZF

RZEBE-—FHA+H  ARARAE—F
W = 58178 852,000,000 7T -
FEABSR MR ZE_=FAANLEA
B EEIRES o

ARBEHEFAEFTRFEEZBAR
mEREESHEREEM—REEME -

RAFE REZBERMEFR XL
64,000 7T ©

B R A A
AEBERRBBEGBESOFTMOT -

2021 2020

—EB-—-F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$000

TFET FAET

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 4,611 2,059
Provisions used BB B (2,059)

Additional provisions REONEE R 4,611

Reversal of provisions BRI -

At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8 4,611

The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

EETHHBAENAEREFPREEE
B AREAERZEFDHEARBREEM®
FERER - ZRERRABRBEREE
BINREKFHBELRER  XIR
EHRE(ER) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

37. DEFERRED TAX 37. EEIE
License
rights
payable Others Total
HRTREEMAR Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H 866 1,072 1,938
Charge to profit or loss for the year FEBRTIAEA
— origination and reversal of — ERRFEREA KR
temporary differences (866) (1,072) (1,938)
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZTB-_TE+-_A=1+—HBEK
31 December 2021 —E-_—#+-A=+—8H - - -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RIERR - AEBEES RSB IER
losses of approximately HK$421,979,000 (2020: B4 54219790008 T(— T - T F ¢
HK$234,400,000) available for offset against future profits. No 234,400,000/ 70) + Al AR R A 0s
deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses has been F o FRAN AR BB TEORI AR 2R AR - Al A
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. BREEAADAVEEENRELERIES
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately E- AERNBESEEEEREFAE
HK$49,480,000 (2020: HK$1,500,000) that will expire within 5 W HY 5 18 4 5 49,480,000 o ( = F —
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. T4 115000008 7T) « EM B IHEE

AR A5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
At the beginning and the end of the year

Share consolidation (note (b))

SREE02ATE Bk
RENRER
Binadt(Hi b))

At the end of the year

RER

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each

At the beginning of the year

Issuance of placing shares (note (a))

Share consolidation (note (b))

Issuance of consideration shares (note (c))
Issuance of placing shares (note (d))
Issuance of placing shares (note (e))

Issuance of shares upon rights issue

(note (f))

BRITRHE

SREE002ETE B
RER
BORERD (HH @)
RiAA G (A 0)

BEORERG Wi ©)
BORERR (W @)
BRERD (Wi @)
HIRERITRG (K (D)

38.

2021
—EC--F

Number of

shares
R

75,000,000,000

75,000,000,000

427,958,570

85,580,000
102,704,000

308,121,285

924,363,855

RN
2020
—Z-ZF

Number of
Amount shares Amount
&8 P &8
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TAR
1,500,000 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000
S (1,425,000,000,000) -
1,500,000 75,000,000,000 1,500,000
5,945,311,400 5,945
1,189,060,000 1,189
(6,777,652,830) -
71,240,000 1,425
427,958,570 8,559
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 38. IRA(E)

Notes: Bt

(a) On 19 February 2020, an aggregate of 1,189,060,000 shares of the Company (a) R-ZZB-FFE - A+ AH 43£1189,060,000 %

with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each has been substantially placed at
HK$0.035 per shares. The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction
of commission and other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately
HK$41,513,000.

FARE B 0.0017 T AR 7 Bk 15 12 8 12 0.035
PBITERBRKINEE o BEMRDATS REEE
(B FMEEEHRH M S REMBELE) LD
541,513,000 BT °

(b) On 29 May 2020, the Company implemented a share consolidation on the basis RIB-_ZERA-tTHAA ARFHRE20
that every 20 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to be SFREEC.00IEITE BT RABITEBIRAE H
consolidated into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.02 each. RIREIREEO0.02E LA P B EEE jE AR

HEabt -

© On 28 July 2020, the Group entered into a transfer agreement with the Vendor S ZEFLAZTN\R - AEEBEEHE
to acquire EAR-2 (note 22(d)) at a consideration of HK$27,000,000 (the R BB R AR -2 (M5 22(d)) -
“Consideration”), satisfied by allotment and issuance of 71,240,000 R B /270000008 T((RE]) - REBETES
consideration shares to the vendor at issue price of HK$0.02 each. The fair value f&0.028 LIRS A BL 8 & 397 71,240,000 IR R (B
of the shares of the Company at the date of agreement is HK$0.379 per share BRADZ A o RARIRD A % B A FEER
and amounted to approximately HK$27,000,000, of which HK$1,425,000 and 03797 T - £ FEXY A 27,000,0008 7T+ E
HK$25,575,000 was credited to the Company’s share capital and share premium 711,425,000 78 JT } 25,575,000 T 2 2 Bl et A
accounts, respectively. AR RIRRA R AR i (B R o

(d) On 11 January 2021, an aggregate of 85,580,000 shares of the Company with a R-—ZZT=-—F—HA+—H " 4 #85580,000 &
nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been substantially placed at HK$0.35 per BREECEITH AR RMNIEER035E
shares. The proceeds from the placed shares amounted to approximately TTHERKRINES EERMDAERELA
HK$29,355,000. 29,355,000 7T ©

(e) On 30 June 2021, an aggregate of 102,704,000 shares of the Company with a RZZFE-—FXA=+H8 " 4102704000
nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been substantially placed at HK$0.224 per FREEC2BITHNAR RN IZE 02247
shares. The proceeds from the placed shares amounted to approximately TTHERKRINESE EERMAEREBENA
HK$22,316,000. 22,316,000 7T ©

)] On 1 November 2021, the Company announced a proposed rights issue on the RZE-_—F+—FA—H ARAEHEZLE

basis of one rights share for every two shares in issue at a subscription price of
HK$0.2 per rights share to raise up to approximately HK$65,200,000 before
expenses. On 23 November 2021, the Company allotted and issued 308,121,285
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each by way of rights issue. Proceeds from the rights
issue amounted to approximately HK$61,626,000.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

BAEMRE BTN T —IRUARAR (5 a4
TR - REBEATRMKRKRMD 2B T - UE
£ 5% #965200,0004 7T (MBRFZ AT c A=
T-—FE+—A=+=H  KAFAHRTRE
% K 34 17308,121,285 I AR I E 0.2 B T ) i
% o $LAR FT1S FRIBA) A 61,626,000 B TT ©
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38.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2020, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31
December 2021 and at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

38.

B (48)

AEBEREANBERRSHELAKEDN
FEEER ) WBBB(EERESR
R RIRREREADEH - REEE
RERAR L | —F AR R o

AEEZEARLHIEETEASER - AK
B A B AR ) ) M ARRE B E R R
BRUEEEAGEBALIELHE - B
FAABENGRE  AEEAIHEKE
RIE - BIOHE - BORD - EEH
& - BERABERKMEEENRIE -

AEERBEHGHEHBERNLRER
B - RN BEHBRALRAEE
AAE - REGEREEE(RTEXR
5N) - RABERBIEAA RN (B
BeA  REE A, RATHE R R E A )
(IR RRFRID)

RZEZ—F AEEZRKEE_T—
TEHE T EEE  ABESHEHAE

B EGIHENABAKE - RZEZ
F+-_A=Z=+—Brk-_ZE-_ZFTF+_A
—+—HMEBEEAREAL RN

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total debt WBIET 2,614 18,595
Adjusted capital LR E R 365,877 295,462
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B SR E AR & 0.7% 6.3%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Stock Exchange is that it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Group and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has maintained sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 as
required under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

REBAEBIFER G AT EmA
M—BETHIINAELARERARIER
ETMMER25% - RIBASBMEHARM
BRRBEERM RNEE-_T-_—F
+-A=+—HULEFE AEE—H#&
BB EMBRAAMEEN AR RS
fZE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—Z—

—$+-RA=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOV
(@)

EMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

(@) ARAELZHBARREK

2021
—E_—F
Note HK$°000
Btat FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% - B E R
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRIMIEE 23
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUT B A RRIE 39(0) 192,571

Amount due from a director

Prepayments, deposits, other
receivables

Loans to other parties

Investments at FVTPL

FEW —REEFA

BNFUR - B - HbEY

IR
mEMATRHEER
BAVERARENERE

41,436
8,011
1,229
6,713

249,960

Bank and cash balances SRITMIR e 8R
Total current assets RBEEHAE
Total assets EEHAE

260,184
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39. ARALZBARNR K FHHEEE)

2020
—E-THF
HK$000
FHET

2,311
9,152
27,854

39,317

177,593
600

9,097
38,695

1,372

227,357

266,674
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 39 ARAIZHBEMRAREREEE S
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued) @ AREZEHBARRE (E)
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Btat FET FAETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExkEafE
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners KRBERE AELER
of the Company
Share capital R AN 18,487 8,559
Reserves HE 40(b) 226,659 225,533
Total equity SRR 245,146 234,092
Non-current liabilities kRBASE
Lease liabilities HEaE -
Bonds payable B EH -
Total non-current liabilities ERBEFEEE -
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E AR RIR 13,833
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,710
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER B R R FUA 42(0) 9,039
Borrowings B -
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 7,075 32,582
Total equity and liabilities EEhkE8EHE 260,184 266,674
Approved by the Board of Directors on and are signed on gBEeRN-_TE-_—_FMA=-+hH
29 April 2022 its behalf by: HEWHR TIALRAEERE :
Lin Dailian Wang Guozhen
PRACEE TEIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 39. ARa| 2 EARN K K& HE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company O VNGIPA=1
Equity
Share Share Investments
premium option Merger  Accumulated at FVTOCI Capital
account reserve reserve losses reserve  contribution Total
BAY
B A
2@
WEHNRE
ROEER BRERE AfRE 2R RERE EALE @it

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL T ThEL T T TEL Thn

At 1 January 2020 R_E-ZF-F—-H 603,750 - 3171 (338,324) (36,559) 11,280 243318
Total comprehensive expense for ~ FE 2 AR EH

the year - - - (71,472) (12,212) - (83,684)
Issuance of placing shares BIRERD 40,324 - - - - - 40324
Issuance of consideration shares  E{TRERH 25,575 - - - - - 25,575
Disposal of equity investments HERERE - - - @877 8771
At 31 December 2020 and W_E-5E+-A=1-8

1 January 2021 k=E--%-F-H 669,649 - 3171 (458,567) - 11,280 225,533

Total comprehensive expense for ~ £E2 AR R EH

the year - - - (106,819) - - (106,819)
Equity-settled share-based payments  IARRELE AR AR
PAE - 4576 - - - - 4576
Issuance of placing shares FIRERD 27,643 - - - - - 27,643
Issuance of placing shares EIRERR 20,262 - - - - - 20,262
Issuance of shares upon rights issue  {XRRES /7M1 55,464 - - - - - 55,464
At 31 December 2021 W-E--%#+-A=1-H 773,018 4576 3171 (565,386) - 11,280 226,659
(c) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, (© JEU(FER) KB A RRIE A ER
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments. - RERERTEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. RESERVES 40. f#i&
(@ Group (@ AEH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements ZK‘*I%%%%%E&EZ@NEA raia
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of mNEMEERER RGEERE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and BRNZT o

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) FREBEMERE®

(i) Share premium account iy BHEER
Share premium represents the amount of the excess s ERRAR ARG H
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par FTEHAEEENSRE -
value.

(ii) Share option reserve (i) BREGRE
The share option reserve represents the fair value of BEREFREEREBERSMS
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share WMEMFAV AR EEE
options granted to employees of the Group LARE 0 2 E 0 2 A 3RPT R 4R
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy JEFTBRERE TAER
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in BE ZRITHE BRI E
note 4(v) to the consolidated financial statements. ERERE L AFE -

(iii) Merger reserve (i) SOHHE
The merger reserve represents the difference AHFEHERERESEEEZEAN
between the nominal value of the shares issued by DAL B ENE A R EY
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of HEMfiBARBRAEE Z58 -

the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve (iv) HNEREHFE
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all GNE H B B IR R B F D
foreign exchange differences arising from the XBUBEMERELENAEIN
translation of the financial statements of foreign EER - ZHEHEREEEY
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance TSR &R M 5T 4Cd)GiD) T & &1
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)ii) ERRRIE -

to the consolidated financial statements.
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The equity investments at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(I) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited R a5 BIER 8 BRI B EEE A R A &)

40. RESERVES (Continued) 40. f#fE(58)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) fEFEMEERE/E)
(v) Equity investments at FVTOCI reserve ) EAFEFAHMEZEmKE
KR EREHE

BAFESARMEERR
MREREREERNES
HIRBANE QA FEAR
i 2 T U WO AR R IR B 2 F
BRAZHFELRESES
AR mRMIFE 40) BT BUR R
I8 o

TEENBARBBKIER
—NNEFRBEBESAHK
BHEB QR KRG @EER®
Telefield Holdings Limited &
BMEGZ S R D TR R G E
B2ERERE -

EERE
EERBR/TADIK - TR
EPBEERZERERAN
SEPENEARKRREE
)R K o

EENC

B R AR L
OB AR REE I
BEZREmARBRAU
&/ EE

BEXHE
ZRBIER AT EERS

PR e B E RS IR 2
HIERE - WRREE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:

sRe R T

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

41,

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
business or joint venture partner or adviser of or contractor of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 10 March 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

41,

PARSU AR AR E5 0 2 53K
VAR # # SH FE P i =T 8

ARRABETHBEE S ([ &8 )
AR R R AR EEEE 2 RINED
BERfzRER2EE SEKR2EER
BARARARAMEBERAR ZEME
= RBE EM -ZFXATL -EP -#
fER - I XA EBHIERAA
HAEABH - ZEN_F_FF=A+
BAXM  BRIFERITTAZHLER &
AR 3% B+ SR AR o

RIEZETE - BBEER T ZR1TEB
Bz &xZHER/REER —&TE - K
RAINEAEIRE BITRD 210% - R
E+ @A BE R - &t EARER
THERAEARSEE ZBREN A &EIT
Z&ZBRNE B TR AR R RME(E
RE BTN 2 1% ° & TEMR G LR
M BRIERESERNRR RS it
#fE ©

BRYARRIZES TETHRABSHE
TRHEXBEZEMBEALTZER
W BTELEBS B IEMITE AL
dEoh - AR TFAAR EFERE I
FRNTESTIHEZEMBHBALZE
AEAE R+ — & A HA A 2 (T R - 8
BARRNBBETRG Z 0.1% KB E (AR
TERBARARARHEWRAELRE)HBEB
5,000,000 7T + H97BTE LSRR A
HAE EH#E -

AR ARRE L BB 2IRA S RE
AREEHK BT UEKERTEREZ
BN ERBREZTEDNHESE
o YRERBRRFAR RN TERE
HEREENRMESIF 2 ARER
ZATEIFHIR (W AERE) &

BREZITEERESETE  ETFE
RATZz&SE  OARARMHRIED
BREZHBEBEBRAZWHE o)
ARRABBHNRBEZRRHBREZD B
AIAER S BHEBRAZ FHRHE
R (i AR E LB ZRO B B
ZHEEER) -
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

41,

PARSAR AR B0 2 1SR (AR
VAR i A R A it 81 (48)

BEETETREAZTAR

REEREZRER -

)

ISEAN T

FREAITEBRENE® B RITEE

following expiry dates and exercise prices: (1l N
Number of
Original Adjusted adjusted
exercise exercise price  Numberof share options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price (Note) share options (Note)
e
BRETEE BRESE
RERS GRS IEHE RiTEE (W) EBRE%A (W)
HKS
/%TE
Directors
Bz
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 July 2021 28 July 2021to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3851535 3,999,819
“Z--F-A-t\B ZE--F-A-tNBZ “5--F+A-+/\RE
B -#+A-t++H “E-E-A-t++H
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3,851,535 3,999,819
ZEC-F-A-TN\B ZEZ-5-A-T)\BE ZECCE-AZT\HE
ZEIZE-AC4A ZEIRE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3851535 3,999,819
ZEZ-¥-A-t\B ZEZ-§-A-t/\RZ “E-CFtA-tN\HE
= s b ol = “E-E-A-t++H
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2023 28 January 20250 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3,851,535 3,999,819
ZEC-F-A-TN\B ZEZ-5-A-T)\BE ZECZE-R-+)\RE
“E-=F-A-t+H “E- R E-R-t+H
Employees
B8
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4053142 4,063,322
ZEC-F-A-TN\B ZEZ-5-A-T)\BE ZECCE-AZT\HE
ZEIZE-AC4A ZEIRE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2025 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,053,142 4,063,322
“Z--F-A-t\B ZE--F-A-tNBZ ZEZ=5-AZt)\HE
ZECZE-ACTtA ZECNE-ACTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2024 28 January 2024 t0 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,079,713 6,094,982
ZEC-F-A-TN\B ZEZ-5-A-T)\BE S-EE-A-+\RE
ZEIME-A=TtA :E‘RE AZT+tH
28 January 2021 28 January 2021- 27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,079,713 6,094,981
ZEZ-¥-A-t\B ZEZ-§-A-t/\RZ ZEZRE-AZt\HE
—E-R¥-R-t+tH - RE-A-t+H
35,671,850 36,315,883

Note: The number of share options granted and the relevant exercise price are
adjusted to reflect the effect of rights issue on as defined in note 38(f).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

41, SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 4. AR AER 2SR (E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) LARR i 4E E B AR R ST 8 (4B)
Details of the movement of share options during the year are as RERNBREZEE) FEHMMT -
follows:

Weighted

Number of average
share options exercise price
BREHE MEFGTEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET

Outstanding at the beginning of the year REWHARITE

Granted during the year RERNEFE L 35,671,850
Adjustment upon right issue R N AR RS B

during the year 1,357,840
Lapsed during the year REFE RR R (713,807)
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBARITHE 36,315,883
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAITHE 3,999,819
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted PG SR 18] AR 17 150 B IR AR 9 DDA S 39 TR 8
average remaining contractual life of 4.08 years (2020: N/A) and EHFHBLBF(ZE_ZEF : T @
the adjusted exercise prices of HK$0.346 (2020: N/A). The B &RABTEER0346ET(ZEZ
estimated fair value of the options granted in 2021 is TFNEA) c ZEZ—FR THERE
HK$8,235,000 (2020: N/A). During the year, HK$4,576,000 B ET R FEA8235000F L(ZF =
recognised in profit or loss and correspondingly to share option TFE:NEA)  NER - 4576,000%
reserve. The financial impact of 713,807 lapsed share option had TTRIBE RAER EREREETER -
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and 713,807 10 K BB AR FE B0 B 75 5 B AN B
performance for the current year. ERAFEENTBERARKRERESEXR

& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

41.

268

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 41.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial option
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

AR RER 2 K (58)
VAR i A R A it 81 (48)

ZELNTERA-EXBEETERAG
B BRGABENT

Weighted average share price I I(E
Weighted average exercise price It 1T (E
Expected volatility TE AR IR
Expected life T8 HAF HY

Risk free rate 2 [ iz ) =
Expected dividend yield T8 HAfR B 2

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price in the relevant periods
matching expected time to exercise prior to the dates of grant.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

0.345
0.359

103.77%

5 years &
0.33%

0%

FEHPRIE B B At E AR A IR ER R
HIMHE S RIRETE @ ZKRER T A
HA R e TR HRTT (R B AR U B - RAL R ER
ReERFHEREAEE O K EMR
MAREEN - TERSRTAERERA
EMTEELAE -
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH ~ 42. %R
FLOWS

St

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary — Sota Acoustics Limited @)

On 4 January 2020, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests in Sota Acoustics Limited at a consideration of
HK$1 from Noble Treasure Holdings Limited. Noble
Treasure Holdings Limited is controlled by a former
director of Telefield Holdings Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. The fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Sota Acoustics Limited as at the
date of acquisition were as follows:

BREMEBRME

N
E

WE—ENEAR -~ #HESEFR
fRA 7]

RZZEZTF—ANA - *&EEF
HMEZERBRARNEHFESEAR
RARIERERARE - RERVETT °
HEBEERBRAGHRAEE 2 2&
bt & A 7] Telefield Holdings Limited
ZAEEES c mEERER AR
ZABREERBERIERS
NEEET

HK$000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment Y E =Y 1
Inventories & 22
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS 45 70
Accruals and other payables TERBAKEMENFUR 24)
69
Gain on bargain purchase (note 11) BBz WS () (69)
Total consideration REBT -
Consideration to be satisfied by cash LAIR & &R E -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: BB EA MRS TR F5E
Cash consideration paid BENRERE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWEReMREEED 69
69
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 42, #4&
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary — Be Smart Finance Limited (b)

On 18 August 2021, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests in Be Smart Finance Limited at a consideration of
approximately HK$131,000 from an Independent Third
Party. Be Smart Finance Limited is principally engaged in
the money lending business and was acquired with the
objective of developing the Group’s business. The fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Be Smart Finance
Limited as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

R nERME(E)

W B8 — K B & B — Be Smart
Finance Limited

RZZEZ—FNA+NH  ~&E
B — & ¥B % = A U EEBe Smart
Finance Limited () 2 #E 2 - KB
/131,000 JT ° Be Smart Finance
Limted EF ZRERE XD - BE
& 7N & @ 2 7% i Y 88 © Be Smart
Finance Limited Z A & R EE N &
BERRERE 2 ATFERAT

HK$'000

FAETT

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE © e R EADEKGIE 131

Consideration to be satisfied by cash UIRS &R E 131
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: RWEEANIB SR F -

Cash consideration paid BENBEeRE 131

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWIERe MNREEEY -

131

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to
approximately HK$1,000, being stamp duty for the transfer,
had been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line
item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. From the date of acquisition, Be Smart
Finance Limited did not commence business and no
revenue contributed to the Group.

The Prepayments, deposits and other receivables acquired
with a fair value of HK$131,000.

270  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z s B R BRI £ B A TR A A

BRAKEEN X 5 KA #1000 7T
(BNEFENERH) ERAEEHE—
T+ A=+—HILFEEN
BaPrTHEAS JHE RER -
B Ug B B HA#E » Be Smart Finance
Limited 3¢ 7K 7 46 2 7% + I8 A8 ¥J X
EEWRAELER -

LA A S {E131,000 7% 7T U B8 78 1 3%
15~ e M EHMEWGRIE -
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 42,
FLOWS (Continued)

R nERME(E)

(c) Disposal of Power Trump Investments Limited () HEPower Trump Investments Limited
On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a sale and RZE-——F+=-_A=+—H"
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company KARFBNTT—HEEWHE &
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Power Trump it AN 2 &) & & # Power Trump
Investments Limited to an individual at a total Investments Limited 7 & & # #5
consideration of HK$3,500,000. The disposal was BT EA - BREA3500000%8
completed on 31 December 2021. Net assets of Power e MEBHEENR _E-_—F+=
Trump Investments Limited at the date of disposal were as A=+—H=xmK - R &HE -
follows: Power Trump Investments Limited

ZEEFENT

HK$'000
FAT
Investment properties TEYE 32,068
Bank and cash balances WITRIRB 45 282
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFOE -« ke M EMmEWEIE 16
Accruals and other payables TERBRA MK EMENFUA (229)
Amount due to the Company JE A X R FRIE (28,637)
Net assets disposed of BHELEFE 3,500
Consideration receivable to be satisfied by cash LA & &Ry eI B 3,500

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: E L EE A IE S HeE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERIRESEEY (282)
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

)

272

Major non-cash transaction

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during
the year of HK$28,844,000 (2020: HK$14,662,000) were
financed by lease liabilities of new lease agreements.

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire 49%
equity interest in Zhanju and its entire 48% in Wangquan,
for a consideration of RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,398,000). of which RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,353,000 was received
during the year. The remaining consideration of
RMB12,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,735,000) had not been received at the end of the
reporting period.

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in of Power Trump Investments Limited for a
consideration of HK$3,500,000 which had not been
received at the end of the reporting period.

(d
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RenERME(E)

TRHFRERS

FAAEFREEERTHERSRE
28,844,000 (= 2 F :
14,662,000 7T) Jh A ¥ & %
HEEBERM -

REAFER AEEBRAARK
15,300,000 7T, (#8& 7 4718,398,000
BIL)MNRELENEIESE49%
Wi RIE 22 E048% MR - B
AR 30000007T(HERD
3,353,000 70) RAFERUKE] -
R ER - BARBEIFISRREA
R #123200,0007t( #H & B 4
13,735,000 7T) °

RAFERN - KNEE L S Power
Trump Investments Limited 2 3 &
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 42, #ZelRen=sxMaT (8)
FLOWS (Continued)
(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (e) MBEEHELZBEHE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities AEFEEREESMEEZBERN
arising from financing activities, including both cash and 29 BRERASKIERSEE B
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing FHHURTR -HBEEHELENE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future & AAZAEREASHRNER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated nE RASENGEHREESRER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing FLOEAMELTH RERE -
activities.
Lease Bonds
liabilities Borrowings payable
HEAE BE EES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FAT FHET
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—H—H 59,605 20,558 -
Addition BE 14,662 - -
Reassessment BIEHE (1,122) = -
Cashflows RERE (27,450) 17,840 -
Interest expenses FERX 3,266 160 =
Settlement (note 34(ii)) & (Bt 340) - (20,000) -
Exchange difference PE 4 =% 2,638 37 =
As at 31 December 2020and W -ZB-ZTE+_A
1 January 2021 =F+—BAk=ZE=—F
—H—H 51,599 18,595 -
Addition BE 28,844 - -
Cashflows Behs (26,751) (18,000) 2,000
Interest expenses FEREZ 3,649 - -
Exchange difference MEHZ%E 1,248 19 v
As at 31 December 2021 R=-F=-—%+=A
=+—H 58,589 614 2,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—Z—

—$+-RA=+—HILFE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(f)  Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases

comprise the following:

42. AR RERMTE(E)

3

(H MHERSRERTHSEEREAT
RIF :

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$000
TFET FAET
Within operating cash flows CEEEREN 5,619 12,540
Within financing cash flows BERESREN 24,184
36,724
These amounts relate to the following; IVRIN=SI=p =iz
2020
—T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Lease rental paid BNHEERS 28,721 36,724

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

44, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

43 HARBE
AEBEARB L EEFERLARE -

44, B AERYE
AEBRFEHROBEAFRENT ¢

Plant and machinery
Contracted but not yet incurred

5 M ae

BRI EREL

2021 2020

= e =—TF
HK$000 HK$:000
F85 Fitz
874
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Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

45. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) with one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,300,000),
which represents a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently

sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,100,000). In this regards, as at 31
December 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the
sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of the

final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued a counter guarantee to
indemnify the Group for any loss in relation to the Guarantee.
The management of the Group after taking legal advise are of
the opinion that it is highly unlikely that liabilities will be brought

against the Group on the above matter.

45.

MBERAEK

RZEZ—FRZFT_ZF+=A
=t+—B AEEHERZ-Z—HF+
AtBHEZENEAR (B HEH
BARD cER—BHEREWRERN
ERIZER]D HEBAZXFTA K
2,600,000 3 7t (#8 & 7 920,300,000 %
TO)Z A B HEWE A R E
Az FEESES  HBrERRD D
EBHERTE=T -

RZZ—+F DHEMBARBEESE
= HERKENEE - 5 B 5650,000
ZE 70 (FHE R 495,100,000 7T) ° UL
T ORZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H K
EEEAMKRENEREELRA
650,000 7T * RFELHEMBARE
PR MR TR FIEmE -

EHEMBRAREMARAELRE
R ABMZERZEMBRRBRAFRE
HABERE - AEBEZEREEREIVX
RERAERRR  AEREAKA g Lt
SHARERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BAERR S
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BirE VSRR Emib FIEENREER
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the R REERIN - REBRFRNEBER
Group had the following transactions with its related parties BUTRS :

during the year:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Amount due from a director JER—REERIR 450
The details of remuneration of key management personnel, FTEEREKENFMAIARRERRY
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid FRENHB ) FBEEMFEDS °

during the year and set out in note 15.

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 47. W|E

(i)  Issuance of consideration shares for entering an agency 0]
agreement

On 18 January 2022, the Company entered into an Agency
Distribution Agreement, with a scientific instruments
manufacturer (“the Assignor”), the Assignor agreed to
assign all its rights, obligations, title, interest, and benefit in
and to the Agency Distribution Agreement to the Company
at the consideration of HK$37,800,000, which will be
settled by the allotment and issue of 230,000,000
consideration shares by the Company to the Assignor upon
completion.

Up to the date of this report, the Company is in the status
of finalise (i) details of the Agency Distribution Agreement;
(i) details of the Specific Mandate; and (iii) a notice
convening the EGM together with a form of proxy. Details
of the Agency Distribution Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2022, 9
February 2022, 4 March 2022 and 25 March 2022.
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H— AR 2 ESRE ((EEAD
SIVRIESHEHE  BEARER
RAREZEEERIBD HHRT &
ML ZBEOREEN &1 WA
- Eakiams REA
37,800,000 7T + AR AFRTE
K& R 8GR ON R OB R OET
230,000,000 B (R AB Bz 1 B9 75 = 1E
i e

HEARREBH - NQFERGE O
RIEBDEHZETE  (DEFRIX#E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS R M Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—T=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued) 47. WEHEEHE)

Amendments to terms of exclusive agency rights EAR-2

On 19 January 2022, the developer extend the appointment
of the Group as its exclusive agent for villa units (“EAR=-2")
from 24 November 2021 to 24 May 2022.

The COVID-19 outbreak

The outburst of COVID-19 pandemic has brought additional
uncertainties in the global macroeconomic situation which
may affect the Group’s financial performance. However,
since the outbreak continues to evolve and all the
industries globally are facing a challenging situation, the
degree of impact could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage. The Group will closely monitor the development of
the outburst and assess its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances and
unpredictability of future development, the directors of the
Company consider that the financial effects on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements cannot be reasonably
estimated as at the date these consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue.

BRAEEBRNRERE 2GR 2B
Hi
RZBZZF—HAThB - EED
ZAREEIERERIEEMBRNR
B(BRRE#E-2) T -—F
+—AZ T NREE T -_—FH
A=+mA -

COVID-19 18 2%

N

Fal
3

% I

COVID-19 & 1B 1R 3 4a 2 B R B
RS REBINFEE M - B0 88
FEREEMNMBRE - AT - B
REEHEBE  2HRETSED
HREREF Y  REBREESIER
HEERE AREBETRYERE
TR ER - AT HE AR E I B
NI EE BN o

ERNEEBERTEH L ARRER
REIFER - ARREZERR KX
BEMZFEAVBHRERZE A
SERAMBHRRIINMBETZE
HEESIRRE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBEHE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December AEEHEZE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HILFE
2021 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Groupas HGAEERAEEAR T - —F+ -4
at 31 December 2021 are those set out in the audited financial Z=+—BHNGAEE  BEMESHALEEZX
statements. B Rz A o

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

ATEEY TERERZIBRERAED -

statements.
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
b bl T -TF —T-NF —E-N\F —T+F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FTET FAT TET
RESULTS %5
Revenue A 675,523 595,023 629,948 681,482 662,208
Cost of sales HEMAK (530,635) (440,311) (494,106) (534,208) (497,793)
Gross profit EX 144,888 154,712 135,842 147,274 164,415
Other income, other gains and losses E bl A« E il
REE 25,512 9,642 16,327 24,878 19,524
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (29,232) (56,317) (28,829) (27,527) (45,578)
Administrative expenses THEHR CELFEOR  (178,158)  (179,414)  (182,509)  (151,934)
Other operating expenses Hip R & & A (27,619) (82,076) (100,405) (25,095) (94,789)
Loss from operations KEEE (40,681) (152,197) (156,479) (62,979) (108,362)
Share of profits (losses) of associates FEGEES A B% 7 (E518) 1,098 (12,622) - - -
Finance costs BB KA (4,169) (4,928) (6,809) (2,778) (13,049)
Loss before tax bR A0 &8 (C5EV))  (169,747)  (163,288) (65,757)  (121,411)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrEM (Fx) /e (3,395) (3,323) (1,300) 566 (9,898)
Loss for the year from BEREER Y
continuing operation FEEE (47,147) (173,070) (164,588) (65,191) (131,309)
(Loss)/profit for the year from CRIEREEK Y
discontinued operations EE(FE) & - - (14,739) 15,891 -
Loss for the year FEFE (47,147) (173,070) (179,327) (49,300) (131,309)
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HFMBHE

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
TAET
Attributable to: PR & AL
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ= DN (46,397)
Non-controlling interests ISl g (750)
(47,147)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-  BE - B8R FZRER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total assets BEBE 677,978
Total liabilities BiEEE (312,101)
Non-controlling interests R 121

365,998

Note:

above.

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31
December 2019. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the year
presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations

2020 2019 2018 2017
“E-FF —E-NF —ZT-)\F —T—+LF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FAT TET
(173,052)  (171,735) (57,984)  (128,428)
(18) (7,592) 8,684 (2,881)
(173,070)  (179,327) (49,300)  (131,309)
657,405 734,840 930,862 960,588
(361,943)  (323.827)  (348,030)  (306,586)
472 - (10,028) 543
295,934 411,013 572,804 654,545
Wi AEERBE-T-NE+-A=t—BILEEHES

THBRRRBERR - BHEMNBARREE QTR
2HNFENEECEN IR UREXBIEBEACDHK

LERERETS -
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